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PIER IMPORTS IS THE ORIGINAL GLOBAL IMPORTER OF UNIQUE HOME FURNISHINGS

Our one-of-a-kind merchandise reflects the diverse cultures of the dozens of countries our buyers

explore With broad assortments we have something for everyone useful things decorative things

and the purely whimsical

Our stores are unmistakable Fragrant candles the exotic scent of wicker the colors and patterns of

dinnerware textured carvings and woven textiles all combine to create an eclectic treat for the senses

Our image is quirky From our iconic logo to our signature red tile floors we offer unique shopping

experience We display our wares so that each trip is treasure hunt where customers can find long-time

favorites as well as something new Its the thrill of the bazaar The expected and the unexpected

Our associates bring our brand to life We value their creativity talent and dedication

In short there is only one authentic global importer the ever-original Pier Imports



FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS

Returning our well-loved company to profitability and restoring shareholder value is what we
think about all day every day This recession has made it tougher but our confidence in our

ability and resolve to get the job done has not wavered If anything it has made us more
determined We know that every aspect of our business is in better shape than it was two years

ago and that the improvements we have made and continue to make will allow us to come out of

this recession strong

It is frustrating for all of us that in this retail climate our turnaround will take longer than we

previously expected but the foundation on which our turnaround is built remains the same We
have clear strategies which speak to great merchandise great stores and lean and efficient

infrastructure These strategies are encapsulated in our business priorities Staying focused on

these priorities has allowed us to accomplish many things despite the recession and we would like

to share some of these successes with you

Merchandise is where it all starts and therefore our number one priority is to develop

best-in-class buying organization that has clear understanding of Pier Imports brand

positioning and what excites our customers Our buyers job is to travel source buy develop

test and ultimately create compelling merchandise assortments that exceed our customers

expectations To do this we needed bigger team By September 2007 we had added an

additional 11 buyers to the team bringing our total number to 22 Enlarging our team has

created smaller spans of control with greater specialization and allowed our buying team more

time to source and develop new products Over the past two years our team of buyers has begun
to reconnect with our customers as evidenced by the increases in conversion rate that we have

been experiencing over the past year and half They have re-captured the brand essence of

Pier Imports and we are pleased with the ongoing improvements to our merchandise As each

season goes by the accuracy of our buying is improving

During fiscal 2008 and 2009 we brought back old favorites created new favorites and tested new

categories and departments We have focused on rebuilding the treasure hunt that our

customers enjoy Fortunately for us before the decline in the economy took hold we had already

moved away from our over-reliance on large high-ticket furniture pieces and began to develop

stronger assortments of more affordable furniture and strengthened considerably our

non-furniture assortments You can now find in our store jewelry girls gifts stationary

epicurean offerings and kitchen gadgets Although this shift in our merchandise assortment

decreased our average ticket it helped to lessen the impact that the economic crisis had on our

business by driving increases in units per transaction and conversion rate

Our second business
priority is to support the buying team with an equally best-in-class planning

and allocation department The planning and allocations team ensures that everything from

assortment planning to store allocation is carefully and thoughtfully planned and executed We
have made improvements to the timing of our purchases to better align with our selling periods

We have made technological advances in our allocations system that allows greater flexibility in

allocating SKUs and setting parameters by SKU at the store level

Our efforts to date have enabled us to make significant reductions in the inventory in our

distribution centersdecreasing our inventory by $95 million this year without compromising our

customers in-store experience Further this reduction allowed us to vacate outside warehouse



space of 350000 square feet in fiscal 2009 and to close our Chicago distribution center in the

first quarter of fiscal 2010

The third business
priority is to tighten up the supply chain from vendors to our stores to reduce

both costs and lead times We have made changes to consolidation renegotiated ocean freight

contracts and improved vendor compliance To improve our supply chain domestically we

established West Coast transload facility that both reduced cost and improved domestic transit

times In our distribution centers we reduced labor costs by implementing labor package on

engineered standards that increased productivity Additionally we reduced management layers

which reduced fixed labor costs To further these efforts we developed store delivery schedule

matrix that allows us to flex from two deliveries each week back to one delivery based on changes

in sales volume The supply chain changes that we have made both internationally and

domestically helped us to offset the high fuel prices and inflationary pressures experienced in

2008 and to position us to improve merchandise margins in fiscal 2010

We are extremely cost conscious and so our fourth business priority is to make the business more

lean and efficient in every way In fiscal 2008 we refocused the organization on the success of our

Pier Imports stores This meant exiting all non-core businesses We eliminated the e-commerce

business the catalog business and the clearance stores and closed the Pier Kids concept We
are now totally focused on our core businessthe Pier Imports retail stores

We have taken significant costs out of the business reducing overall SGA by approximately

$190 million from fiscal 2007 The permanent savings resulted from decreases in marketing

spend payroll and other general administrative costs We have significantly reduced our IT costs

and at the same time leveraged technology to increase the efficiency and effectiveness of our

business without compromising customer service and quality In fiscal 2010 we will be able to

reduce costs even more through continued technological and process improvements without

increasing the size of our IT footprint

The fifth business priority is to develop real estate strategies that protect both the short- and

long-term future of our Company We are the only home
specialty global importer with

nationwide network of stores We believe this is competitive advantage and will maintain it

However we had few more stores than needed to give us good coverage In February 2007 the

Company had over 1200 stores in its North American chain Since that time we have closed

119 locations and opened only five We judiciously review opportunities to improve the efficiency

of our store network through economic terminations natural expirations and renewal options

Since the economy weakened we have taken the opportunity to negotiate with our landlords to

achieve rental reductions which would improve profitability We are pleased with the support we

have received from our landlord community and have agreed to roughly $7 million in rental

savings for the upcoming fiscal year We will continue working with our landlords through fiscal

2010 and expect to achieve additional savings

We concluded in the summer of 2007 that we should sell our headquarters building In June

2008 we completed the sale to Chesapeake Energy Corporation for approximately $100 million

This sale had positive impact on both our balance sheet and liquidity We now lease

approximately half of the building on seven year lease

Our sixth business priority is to ensure that our marketing creates balance between bringing

customers to our stores in the short term and building our brand for the long term Initially we

reduced our marketing spend by eliminating marketing efforts that were not providing return



on our investment and concentrated our efforts on our most loyal customers As we began to

rebuild the brand message we tested different media and identified multiple channels that work
well for us

We have also enhanced our point-of-sale technology to include customer data capture that

provides information about our customers that can be used to assess the reach of our marketing
efforts and to more effectively target future marketing campaigns The revitalization of our

website pierl.com resulted in detailed pre-shopping resource that provides potential

customers with everything from furniture dimensions to copies of recent retail mailers to aid in

their decision making process Overall we saved $58 million dollars in marketing costs from
fiscal 2007 levels We believe that marketing budget of about $60 million is the

right level

Our seventh business priority is to give our customers rewarding and
satisfying shopping

experience All great shopping experiences begin and end with customer service We strive to

ensure that every store associate has the selling skills and tools required to give our customers

great service We have removed barriers that might otherwise reduce productivity and customer
interaction Our commitment to providing the best experience in retail brings our brand to life

and gives our customers reason to return to Pier Imports We are getting encouraging results

and are achieving higher conversion rates than before

You may have noticed that we have redesigned our store layout by defining merchandise

departments and improving our in-store signage which makes it easier for our customer to

experience our unique merchandise assortment We continue to improve our visual

merchandising efforts to create the feel of trading bazaar that one might find in the countries

of origin for our merchandise We make frequent changes to the front of our stores to highlight

new merchandise and to ensure our stores are relevant and in line with the customers mindset

The final business
priority for our company is to develop strong performance culture We know

that the execution of our business priorities is dependent upon our ability to attract motivate
and retain quality associates in very competitive environment In 2008 we established set of

values that support our business priorities and define behaviors that are expected of our
associates To reinforce these behaviors and to align their efforts with overall company goals we
developed incentive programs that reward our associates in both the long and short term These
rewards are performance based and are dependent on individual performance in effective area

management teamwork and expense control in addition to the companys overall performance
This ensures that every member of the management team understands how their individual

efforts contribute to the successful execution of our eight business priorities and ultimately to

our return to profitability Our overall performance management program is designed to retain

talented individuals and to develop them into the future leaders of our company

Our efforts in executing each of these business priorities should have paved the way for fiscal

2009 to be the year that we broke even Unfortunately the dramatic change in the United States

economy as result of the troubled financial markets in September 2008 had significant impact

on our business as consumers grew fearful and cut discretionary spending We experienced

double-digit declines in traffic from the middle of September until December 2008 The drop in

traffic was so significant that the modest gains seen in conversion rates were unable to offset the

drop in traffic and the decline in average ticket and as result both our comparable store sales

and our operating profit declined compared to last year



The challenging economic environment might have had more catastrophic impact had we not

improved our balance sheet and liquidity position The liquidity generated from the sale of our

corporate headquarters as well as the reduction of our investment in inventory provided us the

wherewithal to withstand the unanticipated sales declines experienced in the third and fourth

quarters Subsequent to the end of fiscal 2009 one of our foreign subsidiaries purchased

$79 million dollars of our unsecured convertible notes The purchase was made at significant

discount using only $27 million of cash to reduce our consolidated outstanding debt by

$79 million The opportunity to execute the repurchase of the convertible notes significantly

strengthened our financial position In our proxy statement that is included with this letter we

are asking for your approval on three proposed amendments to our certificate of incorporation

that will provide our Board continued flexibility in guiding our company and protecting our

shareholders interests

Our company has transformed over the last two years Without the clear strategies
that resulted

in the improvements to our merchandise and stores and the significant
reductions in our costs

and without having had the ability to take the steps we took to improve liquidity and strengthen

our balance sheet this recession could well have affected our company more dramatically than it

has Rest assured our Board our management team and our associates continue to work

diligently every day to ensure the success of our company

As we look down the road on our journey it is difficult to predict what the economy holds in

store for fiscal 2010 Clarity on our mission and our strategy has served us well and we remain

committed to our course of action in executing our eight business priorities We firmly believe

that some things are worth fighting for and successful Pier Imports is one of them We know

with the continued support of our suppliers vendors customers and our talented and

enthusiastic associates across the entire organization that together we will restore shareholder

value and will return the luster to our well-loved company

Alexander Smith Tom Thomas

President and Chief Executive Officer Chairman Board of Directors
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PART

Item Business

General Development of Business

Pier Imports Inc was incorporated as Delaware corporation in 1986 Throughout this report
references to the Company include Pier Imports Inc and its consolidated subsidiaries References

to Pier Imports relate to the Companys retail locations operating under the name Pier Imports
References to Pier Kids relate to the Companys retail locations that operated under the name Pier

Kids

On March 20 2006 the Company announced the sale of its subsidiary based in the United

Kingdom The Pier Retail Group Limited The Pier The Pier has been included in discontinued

operations in the Companys financial statements for fiscal 2007 and prior years All discussions in this

report relate to continuing operations unless stated otherwise

In fiscal 2009 the Company closed 26 stores and opened one new Pier Imports store

relocation of an existing store in Flushing New York During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009 the

Company began negotiating with landlords to achieve rental reductions across its store portfolio

Unsuccessful rental reduction negotiations may lead to the execution of early termination agreements
for underperforming store locations The Company expects these negotiations to be on-going

throughout the upcoming fiscal year

As of the end of fiscal 2009 the Company maintained regional distribution center facilities in or

near Baltimore Maryland Chicago Illinois Columbus Ohio Fort Worth Texas Ontario California

Savannah Georgia and Tacoma Washington The Company plans to cease operations at its Company
owned 514000 square foot distribution center near Chicago Illinois by the end of the first quarter of

fiscal 2010

The Company has an arrangement to supply Grupo Sanborns SA de CiV Grupo Sanborns
with merchandise to be sold primarily in store within store format in certain stores operated by

Grupo Sanborns subsidiaries Sears Roebuck de Mexico S.A de C.V Sears Mexico and Dorians

Tijuana S.A de C.V Dorians The agreement with Grupo Sanborns will expire January 2012
The agreement is structured in manner which substantially insulates the Company from currency
fluctuations in the value of the Mexican peso In fiscal 2009 Grupo Sanborns opened three new store

within storelocations and one free standing location offering Pier Imports merchandise As of

February 28 2009 Pier Imports merchandise was offered in 34 Sears Mexico stores and one Dorians

store Grupo Sanborns has no plans for new store within store or free-standing locations in

Mexico during fiscal 2010 Since Sears Mexico operates these locations the Company has no employee

or real estate obligations in Mexico

The Company has product distribution agreement with Sears Roebuck de Puerto Rico Inc

Sears Puerto Rico which allows Sears Puerto Rico to market and sell Pier Imports merchandise

in store within store format in certain Sears Puerto Rico stores The Company has no employee

or real estate obligations in Puerto Rico because Sears Puerto Rico operates these locations As of

February 28 2009 Pier Imports merchandise was offered in seven Sears Puerto Rico stores Sears

Puerto Rico has no plans for new store within store locations in Puerto Rico during fiscal 2010

During fiscal 2007 the Company sold its credit card operations which included its credit card

bank located in Omaha Nebraska that operated under the name Pier National Bank NA the

Bank to Chase Bank USA N.A Chase The sale was comprised of the Companys proprietary

credit card receivables certain charged-off accounts and the common stock of the Bank The Company
and Chase have entered into long term program agreement Under this agreement the Company



continues to support the card through marketing programs and receives payments over the life of the

agreement for transaction level incentives marketing support and other program terms

In August 2007 the Company discontinued its e-commerce business The Company continues to

use its web site wwwpierl .com for marketing and product information plus investor relations

purposes

Financial Information about Industiy Segments

In fiscal 2009 the Company conducted business as one operating segment consisting of the retail

sale of decorative home furnishings gifts and related items

Financial information with respect to the Companys business is found in the Companys

Consolidated Financial Statements which are set forth in Item herein

Narrative Description of Business

The specialty retail operations
of the Company consist of retail stores operating under the name

Pier Imports selling wide variety of furniture decorative home furnishings dining and kitchen

goods epicurean products bath and bedding accessories candles and other specialty items for the

home

On February 28 2009 the Company operated 1011 Pier Imports stores in the United States and

81 Pier Imports stores in Canada During fiscal 2009 the Company supplied merchandise and

licensed the Pier Imports name to Grupo Sanborns and Sears Puerto Rico which sold Pier Imports

merchandise primarily in store within store format in 34 Sears Mexico stores one Dorian store

and in seven Sears Puerto Rico stores Pier Imports stores in the United States and Canada average

approximately 9900 gross square feet which includes an average of approximately 7900 square feet of

retail selling space The stores consist of freestanding units located near shopping centers or malls and

in-line positions in major shopping centers Pier Imports operates in all major U.S metropolitan

areas and many of the primary smaller markets Pier Imports stores generally have their highest sales

volumes during November and December as result of the holiday selling season In fiscal 2009 net

sales of the Company totaled $1.3 billion

Pier Imports offers unique selection of merchandise ºonsisting of more than 4000 items

imported from over 50 countries around the world While the broad categories
of Pier Imports

merchandise remain fairly constant individual items within these merchandise categories change

frequently in order to meet the changing demands and preferences
of customers The principal

categories of merchandise include the following

DECORATiVE ACCESSORIESThis merchandise group constitutes the broadest category of

merchandise in Pier Imports sales mix and contributed approximately 60% to Pier Imports

total U.S and Canadian retail sales in fiscal year 2009 59% in fiscal year 2008 and 57% in fiscal

year
2007 These items are imported primarily from Asian and European countries as well as

some domestic sources This category includes decorative wood accessories lamps vases dried and

artificialfiowØrs baskets ceramics dinnerware bath and fragrance products candles bedding

epicurean products and seasonal and gift items

FURNITUREThis merchandise group consists of furniture and furniture cushions to be used

in living dining office kitchen and bedroom areas sunrooms and on patios Also included in this

group are wall decorations and mirrors This product group constituted approximately 40% of Pier

Imports total U.S and Canadian retail sales in fiscal year 2009 41% in fiscal year 2008 and 43%

in fiscal year 2007 These goods are imported from variety of countries such as Vietnam

Malaysia Brazil Thailand China the Philippines India and Indonesia and are also obtained from

domestic sources This merchandise is made of metal or handcrafted natural materials including

rattan pine beech rubberwood and selected hardwoods with either natural stained painted or

upholstered finishes



Pier Imports merchandise largely consists of items that feature significant degree of

handcraftsmanship and are mostly imported directly from foreign suppliers For the most part the

imported merchandise is handcrafted in cottage industries and small factories Pier Imports has

enjoyed long-standing relationships with many vendors and agents and is not dependent on any

particular supplier The Company believes alternative sources of merchandise could be procured over

relatively short period of time if necessary In selecting the source of merchandise Pier Imports

considers quality dependability of delivery and cost During fiscal 2009 Pier Imports sold

merchandise imported from over 50 different countries with over 40% of its sales derived from

merchandise produced in China The remainder of its merchandise is sourced from India Indonesia

and .other countries around the world

Imported merchandise and portion of domestic purchases are delivered to the Companys
distribution centers unpacked and made available for shipment to the various stores in each

distribution centers region

The Company through one of its wholly owned subsidiaries owns number of federally registered

trademarks and service marks under which Pier Imports stores do business Additionally certain

subsidiaries of the Company have registered and have applications pending for the registration of

certain other Pier Imports trademarks and service marks in the United States and in numerous

foreign countries The Company believes that its marks have significant value and are important in its

marketing efforts The Company maintains policy of pursuing registration of its marks and opposing

any infringement of its marks

The Company operates in the highly competitive specialty retail business and competes primarily

with specialty sections of large department stores furniture and decorative home furnishings retailers

small specialty stores and mass merchandising discounters

The Company allows customers to return merchandise within reasonable time after the date of

purchase without limitation as to reason Most returns occur within 30 days of the date of purchase

The Company monitors the level of returns and maintains reserve for future returns based on

historical experience and other known factors

On February 28 2009 the Company employed approximately 16700 associates in the United

States and Canada of which approximately 3500 were full-time employees and 13200 were part-time

employees

Financial Information about Geographic Areas

Information required by this Item is found in Note of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements

Available Information

The Company makes available free of charge through its Internet web site address wwwpierl.com
its annual reports on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form 10-Q current reports on Form 8-K and

amendments to those reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission the SEC pursuant

to Section 13a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as soon as reasonably practicable after it

electronically files such material with or furnishes such material to the SEC

Certain statements contained in Item Item 1A Item Item 7A Item and elsewhere in this

report may constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 The Company may also make forward-looking statements in other reports filed

with the SEC and in material delivered to the Companys shareholders Forward-looking statements

provide current expectations of future events based on certain assumptions These statements

encompass information that does not directly relate to any historical or current fact and often may be



identified with words such as anticipates believes expects estimates intends plans
projects and other similar expressions Managements expectations and assumptions regarding

planned store openings and closings financing of Company obligations from operations success of its

marketing merchandising and store operations strategies and other future results are subject to risks

uncertainties and other factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from the anticipated

results or other expectations expressed in the forward-looking statements Risks and uncertainties that

may affect Company operations and performance include among others the effects of terrorist attacks

or other acts of war conflicts or war involving the United States or its allies or trading partners labor

strikes weather conditions or natural disasters volatility of fuel and utility costs the on-going recession

and related financial crisis and the actions taken by the United States and other countries to stimulate

the economy or to prevent the worsening of the financial crisis the general strength of the economy
and levels of consumer spending consumer confidence the availability of suitable sites for locating

stores and distribution centers the availability of qualified labor force and management the

availability and proper functioning of technology and communications systems supporting the

Companys key business processes the ability of the Company to import merchandise from foreign

countries without significantly restrictive tariffs duties or quotas and the ability of the Company to

source ship and deliver items of acceptable quality to its U.S distribution centers at reasonable prices

and rates and in timely fashion The foregoing risks and uncertainties are in addition to others

discussed elsewhere in this report which may also affect Company operations and performance The

Company assumes no obligation to update or otherwise revise its forward-looking statements even if

experience or future changes make it clear that any projected results expressed or implied will not be

realized

Executive Officers of the Company

ALEXANDER SMITH age 56 has been director of Pier Imports has served as President

and Chief Executive Officer and has been member of Pier Imports Executive Committee since

February 19 2007 From March 2004 to February 18 2007 Mr Smith served as the Senior Executive

Vice President Group President of The TJX Companies Inc From 2001 to March 2004 Mr Smith

served as Executive Vice President Group Executive International of The TJX Companies Inc

CHARLES TURNER age 52 has served as Executive Vice President of the Company since

April 2002 and has served as Chief Financial Officer of the Company since August 1999 He served as

Senior Vice President of Finance of the Company from August 1999 to April 2002 He served as Senior

Vice President of Stores of the Company from August 1994 to August 1999 and served as Controller

and Principal Accounting Officer of the Company from January 1992 to August 1994

GREGORY HUMENESKY age 57 has served as Executive Vice President of Human

Resources of the Company since February 2005 Prior to joining the Company he served as Senior

Vice President of Human Resources at Zale Corporation from April 1996 to February 2005

JAY JACOBS age 54 served as Executive Vice President of Merchandising of the Company

from April 2002 to March 2009 He served as Senior Vice President of Merchandising of the Company

from May 1995 to April 2002 He served as Vice President of Divisional Merchandising of Pier

Imports Inc from May 1993 to May 1995 and served as Director of Divisional Merchandising

of Pier Imports U.S Inc from July 1991 to May 1993 On March 2009 Mr Jacobs announced

his retirement from the Company As of that date he will no longer serve as Executive Vice President

of Merchandising for the Company He will however continue his employment through March 2010

to ensure continuity throughout the transition of his duties

SHARON LEITE age 46 has served as Executive Vice President of Stores of the Company

since September 2007 Prior to joining the Company she served as Vice President of Store Operations

at Bath Body Works from April 2001 to August 2007



MICHAEL CARTER age 50 has served as Senior Vice President and General Counsel

Secretary of the Company since December 2005 He served as Vice PresidentLegal Affairs of Pier

Imports Inc from April 1999 to December 2005 He served as Corporate Counsel of Pier

Imports Inc from March 1990 until April 1999 He served as Assistant Secretary of the

Company from April 1991 until December 2005

The officers of the Company are appointed by the Board of Directors hold office ujitil their

successors are elected and qualified and/or until their earlier death resignation or removal None of

the above executive officers has any family relationship with any other of such officers or with any

director of the Company None of such officers was selected pursuant to any arrangement or

understanding between him and any other person

Item 1A Risk Factors

The following information describes certain significant risks and uncertainties inherent in the

Companys business that should be carefully considered along with other information contained

elsewhere in this report and in other filings when making an investment decision with respect to the

Company If one or more of these risks actually occurs the impact on the Companys operations

financial position or liquidity could be material and the business could he harmed substantially

Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to the Company or that it currently believes are

immaterial may also adversely affect the Companys business financial condition future results of

operations and cash flow In addition tq the risks discussed below the Company is also subject to

certain market risks as described in Item 7A to this report

Strategic Risks and Strategy Execution Risks

The deterioration of the United States economy and its impact on consumer confidence and spending

could continue for an unspecified period of time and could further adversely impact the Company results of

operations

The United States economy remains in deep recession and is suffering from near collapse of

the credit and financial markets The market value of domestic and foreign companies has declined

significantly since August 2008 which has adversely affected the savings and investments of United

States consumers Consumer confidence and spending have deteriorated significantly as result of this

current market turmoil The difficult economic situation faced in the United States and other countries

may not end in the near future and consumer confidence and spending could remain depressed and

possibly deteriorate even further During times of economic uncertainty consumers tend to sacrifice

purchases of discretionary items including the Companys merchandise which could continue to

adversely impact the Company financial results and turnaround plan

The success of the business is dependent on factors affecting consumer spending that are not controllable

by the Company

Consumer spending including spending for the home and home-related furnishings are further

dependent upon factors besides general economic conditions and include but are not limited to levels

of employment disposable consumer income prevailing interest rates consumer debt costs of fuel

inflation recession and fears of recession war and fears of war inclement weather tax rates and rate

increases consumer confidence in future economic conditions and political conditions and consumer

perceptions of personal well being and security Unfavorable changes in factors affecting discretionary

spending could reduce demand for the Companys products and therefore lower sales and negatively

impact the business and its operating results



The Companys turnaround strategy may cause disruption in operations and may not be successful

The Company began implementing strategy during fiscal 2008 for returning the Company to

profitability The turnaround strategy may negatively impact the Companys operations which could

include disruptions from the realignment of operational functions within thLe home office and

distribution centers changes in the store administration reporting structure and changes in the

Companys product assortments or marketing strategies These changes could adversely affect the

Companys business operations and financial results While the Company believes any disruptions would

be short-term it is unknown whether the impact would be material In addition if the Companys

turnaround strategy is not successful takes longer than initially projected or is not executed effectively

the Companys business operations and financial results could be adversely affected

The Company must be able to anticipate identify and respond to changing trends and customer

preferences for home furnishings

The success of the Companys specialty retail business depends largely upon its ability to predict

trends in home furnishings consistently and to provide merchandise that satisfies consumer demand in

timely manner Consumer preferences often change and may not be reasonably predicted majority

of the Companys merchandise is manufactured purchased and imported from countries around the

world and may be ordered well in advance of the applicable selling season Extended lead times may

make it difficult to respond rapidly to changes in consumer demand and as result the Company may

be unable to react quickly and source needed merchandise In addition the Companys vendors may

not have the ability to handle its increased demand for product The seasonal nature of the business

leads the Company to purchase and requires it to carry significant amount of inventory prior to its

peak selling season As result the Company may be vulnerable to evolving home furnishing trends

changes in customer preferences and pricing shifts and may misjudge the timing and selection of

merchandise purchases The Companys failure to anticipate predict and respond in timely manner to

changing home furnishing trends could lead to lower sales and additional discounts and markdowns in

an effort to clear merchandise which could have negative impact on merchandise margins and in turn

the results of operations

Failure to control merchandise returns could negatively impact the business

The Company has established provision for estimated merchandise eturns based upon historical

experience and other known factors If actual returns are greater than those projected by management

additional reductions of revenue could be recorded in the future Also to the extent that returned

merchandise is damaged the Company may not receive full retail value from the resale of the returned

merchandise Introductions of new merchandise changes in merchandise mix merchandise quality

issues changes in consumer confidence or other competitive and general economic conditions may

cause actual returns to exceed the provision for estimated merchandise returns An increase in

merchandise returns that exceeds the Companys current provisions could negatively impact the

business and operating results

disruption in the operation of the domestic portion of the Companys supply chain could impact its

ability to deliver merchandise to its stores and customers which could impact its sales and results of

operations

The Company maintains regional distribution centers in Maryland Illinois Ohio Texas California

Georgia and Washington At these distribution centers merchandise is received allocated and shipped

to the Companys stores Major catastrophic events such as fire or flooding malfunction or disruption

of the information systems or shipping problems could result in distribution delays of merchandise to

the Companys stores and customers Such disruptions could have negative impact on the Companys

sales and results of operations



Factors that may or may not be controllable by the Company may adversely affect the Companys

financial performance

Increases in the Companys expenses that are beyond the Companys control including items such

as increases in fuel and transportation costs higher interest rates increases in losses from damaged

merchandise inflation fluctuations in foreign currency rates higher costs of labor insurance and

healthcare increases in postage and media costs higher tax rates and changes in laws and regulations

including accounting standards may negatively impact the Companys operating results

Failure to successfully manage and execute the Companys marketing initiatives could have negative

impact on the business

The success and growth of the Company is partially dependent on generating customer traffic in

order to gain sales momentum in its stores Successful marketing efforts require the ability to reach

customers through their desired mode of communication utilizing various media outlets Media

placement decisions are generally made months in advance of the scheduled release date The

Companys inability to accurately predict its consumers preferences or to utilize the desired mode of

communication may negatively impact the business and operating results

Changes to estimates related to the Companys property and equipment or operating results that are

lower than its current estimates at certain store locations may cause the Company to incur impairment

charges on certain long-lived assets

The Company makes certain estimates and projections with regards to individual store operations

as well as overall Company performance in connection with its impairment analyses for long-lived

assets in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 144 Accounting for the

Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets An impairment charge is required when the carrying

value of the asset exceeds the estimated fair value or undiscounted future cash flows of the asset The

projection of future cash flows used in this analysis requires the use of judgment and number of

estimates and projections of future operating results If actual results differ from the Companys

estimates additional charges for asset impairments may be required in the future If impairment

charges are significant the Companys results of operations could be adversely affected

Risks Related to Store Profitability

The Companys success depends in part on its ability to operate in desirable locations at reasonable

rental rates and to close underperforming stores at or before the conclusion of their lease terms

The profitability of the business is dependent on operating the current store base at reasonable

profit opening and operating new stores at reasonable profit and identifying and closing

underperforming stores For majority of the Companys current store base large portion of stores

operating expense is the cost associated with leasing the location Management actively monitors

individual store performance and attempts to negotiate rent reductions to ensure stores can remain

profitable or have the ability to rebound to profitable state Current locations may not continue to be

desirable as demographics change and the Company may choose to close an underperforming store

before its lease expires and incur lease termination costs associated with that closing The Company
cannot give assurance that opening new stores or an increase in closings will result in greater profits

Failure to attract and retain an effective management team or changes in the costs or availability of

suitable workforce to manage and support the Companys stores and distribution facilities could adversely

affect the business

The Companys success is dependent in large part on being able to successfully attract motivate

and retain qualified management team and employees Sourcing qualified candidates to fill important



positions within the Company especially management in the highly competitive retail environment may

prove to be challenge The inability to recruit and retain such individuals could result in turnover in

the home office stores and the distribution facilities which could have an adverse effect on the

business Management will continue to assess the Companys compensation and benefit structure in an

effort to attract future qualified candidates or retain current experienced management team members

Occasionally the Company experiences union organizing activities in its non-unionized distribution

facilities These types of activities may result in work slowdowns or stoppages and higher labor costs

Any increase in costs associated with labor organization at the distribution facilities could result in

higher costs to distribute inventory and could negatively impact merchandise margins

The Company operates in highly competitive retail environment with companies offering similar

merchandise and if customers are lost to the Companys competitors sales could decline

The Companys retail locations operate in the highly competitive specialty retail business

competing with specialty sections of large department stores home furnishing stores small specialty

stores and mass merchandising discounters Management believes that as it is competing for sales it

does so on the basis of pricing and quality of products constantly changing merchandise assortment

visual presentation of its merchandise and customer service The Company could also experience added

short-term competition when other retailers are liquidating merchandise for various reasons If the

Company is unable to maintain competitive position it could experience negative pressure on retail

prices and loss of customers which in turn could result in reduced merchandise margins and operating

results

The companys business is subject to seasonal variations with significant portion of its sales and

earnings occurring during two months of the year

Approximately 25% of the Companys sales generally occur during the November-December

holiday selling season Failure to predict consumer demand correctly during these months could result

in lost sales or gross margin erosion if merchandise must be marked down significantly to clear

inventory

The Companys business may be harmed by adverse weather conditions and natural disasters

Extreme or undesirable weather can affect customer traffic in retail stores as well as customer

shopping behavior Natural disasters such as earthquakes weather phenomena and events causing

infrastructure failures could adversely affect any of the Companys retail locations distribution centers

administrative facilities ports or locations of its suppliers domestically and in foreign countries

Risks Associated with Dependence on Technology

The Company is heavily dependent on various kinds of technology in the iperation of its business

Failure of any critical software applications technology infrastructure telecommunications data

communications or networks cOuld have material adverse effect on the Companys ability to manage

the merchandise supply chain sell merchandise accomplish payment functions or report financial data

Although the Company maintains off-site data backups concentration of technology related risk does

exist in certain locations

The Company outsources certain business processes to third-party vendors that subject the Company to

risks including disruptions in business and increased costs

Some business processes
that are dependent on technology are outsourced to third parties Such

processes include gift card tracking and authorization credit card authorization and processing
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insurance claims processing U.S customs filings and reporting certain payroll processing and tax

filings and record keeping for retirement plans The Company makes diligent effort to ensure that all

providers of outsourced services are observing proper internal control practices such as redundant

processing facilities however there are no guarantees that failures will not occur Failure of third

parties to provide adequate services could have an adverse effect on the Companys results of

operations financial condition or ability to accomplish its financial and management reporting

Failure to protect the integrity and security of individually identifiable data of the Company customers

and employees could expose the Company to litigation and damage the Companys reputation

The Company receives and maintains certain personal information about its customers and

employees The use of this information by the Company is regulated at the international federal and

state levels as well as by certain third party contracts If the Companys security and information

systems are compromised or our business associates fail to comply with these laws and regulations and

this information is obtained by unauthorized persons or used inappropriately it could adversely affect

the Companys reputation as well as operations results of operations and financial condition and

could result in litigation against the Company or the imposition of penalties As privacy and

information security laws and regulations change the Company may incur additional costs to ensure it

remains in compliance

Regulatory Risks

The Company is subject to laws and regulatory requirements in many jurisdictions Changes in these

laws and requirements may result in additional costs to the Company including the costs of compliance as

well as potential penalties for non-compliance

The Company operates
in many local state and federal taxing jurisdictions including foreign

countries In most of these jurisdictions the Company is required to collect state and local sales taxes

at the point of sale and remit them to the appropriate taxing authority The Company is also subject to

income taxes excise taxes franchise taxes payroll taxes and other special taxes The Company is also

required to maintain various kinds of business and commercial licenses to operate its stores and other

facilities Rates of taxation are beyond the Companys control and increases in such rates or taxation

methods and rules could have material impact on the Companys profitability Failure to comply with

laws concerning the collection and remittance of taxes and with licensing requirements could also

subject the Company to financial penalties or business interruptions

Local state and federal legislation
also has potential material effect on the Companys

profitability or ability to operate its business Compliance with certain legislation carries with it

significant costs The Company is subject to oversight by many governmental agencies in the course of

operating its business because of its numerous locations large number of employees contact with

consumers and importation and exportation of product Complying with regulations may cause the

Company to incur significant expenses including the costs associated with periodic audits Failure to

comply may also cause additional costs in the form of penalties

Risks Associated with International frade

As retailer of imported merchandise the Company is subject to certain risks that typically do not affect

retailers of domestically produced merchandise

The Company may order merchandise well in advance of delivery and generally takes title to the

merchandise at the time it is loaded for transport to designated U.S destinations Global political

unrest war threats of war terrorist acts or threats especially
threats to foreign and U.S ports could

affect the Companys ability to import merchandise from certain countries Fluctuations in foreign

currency exchange rates and the relative value of the U.S dollar restrictions on the convertibility of
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the dollar and other currencies duties taxes and other charges on imports dock strikes import quota

systems and other restrictions sometimes placed on foreign trade can affect the price delivery and

availability of imported merchandise as well as exports to the Companys stores in other countries The

inability to import merchandise from China and other countries unavailability of adequate shipping

capacity at reasonable rates or the imposition of significant tariffs could have material adverse effect

on the results of operations of the Company Freight costs contribute substantial amount to the cost

of imported merchandise Monitoring of foreign vendors compliance with U.S laws and Company

standards including quality and safety standards is more difficult than monitoring of domestic vendors

The United States government has the authority to enforce trade agreements resolve trade

disputes and open foreign markets to U.S goods and services The United States government may also

impose trade sanctions on foreign countries that are deemed to violate trade agreements or maintain

laws or practices that are unjustifiable and restrict U.S commerce In these situations the United

States government may increase duties on imports into the United States from one or more foreign

countries In this event the Company could be adversely affected by the imposition of trade sanctions

In addition the United States maintains in effect variety of additional international trade laws

under which the Companys ability to import may be affected from time to time including but not

limited to the antidumping law the countervailing duty law the safeguards law and laws designed to

protect intellectual property rights Although the Company may not be directly involved in particular

trade dispute under any of these laws its ability to import or the terms and conditions under which it

can continue to import may be affected by the outcome of such disputes

In particular because the Company imports merchandise from countries around the world the

Company may be affected from time to time by antidumping petitions filed with the United States

Commerce Department and International Trade Commission by U.S producers of competing products

alleging that foreign manufacturers are selling their own products at prices in the United States that

are less than the prices that they charge in their home country market or in third country markets or at

less than their cost of production Such petitions if successful could significantly increase the United

States import duties on those products In that event the Company might possibly decide to pay the

increased duties thereby possibly increasing the Companys price to consumers Alternatively the

Company might decide to source the productor similar product from different country not subject

to increased duties or else discontinue the importation and sale of the product

In recent years dispute resolution processes have been utilized to resolve disputes regarding

market access between the European Union China the United States and other countries In some

instances these trade disputes can lead to threats by countries of sanctions against each other which

can include import prohibitions and increased duty rates on imported items The Company considers

any agreement that reduces tariff and non-tariff barriers in international trade to be beneficial to its

business Any type of sanction on imports is likely to increase the Companys import costs or limit the

availability of merchandise purchased from sanctioned countries In that case the Company may be

required to seek similar merchandise from other countries

Risks Relating to Liquidity

The disruption in the global credit and equity markets could adversely impact the Companys ability to

obtain financing on acceptable terms or could increase the cost of obtaining credit

From fiscal 2006 through fiscal 2009 the Company has incurred net losses and had negative cash

flows from operations In the future the Company may become dependent on the availability of

adequate capital to fund its operations carry out its turnaround strategy or refinance existing

indebtedness if necessary Disruption in the global credit and equity markets and future disruptions in

the financial markets could adversely affect the Companys ability to enter into new financing

agreements refinance the Companys current indebtedness if necessary or obtain funding through the
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issuance of the Companys securities continued decline in economic conditions could also resUlt in

continued difficulties for financial institutions and other parties that the Company does business with

which could potentially affect the Companys ability to access financing under existing arrangements or

to otherwise recover amounts as they become due under the Companys contractual agreements The

inability of the Company to obtain financing as needed on acceptable terms in order to finance its

operations may have material adverse impact on the Companys business financial condition and

results of operations

Insufficient cash flows from operations could result in the substantial utilization of the Companys

secured credit facility which may impose certain financial covenants

The Company maintains secured credit facility to enable it to issue merchandise and special

purpose standby letters of credit as well as to occasionally fund working capital requirements

Borrowings under the credit facility are subject to borrowing base calculation consisting of

percentage of certain eligible assets of the Company and is subject to advance rates and commercially

reasonable reserves Substantial utilization of the availability under the borrowing base will result in

various restrictions on the Company including restricted ability of the Company to repurchase its

common stock or pay dividends dominion over the Companys cash accounts and compliance with

minimum fixed charge coverage ratio The minimum fixed charge coverage ratio assuming availability

below the required minimum would not have been met during fiscal 2009 See Note to the Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements for additional discussion regarding the Companys secured credit facility

Significant decreases in cash flow from operations and investing could result in the Companys

borrowing increased amounts under the credit facility to fund operational needs Increases in utilization

of letters of credit and/or increased cash borrowings could result in the Company being subject to these

limitations

Risks Relating to Common Stock

The Company must remain in compliance with the New York Stock Exchanges requirements for the

continued listing of its common stock on the exchange

The Companys common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange NYSE Continued

listing on the NYSE is contingent upon the Companys ability to meet certain listing criteria including

among others an average closing share price over consecutive 30 trading-day period of at least $1.00

On May 2009 the Company received notice from NYSE Regulation Inc NYSE Regulation that

the Company was in compliance with this requirement Previously on December 15 2008 the Company

had received notice from NYSE Regulation that the Company was not in compliance with this

requirement The Company notified NYSE Regulation within the required ten business days that it

intended to cure the deficiency and that its Board of Directors had met and was considering all

strategic measures to cure the non-compliance with the listing standard

Another criteria for continued listing on the NYSE is an average global market capitalization over

consecutive 30 trading-day period of at least $25 million The NYSE will promptly initiate suspension

and delisting procedures with respect to company if it is not in compliance with this standard As of

May 2009 the Companys average global market capitalization over consecutive 30 trading-day

period was greater than $25 million

On February 26 2009 the Company received notice from the NYSE that it had suspended its

$1.00 minimum price requirement on temporary basis initially through June 30 2009 On January 23

2009 the NYSE temporarily changed to $15 million from $25 million the consecutive 30 trading-day

average global market capitalization required of listed issues On February 26 2009 this temporary

change was extended by the NYSE until June 30 2009
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Failure to maintain the NYSE listing could negatively impact the Company by reducing the

number of investors willing to hold or acquire the Companys stock which could limit the ability to

raise capital by issuing additional shares in the future It could also negatively impact the perception of

the Companys financial situation which may cause some vendors creditors and other business partners

to impose less favorable terms on th Company or cease to conduct business with the Company In

addition the perceived value of equity incentive awards granted to employees could deteriorate

significantly thereby negating the goal of retaining key employees with equity incentive awards

Item lB Unresolved Stall Comments

None
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Item Properties

The Company is headquartered in Fort Worth Texas In August 2004 the Company completed

construction of corporate headquarters facility which contains approximately 460000 square feet of

office space On June 2008 the Company sold its headquarters building and accompanying land As

part
of the transaction the Company entered into lease agreement to rent approximately 250000

square feet of office space in the building for primary term of seven years beginning on the closing

date with one three-year renewal option and right to terminate the lease at the end of the fifth lease

year

The Company leases the majority of its retail stores its warehouses and regional space At

February 28 2009 the present
value of the Companys minimum future operating lease commitments

discounted at 10% totaled approximately $736.4 million The following table sets forth the distribution

of Pier Imports U.S and Canadian stores by state and province as of February 28 2009

United States

Alabama 15 Louisiana 15 Ohio 31

Alaska Maine Oklahoma

Arizona 25 Maryland 24 Oregon 14

Arkansas Massachusetts 24 Pennsylvania 39

California 114 Michigan 33 Rhode Island

Colorado 19 Minnesota 20 South Carolina 17

Connecticut 21 Mississippi
South Dakota

Delaware Missouri 18 Tennessee 18

Florida 78 Montana Texas 83

Georgia 30 Nebraska Utah

Hawaii Nevada Virginia 35

Idaho New Hampshire Washington 28

Illinois 42 New Jersey 35 West Virginia

Indiana 18 New Mexico Wisconsin 19

Iowa New York 45 Wyoming

Kansas North Carolina 34

Kentucky 11 North Dakota

Canada

Alberta 11 New Brunswick Ontario 34

British Columbia 14 Newfoundland Quebec 14

Manitoba Nova Scotia Saskatchewan

The Company currently owns or leases distribution center space of approximately 4.5 million

square feet The Company also acquires temporary distribution center space from time to time through

short-term leases During fiscal 2009 the Company vacated approximately 350000 square feet of leased

distribution center space near Baltimore The lease on this space expires
in July 2009 In February

2009 the Company announced plans to vacate Company-owned distribution center near Chicago
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Illinois during the first quarter of fiscal 2010 As of February 28 2009 the Company owned or leased

under operating leases the following warehouse properties in or near the following cities

Owned/Leased

Location Approx Sq Ft Facility

Baltimore Maryland 981000 sq ft Leased

Chicago Illinois 514000 sq ft Owned

Columbus Ohio 527000 sq ft Leased

Fort Worth Texas 460000 sq ft Owned

Ontario California 747000 sq ft Leased

Savannah Georgia 784000 sq ft Leased

Tacoma Washington 451000 sq ft Leased

Item Legal Proceedings

The Company is party to various legal proceedings and claims in the ordinary course of its

business The Company believes that the outcome of these matters will not have material adverse

effect on its consolidated financial position results of operations or liquidity

Item Submission of Matters to Vote of Security Holders

There were no matters submitted to vote of the Companys security holders during the fourth

quarter of the Companys 2009 fiscal year

PART II

Item Market for the Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer

Purchases of Equity Securities

Market Prices of Common Stock

The following table shows the high and low closing sale prices of the Companys common stock on

the New York Stock Exchange the NYSE as reported in the consolidated transaction reporting

system for each
quarter of fiscal 2009 and 2008

Market Price

Fiscal 2009 Hngh Low

First quarter $8.18 $4.91

Second quarter 7.10 3.14

Third quarter 4.75 0.38

Fourth quarter 0.69 0.21

Fiscal 2008 High Low

First quarter $8.00 $6.48

Second quarter 8.93 5.84

Third quarter 6.52 3.67

Fourth quarter 6.93 3.28

Number of Holders of Record

The Companys common stock is traded on the NYSE As of April 30 2009 there were

approximately 10000 shareholders of record of the Companys common stock Please see Item 1A for

discussion regarding the risks surrounding the Companys common stock
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Dividends

In fiscal 2007 the Company announced that its Board of Directors discontinued the Companys

quarterly cash dividend The Company believed that discontinuing the cash dividend would provide

financial flexibility as it executed its turnaround strategy The Company did not pay any cash dividends

in fiscal years
2009 or 2008 and does not currently anticipate paying cash dividends in fiscal 2010 The

Companys dividend policy in the near term will depend upon the earnings financial condition and

capital needs of the Company and other factors deemed relevant by the Companys Board of Directors

As of February 28 2009 the Company was restricted under its secured credit facility from paying

certain dividends Dividend payments are not restricted by the Companys secured credit facility unless

the availability under the Companys credit facility over specified period of time is projected to be

less than $97.5 million See Note to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion

of the Companys secured credit facility

Performance Graph

The following graph compares the five year cumulative total shareholder return for the Companys

common stock against the Standard Poor 500 Stock Index and the Standard Poors Retail Stores

Composite Index The annual changes for the five-year period shOwn on the graph are based on the

assumption as required by the SECs rules that $100 had been invested in the Companys stock and in

each index on February 28 2004 and that all quarterly dividends were reinvested at the average of the

closing stock prices at the beginning and end of the quarter The total cumulative dollar returns shown

on the graph represent the value that such investments would have had on February 2009

PIER IMPORTS INC STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH
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Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers

There were no purchases of common stock of the Company made during -the three months ended

February 28 2009 by Pier Imports Inc or any affiliated purchaser of Pier Imports Inc as

defined in Rule lOb-18a3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
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Item Selected Financial Data

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Year Ended

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

in milhioiis except per share amounts

SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS2
Net sales $1320.7 1511.8 1623.2 1776.7 1825.3

Gross profit3 363.5 439.6 474.0 601.7 703.6

Selling general and administrative expenses4 453.5 487.9 649.0 588.3 549.6

Depreciation and amortization 30.6 39.8 51.2 56.2 55.8

Operating income loss 120.6 88.1 226.2 42.8 982

Nonoperating income and expenses net 8.1 5.3 1.9 0.9 0.9
Income loss from continuing operations before income

taxes 128.6 93.4 228.1 41.9 99.1

Income loss from continuing operations net of tax 129.3 96.0 227.2 27.5 62.8

Income loss from discontinued operations net of tax 12
Net income loss 129.3 96.0 227.6 39.8 60.5

PER SHARE AMOUNTS
Basic earnings loss from continuing operations 1.45 1.09 2.59 .32 .72

Diluted earniiigs loss from continuing operations 1.45 1.09 2.59 .32 .71

Basic earnings loss from discontinued operations .01 .14 .03
Diluted earnings loss from discontinued operations .01 .14 .03
Basic earnings loss 1.45 1.09 2.60 .46 .69

Diluted earnings loss 1.45 1.09 2.60 .46 .68

Cash dividends declared .20 .40 .40

Shareholders equity 1.62 3.04 4.13 6.81 7.63

OTHER FINANCIAL DATA
Working capital 299.9 307.3 349.4 486.1 387.4

Current ratio 2.3 2.1 2.2 2.7 2.3

Total assets 655.5 821.9 916.5 1169.9 1075.7

Long-term debt5 184.0 184.0 184.0 184.0 19.0

Shareholders equity 144.3 267.7 361.1 590.0 664.4

Weighted average diluted shares outstanding millions 88.9 88 87.4 86.6 88.8

Effective tax rate %6 0.5 2.8 0.4 34.5 36.7

Fiscal 2007 consisted of 53-week year All other fiscal years presented reflect 52-week years

Amounts are from continuing operations unless otherwise specified

Gross profit for fiscal 2007 included pre-tax charge of $32.5 million for inventory write-down

related to strategic decision made in the fourth quarter to liquidate certain inventory by the end

of the first quarter of fiscal 2008

The decrease in selling general and admiEistrative expense for fiscal years 2009 and 2008 relate

primarily to initiatives to reduce costs Company-wide See detailed description of these expenses in

Item Managements Discussion arid Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Selling general and administrative expense in fiscal 2007 included pre-tax charge of $32.3 million

related to impairment charges on long lived store level assets
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Subsequent to year end the Companys consolidated long-term debt was reduced to $105.1 million

as result of repurchase of portion of the Companys outstanding convertible debt See detailed

discussion in Note 13 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contained in Item of

this report

In fiscal years 2009 and 2008 the Company recorded minimal state and foreign tax provisions and

provided valuation allowance on the deferred tax asset arising from the tax benefit of fiscal 2009

and 2008 losses The decrease in the Companys effective tax rate for fiscal 2007 was the result of

recording valuation allowance on its deferred tax assets during the second quarter and only

recording tax benefit on the losses for the year that could be carried back
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

MANAGEMENT OVERVIEW

Introduction

Pier Imports Inc together with its consolidated subsidiaries the Company is global

importer and is one of North Americas largest specialty retailers of imported decorative home

furnishings and gifts The Company directly imports merchandise from over 50 countries and sells

wide variety of decorative accessories furniture collections bed and bath products candles housewares

and other seasonal assortments in its stores The Company conducts business as one operating segment

The Company operates stores in the United States and Canada under the name Pier Imports and
for portion of fiscal 2008 and in prior years Pier Kids As of February 28 2009 the Company

operated 1092 stores in the United States and Canada

Since April 2007 the Company has been executing turnaround strategy that is built on key

business priorities Over the first year fiscal 2008 the Company was able to execute its strategy

successfully revitalizing its merchandise offering significantly cutting costs and ultimately reporting its

first quarterly profit in two years
in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 Management anticipated that the

Company would continue to see improvements throughout fiscal 2009 As result of the dramatic

changes in the economic environment fiscal year 2009 did not turn out the way the Company had

anticipated

During the second half of fiscal 2009 the U.S economy significantly deteriorated as result of the

disruption in the credit and financial markets which created an environment of uncertainty for

consumers During this time of economic turmoil consumers sacrificed purchases of discretionary

items including the Companys merchandise which adversely affected the Companys sales and

financial performance Management believes that the current economic recession has delayed the

Companys return to profitability and now expects that its turnaround plan will take approximately two

years longer than originally anticipated

For the year comparable store sales declined 9.2% The decline in sales was primarily the result of

reduction in traffic and average ticket offset slightly by increases in conversion rate and units per
transaction Merchandise margins for the year improved slightly to 49.0% of sales Improvements in the

margin over last year were primarily the result of less aggressive liquidation of inventory as compared

to fiscal 2008 especially when comparing the first quarter of each year Despite the slowdown in the

economy the Company anticipates that it will be able to maintain or improve merchandise margins

during fiscal 2010 as it began the year with significantly reduced and clean inventory Changes in the

Companys merchandise assortments have allowed the Company to maintain lower inventory levels

without significantly jeopardizing sales

One of the key components of the Companys turnaround plan was improving its merchandise

offering To accomplish this the Company doubled the size of its buying staff during fiscal 2008 As

these buyers became more familiar with the Pier Imports customer and traveled to meet with the vast

network of vendors and agents during fiscal 2009 the Companys merchandise offering improved began

to resonate with customers and once again reflected the quirky and unique style that is synonymous
with the Companys brand This was evident throughout the year as the conversion rate levels

consistently improved Management expects that it will continuously evolve and finesse the Companys
merchandise offering and continue to test new products to ensure that the treasure hunt feel of its

stores is maintained

The Company believes that it can continue to reduce costs in the supply chain as result of

declining fuel costs and lower ocean freight rates Additionally costs in the supply chain will be

reduced as the Company ceases operations in its Chicago distribution facility in the first
quarter of

fiscal 2010
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Another opportunity for the Company to reduce expenses is in its real estate costs The Company
closed 26 stores in fiscal 2009 and ended the year with 1092 Pier Imports stores in North America

An outside firm has been hired to assist the Company in negotiating with landlords to achieve

reductions in rental rates across its store portfolio In certain cases if appropriate rental reductions

cannot be reached the Company may elect to close those locations Currently the Company expects to

close no more than 80 locations in connection with these negotiation efforts

Selling general and administrative expenses in fiscal 2009 were lower in dollars than the prior

year primarily as result of the significant cost savings efforts throughout the year The Company also

made significant changes to its marketing strategy during fiscal 2009 The timing of marketing

expenditures was shifted in order to utilize more of the budget in the all important holiday selling

period Most notably the Company resumed national television advertising on national cable networks

during the holiday selling period The Company will continue to seek out ways to efficiently use its

marketing budget through multiple media outlets including television the Internet direct mail and

print media

The Company ended the year with total cash of $155 million and net availability under its credit

line of $84 million for total liquidity position of $240 million During fiscal 2009 the Company
was able to accomplish two feats in particular which strengthened its liquidity position In June 2008

the Company sold its corporate headquarters to Chesapeake Energy Company for net proceeds of

approximately $102.4 million The sale had positive impact on both the balance sheet and the income

statement as the cost of leasing space was lower than the carrying costs of the building In addition the

Company was able to
preserve working capital through the significant reduction of its inventory The

Company reduced its inventory position from $411.7 million at the beginning of the year to

$316.3 million by year
end The Company accomplished this by reacting quickly to the slowdown in

sales reducing purchases and clearing out excess inventory especially in the distribution centers The

Company also made changes to its procurement process The changes included buying inventory much

closer to the needed in-store date and buying smaller initial quantities This reduction in inventory has

the added benefit of allowing the reduction of distribution center space requirements

Further improvements to the Companys balance sheet were accomplished subsequent to fiscal

2009 year end On March 20 2009 foreign subsidiary of the Company entered into private

agreements purchasing $78.9 million of the Companys outstanding 6.375% convertible senior notes due

2036 The notes were acquired at purchase price of $27.4 million including accrued interest As

result of this transaction the Company reduced its outstanding convertible debt to $86.1 million on

consolidated basis The foreign subsidiary presently intends to hold the convertible notes until maturity

In connection with this transaction the Company expects to recognize gain of approximately

$49 million during the first quarter of fiscal 2010

While the recession has slowed the Companys turnaround speed and increased its timeline the

Companys overall strategy remains the same Until management sees signs of an upturn however it

will buy conservatively manage inventories and continue to make the Companys merchandise offering

more compelling and improve the in-store experience In addition the Company will continue to focus

on its ongoing mission to maximize its revenues while continuing to seek out ways to reduce its cost

base and
preserve

its liquidity

The following discussion and analysis of financial condition results of operations liquidity and

capital resources relates to continuing operations unless otherwise stated and should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying audited Consolidated Financial Statements and notes thereto which

can be found in Item of this report Fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008 were 52-week years
while fiscal 2007

was 53-week year

21



Overview of Business

The Companys key financial and operational indicators used by management to evaluate the

performance of the business include the following trends for these indicators are explained in the

comparative discussions of this section

Key Performance Indicators 2009 2008 2007

Continuing operations

Total sales decline 12.6% 6.9% 8.6%
Comparable stores sales decline 9.2% 1.7% 11.3%
Sales per average retail square foot 149 164 168

Merchandise margins as of sales 49.0% 48.5% 47.9%

Gross profit as of sales 27.5% 29.1% 29.2%

Selling general and administrative expenses as of sales 34.3% 32.3% 40.0%

Operating loss from continuing operations as of sales 9.1% 5.8% 13.9%
Loss from continuing operations as of sales 9.8% 6.4% 14.0%

Inventory per retail square foot 37 47 39

Total retail square footage in thousands 8586 8782 9230

Total retail square footage growth decline 2% 9% 9%

Stores included in the comparable store sales calculation are those stores that were opened prior

to the beginning of the preceding fiscal year and are still open Also included are stores that were

relocated during the year within specified distance serving the same market where there is not

significant change in store size and where there is not significant overlap or gap in timing between

the opening of the new store and the closing of the existing store Stores that are expanded or

renovated are excluded from the comparable store sales calculation during the period they are closed

for such remodeling When these stores re-open for business they are included in the comparable store

sales calculation in the first full month after the re-opening if there is no significant change in store

size If there is significant change in store size the store continues to be excluded from the

calculation until it meets the Companys established definition of comparable store Comparable store

sales in fiscal 2010 are anticipated tO include all stores however stores closed during the year will be

excluded after they are closed

FISCAL YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28 2009 ANI MARCH 2008

Net Sales

Net sales consisted almost entirely of sales to retail customers net of discounts and returns but

also included delivery revenues and wholesale sales and royalties Sales by retail concept during fiscal

years 2009 2008 and 2007 were as follows in thousands

2009 2008 2007

Stores $1308331 $1486147 $1590854

Direct to consumer 8366 18943

Other1 12346 17319 13419

Net sales $1320677 $1511832 $1623216

Other sales consisted primarily of wholesale sales and royalties received from franchise

stores Grupo Sanborns S.A de C.V other third parties and gift card breakage
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Net sales during fiscal 2009 were $1320.7 million decrease of $191.1 million or 12.6% from

$1511.8 million for the prior fiscal year The decrease in sales for the fiscal year was comprised of the

following components in thousands

2009

Stores opened during fiscal 2008 1231

Comparable stores 129901

Closed stores and other1 62485

Net decrease in sales $19.1155

Includes decrease in sales related to the absence of direct to consumer sales and sales

to third parties

The total sales decline for fiscal 2009 was attributable to current macro-environmental conditions

which have caused slowdown in consumer spending net decrease of 25 stores for the fiscal
year

and comparable store sales decline of 9.2% The Companys net sales from Canadian stores were

subject to fluctuation in currency conversion rates These fluctuations had an unfavorable impact of

approximately 50 basis points on both net sales and comparable store calculations in fiscal 2009

compared to fiscal 2008

During fiscal 2009 the Company opened one new store and closed 26 store locations As of

February 28 2009 the Company operated 1092 stores in the United States and Canada The Company

continues to evaluate every lease in its current real estate portfolio and will attempt to negotiate more

favorable occupancy costs in an effort to lower overall costs of leased properties The Company

engaged third party real estate consulting firm to assist with these rent reduction efforts for existing

leases If rental reductions cannot be negotiated on stores that have negative operating results the

Company will attempt to negotiate buyout or exercise any early termination rights and close these

stores As result of its efforts thus far the Company now estimates that it will close no more than

80 stores in fiscal 2010

summary reconciliation of the Companys stores open at the beginning of fiscal 2009 2008 and

2007 to the number open at the end of each period follows openings and closings include relocated

stores

United States Canada Total

Open at February 25 2006 1143 83 1226

Openings 32 34

Closings 63 64

Open at March 2007 1112 84 1196
Openings ..

Closings __ 83

Open at March 2008 1034 83 1117

Openings

Closings 24 26

Open at February 28 20091 1011 81 1092

The Company supplies merchandise and licenses the Pier Imports name to Grupo

Sanborns S.A de C.V and Sears Roebuck de Puerto Rico Inc which sell Pier Imports

merchandise primarily in store within store format At the end of fiscal 2009 there

were 35 and seven locations in Mexico and Puerto Rico respectively
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Gross Profit

Gross profit after related buying and store occupancy costs expressed as percentage of sales was

27.5% in fiscal 2009 compared to 29.1% year ago Merchandise margins were 49.0% as percentage

of sales an increase of 50 basis points over 48.5% in fiscal 2008 Improvements in merchandise margin

over last year were primarily the result of less aggressive inventory liquidation activity that occurred

during the first quarter of fiscal 2009 as compared to the first quarter of fiscal 2008 Store occupancy

costs during fiscal 2009 were $284.1 million or 21.5% of sales decrease of $9.1 million and an

increase of 210 basis points over store occupancy costs of $293.2 million or 19.4% of sales during fiscal

2008 The decrease of $9.1 million was primarily due to store closures while the increase as

percentage of sales was the result of the deleveraging of relatively fixed rental costs over slightly

lower sales base in the remaining open stores As discussed above the Company is actively evaluating

every lease renewal and working to negotiate more favorable occupancy costs in an effort to lower the

overall costs of its leased properties

Operating Expenses Depreciation and Income Taxes

Selling general and administrative expenses including marketing were $453.5 million or 34.3% of

sales in fiscal 2009 decrease of $34.4 million and an increase 200 basis points from last years

$487.9 million or 32.3% of sales Selling general and administrative expenses for fiscal years 2009 and

2008 included charges summarized in the table below in thousands

February 28 2009 March 2008
Increase

Expense Sales Expense Sales Decrease

Store payroll $217774 16 5% $229573 15 2% $11799
Marketing 58989 4.5% 63970 4.2% 4981
Store supplies services and other 32473 2.5% 38341 2.5% 5868

Variable costs 309236 23.4% 331884 22.0% 22648

Administrative payroll excluding severance 70118 5.3% 82244 5.4% 12126
Lease termination costs and impairments 15727 1.2% 15470 1.0% 257

Severance and other 5922 0.4% 7646 0.5% 1724
Acquistion costs 1660 0.1% 0.0% 1660
Loss gain on sale of fixed assets 41 0.0% 2137 0.1% 2178
Other relatively fixed expenses 50767 3.8% 52791 3.5% 2024

144235 10.9% 156014 10.3% 11779
$453471 34.3% $487898 32.3% $34427

Expenses that tend to fluctuate proportionately with sales and number of stores such as store

payroll marketing store supplies and equipment rental decreased $22.6 million and increased 140

basis points as percentage of sales from last year Store payroll including bonus decreased

$11.8 million partly as result of planned staffing reductions at the stores and as result of store

closures Marketing expense decreased $5.0 million and increased 25 basis points as percentage of

sales as result of the absence of television advertising for most of fiscal 2009 offset slightly by the

introduction of seasonal national cable advertising campaign introduced late in the third quarter of

fiscal 2009 running through the early part of the fourth quarter The timing of marketing expenditures

was shifted in order to utilize more of the budget in the all important holiday selling period Other

variable expenses such as store supplies and equipment rental decreased $5.9 million primarily due to

efforts to reduce costs

Relatively fixed selling general and administrative expenses decreased $11.8 million compared to

last year Administrative payroll including bonus decreased $12.1 million resulting primarily from
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decrease in home office management bonus stock option expense and home office payroll expense

Severance outplacement and other costs decreased $1.7 million primarily as result of expenses

incurred in the prior year
related to larger reductions in work force compared to slightly smaller

reduction in the current year Other selling general and administrative expenses that do not typically

vary with sales decreased $2.0 million primarily as result of the Companys continued initiative to

manage and control expenses These decreases were partially offset by $1.7 million in expenses related

to the Companys withdrawn proposal to acquire all of the outstanding common stock shares of Cost

Plus Inc and $2.2 million gain recorded on the sale of fixed assets in fiscal 2008

Depreciation and amortization for fiscal 2009 was $30.6 million representing decrease of

approximately $9.2 million from last years depreciation and amortization expense of $39.8 million This

decrease was primarily the result of the sale of the home office building and related assets during fiscal

2009 lower net book values on certain store-level long-lived assets because of impairment charges

taken during and since the end of fiscal 2008 certain assets becoming fully depreciated store closures

and reduced capital spending in recent years

In fiscal 2009 the Company recorded an operating loss of $120.6 million compared to

$88.1 million for fiscal 2008

The Company continues to provide valuation allowance against all deferred tax assets As

result the Company did not record federal tax benefit on its operating loss and only minimal state

and foreign tax provisions were recorded on results for fiscal 2009 Net deferred tax assets of

$181.0 million were fully reserved at year
end through the valuation allowance The Company has tax

loss carryforwards of approximately $276.0 million These loss carryforwards with expirations beginning

in fiscal year 2027 can be utilized to offset future income for U.S federal tax purposes

Net Loss

Net loss in fiscal 2009 was $129.3 million or $1.45 per share compared to $96.0 million or $1.09

per share for fiscal 2008

FISCAL YEARS ENDED MARCH 2008 AND MARCH 2007

Net Sales

Net sales consisted almost entirely of sales to retail customers net of discounts and returns but

also included delivery revenues and wholesale sales and royalties Sales by retail concept during fiscal

years 2008 2007 and 2006 were as follows in thousands

2008 2007 2006

Stores $1486147 $1590854 $1753927

Direct to consumer 8366 18943 15345

Other 17319 13419 7429

Net sales $1511832 $1623216 $1776701

Other sales consisted primarily of wholesale sales and royalties received from franchise

stores Grupo Sanborns S.A de C.V and other third parties
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Net sales during fiscal 2008 were $1511.8 million decrease of $111.4 million or 6.9% from

$1623.2 million for fiscal 2007 The decrease in sales for fiscal 2008 was comprised of the following

components in thousands

2008

New stores opened during fiscal 2008 2641
Stores opened during fiscal 2007 9778

Comparable stores 23860
Closed stores and other 99943

Net decrease in sales $111384

Includes decrease in sales related to the 53rd week in fiscal 2007 as well as the decrease

in catalog and e-commerce sales

Comparable store sales for fiscal 2008 declined 1.7% The Companys net sales from Canadian

stores were subject to fluctuation in currency conversion rates These fluctuations had favorable

impact of approximately 70 basis points on both net sales and comparable store calculations in fiscal

2008 compared to fiscal 2007

During fiscal 2008 the Company opened four new stores and closed 83 store locations including

all Pier Kids and clearance stores In addition the Company closed its direct to consumer business

As of March 2008 the Company operated 1117 stores in the United States and Canada summary
recOnciliation of the Companys stores open at the beginning of fiscal 2008 2007 and 2006 to the

number open at the end of each period follows openings and closings include relocated stores

United States Canada Total

Open at February 26 2005 1115 80 1195

Openings 65 69

Closings 37 38

Open at February 25 2006 1143 83 1226

Openings 32 34

Closings 63 64

Open at March 2007 1112 84 1196

Openings

Closings 82 83
Open at March 20081 1034 83 1117

The Company supplies merchandise and licenses the Pier Imports name to Grupo

Sanborns S.A de C.V and Sears Roebuck de Puerto Rico Inc which sell Pier Imports

merchandise primarily in store within store format At the end of fiscal 2008 there

were 31 and seven locations in Mexico and Puerto Rico respectively

Gross Profit

Gross profit after related buying and store occupancy costs expressed as percentage of sales was

29.1% in fiscal 2008 compared to 29.2% in fiscal 2007 Merchandise margins were 48.5% as

percentage of sales an increase of 60 basis points over 47.9% in fiscal 2007 Although margins

improved overall in fiscal 2008 margins were negatively impacted by the clearance activities related to

the liquidation of the Companys modern craftsmen merchandise the closure of its Pier Kids stores

clearance stores and its direct to consumer channel Merchandise margins in fiscal 2007 were negatively
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impacted by 200 basis points as result Of $32.5 million inventory write-down Store occupancy costs

during fiscal 2008 were $293.2 million or 19.4% of sales decrease of $10.2 million and an increase of

70 basis points over store occupancy costs of $303.4 million or 18.7% of sales during fiscal 2007 The

decrease of $10.2 million was due to store closures while the increase as percentage of sales was the

result of the deleveraging of relatively fixed rental costs over slightly lower sales base in the

remaining open stores

Operating Expenses Depreciation and Income Taxes

Selling general and administrative expenses including marketing were $487.9 million or 32.3% of

sales in fiscal 2008 decrease of $161.1 milliOn and 770 basis points from fiscal 2007s $649.0 million

or 40.0% of sales Selling general and administrative expenses for fiscal years ended 2008 and 2007

included charges summarized in the table below in thousands

March 2008 March 2007
Increase

Expense Sales Expense Sales Decrease

Store payroll $229573 15.2% $261600 16.1% 32027
Marketing 63970 4.2% 117364 7.2% 53394
Store supplies and equipment rental 38341 2.5% 47378 2.9% 9037

331884 22.0% 426342 26.3% 94458

Administrative payroll 82244 5.4% 96712 6.0% 14468
Lease termination costs and impairments 15470 1.0% 40372 2.5% 24902
Gain loss on disposal of fixed assets 2137 0.1% 187 0.0% 2324
Severance outplacement and new CEO 5972 0.4% 2679 0.2% 3293

Settlement and curtailment retirement plan 1763 0.1% 6769 0.4% 5006
Litigation settlements 89 0.0% 4836 0.3% 4925
Credit card contract termination 2400 0.1% 2400
Other relatively fixed expenses 52791 3.5% 68708 4.2% 15917

156014 10.3% 222663 13.7% 66649

$487898 32.3% $649005 40.0% $161107

Expenses that tend to fluctuate proportionately with sales and number of stores such as store

payroll marketing store supplies and equipment rental decreased $94.5 million and 430 basis points

as percentage of sales in fiscal 2008 from fiscal 2007 due in part to store closures The decline was

primarily the result of conscious effort by management to reduce costs at all levels of the

organization especially marketing Store payroll including bonus decreased $32.0 million as result of

store closures and decreased 90 basis points as percentage of sales primarily as result of planned

reductions in staffing levels in the stores Marketing expense decreased $53.4 million and 300 basis

points as percentage of sales as result of the Companys strategic decision to shift from television

and catalog advertisements to targeted event mailers newspaper inserts and emails Other variable

expenses such as store supplies and equipment rental decreased 40 basis points as percentage of

sales primarily due to efforts to reduce costs

Relatively fixed selling general and administrative expenses decreased $66 million and 340 basis

points as percentage of sales in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007 Administrative payroll including

bonus decreased $14.5 million and 50 basis points as percentage of sales resulting primarily from

decreases in salaries and wages related to reduction in the number of home office and field

administrative employees in the first half of fiscal 2008 Decreases in other non-store payroll expenses

included $5.0 million decrease in retirement plan settlement and curtailment expense primarily as

result of the retirement of two officers in fiscal 2007 compared to one in fiscal 2008 partly offset by
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$3.3 million increase in severance and outplacement costs in fiscal 2008 associated primarily with home

office and field administration headcount reductions during the first two quarters of the year

Impairment charges decreased $31.4 million as result of less impairment recorded during fiscal 2008

and lease termination obligations increased $6.4 million related primarily to the closure of all Pier

Kids and clearance stores during fiscal 2008 Litigation settlements decreased $4.9 million as result of

$4.6 million charge in fiscal 2007 related to an accrual for the settlement of class action lawsuit

with no similar expense in fiscal 2008 Other selling general and administrative expenses that do not

typically vary
with sales decreased primarily as result of the Companys continued initiative to manage

and control expenses

Depreciation and amortization for fiscal 2008 was $39.8 million representing decrease of

approximately $11.4 million from fiscal 2007 depreciation and amortization expense of $51.2 million

This decrease was primarily the result of lower net book values on certain store-level long-lived assets

because of impairment charges taken during and since the end of fiscal 2007 certain assets becoming

fully depreciated store closures and lower capital expenditures

In fiscal 2008 the Company recorded an operating loss of $88.1 million compared to

$226.2 million for fiscal 2007

During fiscal 2008 the Company recorded $1.8 million charge to tax expense to adjust its federal

and state income tax refunds estimated at fiscal 2007 year end to the actual tax refunds filed for The

federal tax benefit was entirely offset by provision of full valuation allowance on the deferred assets

arising from the benefit and only minimal state and foreign tax provisions were recorded on results for

fiscal 2008 Net deferred tax assets of $125.7 million were fully reserved at fiscal 2008 year end through

valuation allowance The Company had tax loss carryforwards of approximately $203.0 million These

loss carryforwards have expirations beginning in fiscal year 2027

Net Loss

Net loss in fiscal 2008 was $96.0 million or $1.09 per share an improvement of $131.6 million

when compared to fiscal 2007s net loss including discontinued operations of $227.6 million or $2.60

pershare See Note 12 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information

regarding discontinued operations in fiscal 2007

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Companys cash and cash equivalents totaled $155.8 million at the end of fiscal 2009 an

increase of $62.4 million from the fiscal 2008 year end balance of $93.4 million Operating activities

used $31.6 million primarily as result of the Companys net loss reduction in accounts payable and

accrued expenses and an increase in accounts receivable prepaid expenses and other current assets

These operating outflows were partially offset by reduction in inventory and the collection of

federal income tax refund including related interest

Inventory levels at the end of fiscal 2009 were $316.3 million down $95.4 million or 23.2% from

inventory levels at the end of fiscal 2008 At the end Qf fiscal 2009 inventory per retail square foot was

$37 compared to $47 year ago The decrease from fiscal 2008 year end was due in part to

conservative plan for the first six months of fiscal 2010 and planned decline in inventory levels at the

distribution centers as the Company continued to shift inventory to the stores This allowed the

Company to exit approximately 350000 square feet of outside distribution center space during the

second quarter of fiscal 2009 In addition the Company plans to exit approximately 514000 square feet

of additional distribution center space by closing its Chicago distribution center during the first quarter

of fiscal 2010 The Company continues to focus on managing inventory levels and is closely monitoring

the timing and appropriate levels of merchandise purchases to keep inventory in line with consumer
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demand The Company expects inventory levels to range from $300 million to $340 million with

seasonal fluctuations similar to prior years and to end fiscal 2010 at approximately $300 million

During fiscal 2009 the Companys investing activities provided $91.8 million During the second

quarter of fiscal 2009 the Company sold its corporate headquarters building and accompanying land to

Chesapeake Plaza L.L.C an affiliate of Chesapeake Energy Corporation for net proceeds of

approximately $102.4 million The Company collected $1.5 million of note receivable related to the

fiscal 2007 sale of Pier National Bank Proceeds from the sale of restricted investments used primarily

for the payment of defined benefit obligations provided $3.3 million partially offset by contributions of

$2.0 million to purchase similar restricted investments Capital expenditures were $13.4 million and

consisted primarily of $5.8 million for fixtures equipment and leasehold improvements for stores

$3.5 million related to home office leasehold improvements $2.7 million for information systems

enhancements and $1.4 million related to the Companys distribution centers

Financing activities for fiscal 2009 provided net $2.2 million primarily related to the Companys
stock purchase plan

The Companys bank facilities include $325 million credit facility expiring in May 2012 which is

secured by the Companys eligible merchandise inventory and third-party credit card receivables

During fiscal 2009 the Company had no cash borrowings against its credit facility however in the

future the Company may become dependent upon its secured credit facility to fund operations

including seasonal inventory purchases As of February 28 2009 the Company had no outstanding

borrowings and had utilized approximately $84.3 million in letters of credit and bankers acceptances

Should the availability under such facility be less than $32.5 million the Company will be required to

comply with fixed charge coverage ratio as stated in the agreement The Company does not anticipate

falling below this minimum availability in the foreseeable future As of February 28 2009 the

Companys calculated borrowing base was $201.7 million After excluding the required minimum of

$32.5 million and the $84.3 million in utilized letters of credit and bankers acceptances from the

borrowing base $84.9 million remained available for cash borrowings This borrowing base calculation

is subject to advance rates and commercially reasonable reserves At the end of fiscal 2009 the

Company was in compliance with required debt covenants stated in the agreement

The Company does not currently anticipate paying cash dividends in fiscal 2010 and its dividend

policy in the near term will depend upon the earnings financial condition and capital needs of the

Company and other factors deemed relevant by the Companys Board of Directors Under the terms of

the Companys secured credit facility the Company will not be restricted from paying certain dividends

unless the availability under the credit facility over specified period of time is projected to be less

than $97.5 million

During fiscal 2009 the Company did not make any repurchases of and has no immediate plans to

repurchase shares of its outstanding common stock
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summary of the Companys contractual obligations and other commercial commitments as of

February 28 2009 is listed below in thousands

Amount of Commitment per Period

Less Than to to More Than

TOtal Year Years Years Years

Operating leases 936431 $225496 379899 $240921 90115

Purchase obligations1 75845 75845

Convertible debt2 165000 165000

Standby letters of credit3 48599 48599

Industrial revenue bonds3 19000 19000

Interest on convertible debt2 21038 10519 10519

Interest on industrial revenue bonds4 6408 361 722 722 4603

Interest and related fees on secured credit

facility5 4431 1363 2727 341

Other obligations67 48248 11512 1584 2150 33002

Total8 $1325000 $373695 560451 $244134 $146720

ab es ecoded the ba1ace Sheet 269212

Commitments not recorded on the balance

sheet 1055728

Total $1325000

As of February 28 2009 the Company had approximately $75.8 million of outstanding purchase

orders which were primarily related to merchandise inventory Such orders are generally

cancelable at the discretion of the Company until the order has been shipped The table above

excludes certain executory contracts for goods and services that tend to be recurring in nature and

similar in amount year over year
and includes $16.2 million in merchandise letters of credit and

bankers acceptances

The Companys convertible debt is subject to redemption in
part or full on February 15 2011 and

the above amounts assume the notes will be repaid or refinanced at that time As of February 28

2009 if all notes had remained outstanding until maturity in 2036 the total interest paid would

have been $273.7 million Subsequent to year end foreign subsidiary of the Company purchased

approximately $78.9 million of the convertible debt for $27.4 million including interest thereby

reducing the consolidated outstanding convertible debt to $86.1 million If the remaining

$86.1 million in notes are held to maturity the total interest paid would be approximately

$143.1 million See Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion of

the Companys convertible senior notes

The Company also has outstanding standby letters of credit totaling $19.4 million related to the

Companys industrial revenue bonds This amount is excluded from the table above as it is not

incremental to the Companys total outstanding commitments

The interest rates on the Companys industrial revenue bonds are variable and reset weekly The

estimated interest payments included in the table were calculated based upon the rate in effect at

fiscal 2009 year end

Represents estimated commitment fees for trade and standby letters of credit and unused fees on

the Companys $325 million secured credit facility which expires in May 2012 calculated based

upon balances and rates in effect at fiscal 2009 year end
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Other obligations include the Companys liability under various unfunded retirement plans See

Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion of the Companys
employee benefit plans

Other obligations also include approximately $8.0 million of reserves for uncertain tax positions

including interest and penalties under Financial Accounting Standards Board
Interpretation

No 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income TaxesAn Interpretation of FASB Statement

No 109 which has been classified as current liability Excluded from this table is the

noncurrent portion of reserves for uncertain tax positions of $9.0 million for which the Company is

not reasonably able to estimate the timing of future cash flows

The above amounts do not include payments that may be due under employment agreements
with certain employees

The present value of the Companys minimum future operating lease commitments discounted at

10% was $736 million at fiscal 2009 year end and as result of the Company on going rent

negotiations was $713 million as of April 15 2009 The Company plans to fund these commitments

from cash generated from the operations of the Company and if needed from borrowings against lines

of credit

Total capital expenditures for fiscal 2010 are expected to be approximately $7 million On
February 2009 the Company announced that it hired an outside firm to assist in negotiations with its

landlords to achieve rental reductions across its store portfolio To date the Company has reached

agreements in principal to terminate the leases on 22 stores and has decided to close additional

stores for which termination or rental reduction agreements were unable to be reached The Company
estimates total charges of approximately $7 million of cash and non-cash termination charges related to

these closures of which $4 million will be incurred in the first
quarter of fiscal 2010 The cash portion

of these charges will be partially offset by the liquidation of inventory in the closing stores As result

of its efforts to date the Company has achieved approximately $7 million in rental savings for fiscal

2010 and now estimates it will close no more than 80 locations in fiscal 2010 Actual expenses related

to these closures cannot be estimated as they will largely depend upon the results of on-going

negotiations

As
part of the sale of the Companys home office building and accompanying land the Company

entered into lease agreement to rent office space in the building The lease has primary term of

seven years beginning on June 2008 with one three-year renewal option and provisions for

terminating the lease at the end of the fifth lease year

On May 2009 the Company received notice from NYSE Regulation Inc NYSE Regulation
that the Company was in compliance with the New York Stock Exchange NYSE continued listing

standards Previously on December 15 2008 the Company had received notice from NYSE Regulation
that the Company was not in compliance with the NYSE continued listing standard under

Section 802.O1C of the NYSE Listed Company Manual due to the fact that the average closing share

price of the Company common stock over consecutive 30 day trading period was less than $1 00

The Company notified NYSE Regulation within the required ten business days that it intended to cure

the deficiency and that its Board of Directors had met and was considering all strategic measures to

cure the non-compliance with the listing standard

On February 26 2009 the Company received notice from the NYSE that it had suspended the

NYSEs $1.00 minimum price requirement on temporary basis initially through June 30 2009 The
notice also extends until June 30 2009 the NYSEs current easing of the average global market

capitalization standard calculated over consecutive 30 trading-day period from $25 million to

$15 million According to section 802.O1B of the NYSE Listed Company Manual the NYSE will

promptly initiate suspension and delisting procedures with
respect to company if company is
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determined to be out of compliance with this standard As of May 2009 the Companys average

global market capitalization over consecutive 30 trading-day period was greater
than $25 million

As discussed in Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements the definition of fundamental

change under the Companys 6.375% convertible senior notes due 2036 the Notes includes the

Companys common stock ceasing to be listed on national securities exchange or quoted on the

Nasdaq National Market or another established automated over-the-counter trading market in the

United States The Company believes that it will continue to be able to satisfy the above requirement

for the listing or quotation of its common stock If the Company is however unable to comply with

this provision
of the Notes the holders of the Notes could at their option require the Company to

repurchase all or portion of their Notes Such an event could have material adverse effect on the

Company if the Company does not have sufficient cash is unable to raise sufficient additional capital

for such repurchases or is otherwise unable to refinance the Notes

On March 20 2009 foreign subsidiary of the Company purchased $78.9 million of the

Company outstanding Notes at purchase price of $27 million including accrued interest The

foreign subsidiary intends to hold the notes until maturity As result of this transaction the Company

has reduced its outstanding convertible debt to $86.1 million on consolidated basis The Company

expects to recognize gain of approximately $49.0 million in connection with this transaction during

the first quarter of fiscal 2010 From time to time the Company may continue to seek to retire or

purchase its remaining outstanding Notes through cash purchases and/or exchanges for equity securities

in open market purchases privately negotiated transactions or otherwise Such repurchases or

exchanges if any will depend on prevailing market conditions the Companys liquidity requirements

contractual restrictions and other factors The amounts involved will be subject to compliance with all

debt agreements and may be material See Note 13 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for

further discussion As result of the put feature of the Companys 6.375% convertible senior notes due

2036 the Company anticipates that the remaining $86.1 million in Notes will have to be repaid or

refinanced on or before February 15 2011 If the Company does not have sufficient cash is unable to

raise sufficient additional capital for such repurchases or is otherwise unable to refinance the Notes

such repayment could have material adverse effect on the Company its business financial condition

and results of operations

The Company has an umbrella trust currently consisting of four sub-trusts the Trusts which

was established for the purpose of setting aside funds to be used to settle certain benefit plan

obligations Two of the sub-trusts are restricted to satisfy obligations to certain participants of the

Companys supplemental retirement plans These trusts consisted of interest bearing investments of less

than $0.1 million at both February 28 2009 and March 2008 and were included in other noncurrent

assets in fiscal 2009 and 2008 The remaining two sub trusts are restricted to meet the funding

requirements of the Companys non qualified deferred compensation plans These trusts assets

consisted of interest bearing investments totaling $0 million at February 28 2009 and $1 million at

March 2008 and were included in other noncurrent assets These trusts also own and are the

beneficiaries of life insurance policies with cash surrender values of approximately $5 million at

February 28 2009 and death benefits of approximately $13 million In addition the Company owns

and is the beneficiary of number of insurance policies on the lives of current and former key

executives that are unrestricted as to use The cash surrender value of these unrestricted policies was

approximately $16.0 million at February 28 2009 and was included in other noncurrent assets The

death benefit related to the unrestricted policies was approximately $24.9 million At the discretion of

the Board of Directors contributions of cash or unrestricted life insurance policies could be made to

the Trusts

The Company sources of working capital for fiscal 2009 were cash flows from internally

generated funds the sale of the Companys home office building and related assets and collections of

income tax receivables The Company has variety of sources for liquidity which include available cash
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balances available lines of credit and cash surrender value of life insurance policies not restricted as to

use The Companys current plans for fiscal 2010 include capital expenditure budget of approximately

$7.0 million As discussed above the Company estimates total charges of approximately $7 million of

cash and non-cash termination charges related to store closures of which $4 million will be incurred in

the first quarter of fiscal 2010 The cash portion of these charges will be partially offset by the

liquidation of inventory in the closing stores In addition foreign subsidiary of the Company utilized

$27.4 million to repurchase portion of the Companys outstanding Notes during the first quarter of

fiscal 2010 and may continue to seek to retire or purchase the remaining outstanding Notes as

discussed above The Company does not presently anticipate any other significant cash outflows in

fiscal 2010 other than those occurring in the normal course of business or as discussed herein

Considering these plans and the other sources of
liquidity referred to above the Company believes it

has sufficient liquidity to fund operational obligations and capital expenditure requirements through
fiscal year 2010

The Companys key drivers of cash flows are sales nianagement of inventory levels vendor

payment terms management of expenses and capital expenditures The Companys turnaround plan

includes making conservative inventory purchases managing those inventories continuing to make the

Companys merchandise offering more compelling and improving the in-store experience In addition

the Company will continue to focus on its ongoing mission to maximize its revenues while seeking out

ways to reduce its cost base considering refinancing alternatives of its convertible senior notes and

preserving its liquidity From fiscal 2006 through fiscal 2009 the Company has incurred net losses and

had negative cash flows from
operating activities The end of the difficult economic situation faced by

the United States is not known at this time and consumer confidence and spending could remain

depressed and possibly deteriorate even further The Company may incur negative operating cash flows

in future periods and long term decline in consumer spending could have material adverse effect on

the Companys financial condition and ability to generate cash flows from operations As result the

Company may become dependent on the availability of adequate capital to fund its operations carry
out its turnaround strategy or refinance existing indebtedness if necessary Recent disruption in the

global credit and equity markets and future disruptions in the financial markets could adversely affect

the Companys ability to enter into new financing agreements refinance the Companys current

indebtedness or obtain funding through the issuance of the Companys securities Future availability of

financing sources cannot be assured given the current economic environment and the Companys recent

financial results and there can be no assurance that the Company will achieve or sustain positive cash

flows or profitability over the long-term

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

Other than the operating leases letters of credit and purchase obhgations discussed above the

Company has no off-balance sheet arrangements
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Companys consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States requires the use of estimates that affect the reported

value of assets liabilities revenues and expenses These etimates are based on historical experience

and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances the results of

which fOrm the basis for the Companys conclusions The Company continually evaluates the

information used to make these estimates as the business and the economic environment changes

Historically aºtual results have not varied materially from the Companys estimates with the exception

of the impairment of long-lived assets the early retirement of participants
in its defined benefit plans

and income taxes as discussed below The Company does not currently anticipate significant change

in its assumptions related to these estimates Actual results may differ from these estimates under

different assumptions or conditions The Companys significant accounting policies can be found in

Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements The policies and estimates discussed below

include the financial statement elements that are either judgmental or involve the selection or

application of alternative accounting policies and are material to the Companys financial statements

Unless specifically addressed below the Company does not believe that its critical accounting policies

are subject to market risk exposure that would be considered material and as result has not provided

sensitivity analysis The use of estimates is pervasive throughout the consolidated financial statements

but the accounting policies and estimates considered most critical are as follows

Revenue recognitionThe Company recognizes revenue from retail sales net of sales tax and

third party credit card fees upon customer receipt or delivery of merchandise including sales under

deferred payment promotions on its proprietary credit card in fiscal 2007 and
prior years The

Company records an allowance for estimated merchandise returns based upon historical experience and

other known factors Should actual returns differ from the Companys estimates and current provision

for merchandise returns revisions to the estimated merchandise returns may be required

Gift cardsRevenue associated with gift cards is recognized when merchandise is sold and gift

card is redeemed as payment Gift card breakge is estimated and recorded as income based upon an

analysis of the Companys historical data and expected trends in redemption patterns and represents

the remaining unused portion Of the gift card liability for which the likelihood of redemption is remote

If actual redeittption patterns vary from the Companys estimates actual gift card breakage may differ

from the amounts recorded For all periods presented gift card breakage was recognized at 30 months

from the original issuance and was $4.1 million $1.7 million and $6.2 million in fiscal 2009 2008 and

2007 respectively

InventoriesThe Companys inventory is comprised of finished merchandise and is stated at the

lower of weighted average cost or market value Cost is calculated based upon the actual landed cost of

an item at the time it is received in the Companys warehouse using actual vendor invoices the cost of

warehousing and transporting product to the stores and other direct costs associated with purchasing

products Carrying values of inventory are analyzed and to the extent that the cost of inventory exceeds

the expected selling prices less reasonable costs to sell provisions are made to reduce the carrying

amount of the inventory The Company reviews its inventory levels in order to identify slow-moving

merchandise and uses merchandise markdowns to sell such merchandise Markdowns are recorded to

reduce the retail price of such slow-moving merchandise as needed Since the determination of carrying

values of inventory involves both estimation and judgment with regard to market values and reasonable

costs to sell differences in these estimates could result in ultimate valuations that differ from the

recorded asset The majority of inventory purchases and commitments are made in U.S dollars in

order to limit the Companys exposure to foreign currency fluctuations

The Company recognizes known inventory losses shortages and damages when incurred and makes

provision for estimated shrinkage The amount of the provision
is estimated based on historical
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experience from the results of its physical inventories Inventory is physically counted at substantially all

locations at least once in each 12-month period at which time actual results are reflected in the

financial statements Physical counts were taken at substantially all stores and distribution centers

during each period presented in the financial statements Although inventory shrinkage rates have not

fluctuated significantly in recent years should actual rates differ from the Companys estimates
revisions to the inventory shrinkage expense may be required

Impairment of long-lived assetsLong-lived assets such as buildings equipment furniture and

fixtures and leasehold improvements are reviewed for impairment at least annually and whenever an

event or change in circumstances indicates that their carrying values may not be recoverable If the

carrying value exceeds the sum of the expected undiscounted cash flows the assets are considered

impaired For store level long-lived assets expected cash flows are estimated based on managements
estimate of changes in sales merchandise margins and expenses over the remaining expected terms of

the leases Impairment is measured as the amount by which the carrying value of the asset exceeds the

fair value of the asset Fair value is determined by discounting expected cash flows Impairment if any
is recorded in the period in which the impairment occurred The Company recorded $9.4 million

$4.8 million and $31.9 million in impairment charges in fiscal 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively As the

projection of future cash flows requires the use of judgment and estimates if actual results differ from

the Companys estimates additional charges for asset impairments may be recorded in the future If

management had lowered its assumptions of comparable store sales results by 3% for each of the next

five years additioial impairment charges of approximately $2.3 million would have been recorded in

fiscal 2009

Insurance provisionThe Company maintains insurance for workers compensation and general

liability claims with deductibles of $1000000 and $750000 respectively per claim The liability

recorded for such claims is determined by estimating the total future claims cost for events that

occurred prior to the balance sheet date The estimates consider historical claims development factors

as well as information obtained from and projections made by the Companys insurance carrier and

underwriters The recorded liabilities for workers compensation and general liability claims including
those occurring in prior years but not yet settled at February 28 2009 were $19.7 million and

$8.3 million respectively

The assumptions made in determining the above estimates are reviewed monthly and the liability

adjusted accordingly as new facts are revealed Changes in circumstances and conditions affecting the

assumptions used in determining the liabilities could cause actual results to differ from the Companys
recorded amounts

Defined benefit plansThe Company maintains supplemental retirement plans the Plans for

certain of its current and former executive officers The Plans provide that upon death disability

reaching retirement age or certain termination events participant will receive benefits based on

highest compensation years of service and years of plan participation These benefit costs are

dependent upon numerous factors assumptions and estimates Benefit costs may be significantly

affected by changes in key actuarial assumptions such as the discount rate compensation rates or

retirement dates used to determine the projected benefit obligation Additionally changes made to the

provisions of the Plans may impact current and future benefit costs

Stock-based compensationThe fair value of stock options is amortized as compensation expense
over the vesting periods of the options The fair values for options granted by the Company are

estimated as of the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model Option valuation

models require the input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected stock price volatility

and the average life of options The Company uses expected volatilities and risk-free interest rates that

correlate with the expected term of the option when estimating an options fair value To determine the

expected term of the option the Company bases its estimates on historical exercise activity of grants
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with similar vesting periods Expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of the common stock

of the Company for period approximating the expected life The risk free interest rate utilized is the

United States Treasury rate that most closely matches the weighted average expected life at the time of

the grant The expected dividend yield is based on the annual dividend rate at the time of grant or

estimates of future anticipated dividend rates If the Company had used different assumptions the

value of stock options may have been different

Income taxesThe Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method

Under this method deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between

financial reporting and income tax bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted

tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse Deferred tax

assets and liabilities are recorded in the Companys consolidated balance sheets and are classified as

current or noncurrent based on the classification of the related assets or liabilities for financial

reporting purposes valuation allowance is recorded to reduce the carrying amounts of deferred tax

assets unless it is more likely than not those assets will be realized In assessing the need for

valuation allowance all available evidence is considered including past operating results estimates of

future income and tax planning strategies The Company is subject to income tax in many jurisdictions

including the United States various states and localities and foreign countries At any point
in time

multiple tax years are subject to audit by various jurisdictions
and the Company records reserves for

estimates of the tax exposure for foreign and domestic tax audits The timing of these audits and

negotiations with taxing authorities may affect the ultimate settlement of these issues If different

assumptions had been used the Companys tax expense or benefit assets and liabilities could have

varied from recorded amounts If actual results differ from estimated results or if the Company adjusts

these assumptions in the future the Company may need to adjust its deferred tax assets or liabilities

which could rnipact its effective tax rate

IMPACT OF INFLATION AND CHANGING PRICES

Inflation has not had significant impact on the operations
of the Company during the preceding

three years

IMPACT OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In May 2008 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued FASB Staff Position

TSP APB 14-1 Accounting for Convertible Debt Instruments That May Be Settled in Cash upon

Conversion Including Partial Cash Settlement which clarifies that convertible debt instruments that

may be settled in cash upon conversion including partial cash settlement are not addressed by

paragraph 12 of APB Opinion No 14 Accounting for Convertible Debt and Debt Issued with Stock

Purchase Warrants Additionally this FSP specifies that issuers of such instruments should separately

account for the liability and equity components in manner that will reflect the entitys nonconvertible

debt borrowing rate when interest cost is recognized in subsequent periods This FSP will be applied

retrospectively to all periods presented FSP APB 14-1 is effective for the Company at the beginning of

fiscal year 2010 The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption on its financial

statements

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Market risks relating to the Companys operations result primarily from changes in foreign

exchange rates and interest rates The Company has only limited involvement with derivative financial

instruments does not use them for trading purposes and is not party to any leveraged derivatives

Collectively the Companys exposure to market risk factors is not significant and has not materially

changed from March 2008
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Foreign Currency Risk

Though the
majority of the Companys inventory purchases are made in U.S dollars in order to

limit its exposure to foreign currency fluctuations the Company from time to time enters into forward

foreign currency exchange contracts The Company uses such contracts to hedge exposures to changes
in foreign currency exchange rates associated with purchases denominated in foreign currencies

primarily euros The Company operates stores in Canada and is subject to fluctuations in currency
conversion rates related to these operations The Company on occasion uses contracts to hedge its

exposure associated with repatriation of funds from its Canadian operations Changes in the fair value

of the derivatives are included in the Companys consolidated statements of operations as such

contracts are not designated as hedges under SFAS No 133 Accounting for Derivative Instruments

and Hedging Activities Forward contracts that hedge merchandise purchases generally have maturities

not exceeding six months Changes in the fair value and settlement of these forwards are included in

cost of sales Contracts that hedge the repatriation of Canadian funds have maturities not exceeding
18 months and changes in the fair value and settlement of these contracts are included in selling

general and administrative expenses At February 28 2009 there were no outstanding contracts to

hedge exposure associated with the Companys merchandise purchases denominated in foreign

currencies or the repatriation of Canadian funds

Interest Rate Risk

The Company manages its exposure to changes in interest rates by optimizing the use of variable

and fixed rate debt The interest rate exposure on the Companys secured credit facility and industrial

revenue bonds is based upon variable interest rates and therefore is affected by changes in market

interest rates As of February 28 2009 the Company had $19.0 million in borrowings outstanding on its

industrial revenue bonds and no cash borrowings outstanding on its secured credit facility

hypothetical 10% adverse change in the interest rates applicable to either or both of these variable rate

instruments would have negligible impact on the Companys earnings and cash flows

Additionally as of February 28 2009 the Company had $165.0 million in convertible senior notes

outstanding which mature in February 2036 The notes pay fixed annual rate of 6.375% for the first

five
years and fixed rate of 6.125% thereafter Changes in market interest rates generally affect the

fair value of fixed rate debt instruments but would not affect the Companys financial position results

of operations or cash flows related to these notes As of February 28 2009 the fair value of these

notes was $42.9 million based on quoted market values

On March 20 2009
foreign subsidiary of the Company purchased $78.9 million of the Companys

outstanding Notes at purchase price of $27.4 million including accrued interest The purchase price

of these convertible notes implies fair value of the total outstanding notes prior to the purchase of

approximately $56.0 million The foreign subsidiary intends to hold the notes until maturity As result

of this transaction the Company has reduced its outstanding convertible debt to $86.1 million on

consolidated basis The Company expects to recognize gain of approximately $49.0 million in

connection with this transaction during the first quarter of fiscal 2010 See Note 13 of the Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion
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Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors of Pier Imports Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Pier Imports Inc as of

February 28 2009 and March 2008 and the related consolidated statements of operations

shareholders equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended February 28 2009

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to

express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An

audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant

estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We

believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects

the consolidated financial position
of Pier Imports Inc at February 28 2009 and March 2008 and

the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period

ended February 28 2009 in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles

As discussed in notes to the consolidated financial statements effective March 2007 Pier

Imports Inc adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 158 Employers Accounting

for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans an Amendment of FASB Statements

No 87 88 106 and 132R and effective March 2007 Pier Imports Inc adopted FASB

Interpretation No 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income TaxesAn Interpretation of FASB

Statement No 109

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States Pier Imports Inc.s internal control over financial reporting as of

February 28 2009 based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated April 28

2009 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

Is Ernst Young LLP

Fort Worth Texas

April 28 2009
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Pier Imports Inc

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

in thousands except per share amounts

Year Ended

2009 2008 2007

Net sales $1320677 $1511832 $1623216

Operating costs and expenses

Cost of sales including buying and store occupancy costs 957213 1072280 1149257

Selling general and administrative expenses 453471 487898 649005

Depreciation and amortization 30556 39792 51184

1441240 1599970 1849446

Operating loss 120563 88138 226230
Nonoperating income and expenses

Interest and investment income 4250 8677 12456
Interest expense 14592 15916 16116
Other income 2276 1960 1767

8066 5279 1893

Lss from continuing operations before income taxes 128629 93417 228123
Provision benefit for income taxes 624 2594 885
Net loss from continuing operations 129253 96011 227238

Discontinued operations

Loss from discontinued operations 638
Income tax benefit 231

Net loss from discontinued operations 407
Net loss 129253 96011 227645

Loss per share from continuing operations

Basic and diluted 1.45 1.09 2.59

Loss per share from discontinued operations

Basic and diluted 0.01

Loss per share

Basic and diluted 1.45 1.09 2.60

Dividends declared per share 0.20

Average shares outstanding during period

Basic and diluted 88912 88083 87395

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial staternents
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Pier Imports Inc

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

in thousands except
share amounts

2009 2008

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents including temporary investments of $142523

and $87837 respectively $155798 93433

Other accounts receivable net of allowance for

doubtful accounts of $1579 and $1034 respectively 17566 23121

Inventories 316331 411709

Income tax receivable 2149 13632

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 41883 41445

Total current assets 533727 583340

Office building and related assets 80539

Other properties net 85135 114952

Other noncurrent assets 36600 43073

655462 821904

LIABILITES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Current liabilities

Accounts payable 80695 106084

Gift cards and other deferred revenue 47332 63101

Accrued income taxes payable 4434 5000

Other accrued liabilities 101350 101817

Total current liabilities 233811 276002

Long-term debt 184000 184000

Other noncurrent liabilities 93390 94158

Shareholders equity

Common stock $1.00 par 500000000 shares authorized 100779000

issued 100779 100779

Paid-in capital 113326 126795

Retained earnings 106841 236094

Cumulative other comprehensive income loss 1195 373

Less10905000 and 12172000 common shares in treasury at cost

respectively 175490 196297

144261 267744

Commitments and contingencies

$655462 821904

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

40



Pier Imports Inc

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

in thousands

Year Ended

2009 2008 2007

Cash flow from operating activities

Net loss
$129253 $96011 $227645

Adjustments to reconcile to net cash used in operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 45156 55303 63496
Loss gain on disposal of fixed assets 41 2137 187
Loss on impairment of fixed assets and other long-lived assets 9653 5030 36369
Stock-based compensation expense 5177 5837 5464
Deferred compensation 4215 4157 16915
Lease termination expense 6074 10440 4003
Deferred income taxes

24576
Amortization of deferred gains 6774 2533 981
Other

2201 1543 2140
Change in cash from

Sale of receivables in exchange for beneficial interest in securitized receivables 15914
Purchase of proprietary credit card receivables and other 97740
Proceeds from the sale of proprietary credit card operations 144622
Inventories

95378 51646 9757
Other accounts receivable prepaid expenses and other current assets 5055 8776 14428
Income tax receivable

14486 25616 16955
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 65457 22818 5388
Income taxes payable 1620 2765 1595
Defined benefit plan liabilities 118 6351 25495
Other noncurrent assets

1209 762 566
Other noncurrent liabilities 2545 4255 2579

Net cash used in operating activities 31634 83074 104905
Cash flow from investing activities

Capital expenditures 13378 7153 28600
Proceeds from disposition of properties 102478 5674 173
Proceeds from sale of discontinued operation

11601
Proceeds from sale of Pier National Bank

10754
Proceeds from sale of restricted investments 3258 6986 25707
Purchase of restricted investments 2020 589 9712
Collection of note receivable

1500 1500
Collections of principal on beneficial interest in securitized receivables 21907

Net cash provided by investing activities
91838 6418 31830

Cash flow from financing activities

Cash dividends

17398
Proceeds from stock options exercised stock purchase plan and other net 2161 3909 4719
Notes payable borrowings

69000
Repayment of notes payable 69000Debt issuance costs

998 283
Net cash provided by used in financing activities 2161 2911 12962

Change in cash and cash equivalents
62365 73745 86037

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 93433 167178 253215

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $155798 $93433 $167178

Supplemental cash flow information

Interest paid 14018 15743 12821

Income taxes paid 2617 $1124 $2021

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Pier Imports Inc

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

in thousands except per share amounts

Common Stock
Cumulative

_____________________ Other Total

Outstanding Paid-in Retained Comprehensive 1ieasury Unearned Shareholders

Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income Loss Stock Compensation Equity

Balance Februasy 25 2006 86939 $100779 $132075 582221 583 $222254 $2256 589982

Comprehensive income loss

Net loss
227645 227645

Other comprehensive income loss net

of tax as applicable

Minimum pension liability adjustments
7172 7172

Currency translation adjustments
2550 2550

Comprehensive loss
223023

Adjustment to initially apply SPAS No 158 1631 1631

Restricted stock compensation
185 4280 2994 2256 970

Stock option compensation expense
4494 4494

Exercise of stock options stock purchase

plan and other 674 1873 9596 7723

Cash dividends $20 per share 17398 17398

Balance March 2007 87798 100 779 130416 337 178 2408 209 664 361 117

Implementation of FIN 48 5073 073

Comprehensive loss

Net loss 96011 96011

Other comprehensive income loss net

of tax as applicable

Pension adjustments
3017 3017

Currency translation adjustments
982 982

Comprehensive loss
98046

Restricted stock compensation 281 2974 4533 1559

Stock option compensation expense
4278 4278

Exercise of stock options stock purchase

plan and other 528 4925 8834
______

3909

Balance March 2008 88607 100779 126795 236094 373 196297 267744

Comprehensive loss

Net loss
129253 129253

Other comprehensive income loss net

of tax as applicable

Pension adjustments
2016 2016

Currency translation adjustments
3584 3584

Comprehensive loss
130821

Restricted stock compensation 245 2298 3947 1649

Stock option compensation expense 3528
3528

Exercise of stock options stock purchase

plan and other 1022 14699 16860 2161

Balance February 28 2009 89874 $100779 $113326 $106841 $1195 $175 490 $144261

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

OrganizationPier Imports Inc together with its consolidated subsidiaries the Company is

one of North Americas largest specialty retailers of imported decorative home furnishings and gifts

with retail stores located in the United States and Canada Additionally the Company has merchandise

in store within store locations in Mexico and PUerto Rico that are primarily operated by Sears

Roebuck de Mexico S.A de C.V and Sears Roebuck de Puerto Rico Inc respectively On March 20
2006 the Company sold its subsidiary based in the United Kingdom The Pier Retail Group Limited

The Pier The Pier has been included in discontinued operations in the Companys financial

statements for fiscal year 2007

Basis of consolidationThe consolidated financial statements of the Company include the

accounts of all subsidiary companies except ji fiscal 2Q07 Pier Funding LLC Funding
non-consolidated bankruptcy remote securitization subsidiary See Note of the Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements for further discussion All intercompany transactions and balances .have been

eliminated

Segment informationThe Company is specialty retailer that offers broad range of products in

its stores and conducts business as one operating segment The Company domestic operations

provided 90 9% 90 9% and 92 3% of its net sales with 5% 7% and 3% provided by stores in

Canada and the remainder from royalties received from Sears Roebuck de Mexico S.A de C.V during
fiscal 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively As of February 28 2009 March 2008 and March 2007
$2308000 $4572000 and $5510000 respectively of the Companys long-lived assets were located in

Canada There were no long-lived assets in Mexico during any period

Use of estimatesPreparation of the financial statements in conformity with
generally

accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the

amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes Actual results could differ from

those estimates

ReclassificationsCertain reclassifications have been made in the prior years consolidated

financial statements to conform to the fiscal 2009 presentation These rŁclassifications had no effect on
net income shareholders equity total assets and total liabilities and the major categories of the cash

flow In addition to insignificant reclassifications on the statement of cash flows the Companys home
office building and related assets were reclassified during the first quarter of fiscal 2009 to noncurrent

assets from assets held for sale which were included in current assets at March 2008 This
reclassification on the balance sheet was made in all .prior periods presented to reflect the fact that the
Company entered into lease for portion of the building when the sale transaction was completed
and therefore the building did not meet the definition of assets held for sale at the balance sheet dates

Depreciation was recorded on the assets through the date of sale and the reclassification had no impact
on the results of operations or statement of cash flows in any period presented As stated in Note of
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements above the office building and related assets wer sold on

June 2008

Fiscal periodsThe Company utilizes week quarterly accounting periods with the fiscal

year ending on the Saturday nearest the last day of February Both fiscal 2009 and 2008 consisted of

52-week years and fiscal 2007 consisted of 53-week year Fiscal 2009 ended February 28 2009 fiscal

2008 ended March 2008 and fiscal 2007 ended March 2007
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

NOTE 1DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
PIThL ICIV4 n.ifiniirfl

Cash and cash equivalents including temporary investmentsThe Company considers all highly

liquid investments with an original maturity date of three months or less to be cash equivalents except

for those investments that are restricted and have been set aside in trust to satisfy retirement

obligations As of February 28 2009 and March 2008 the Companys short-term investments

classified as cash equivalents included investments in money market mutual funds totaling $142523000

and $87837000 respectively The effect of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations on cash was not

material

Translation of foreign currenciesAssets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into

U.S dollars at fiscal year end exchange rates Income and expense items are translated at average

exchange rates prevailing during the year Translation adjustments arising from differences in exchange

rates from period to period are included as separate component of shareholders equity and are

included in other comprehensive income loss As of February 28 2009 March 2008 and March

2007 the Company had cumulative other comprehensive income lOSS balances of $162000

$3422000 and $2440000 respectively related to cumulative translation adjustments The adjustments

for currency translation during fiscal 2009 2008 and 2007 resulted in other comprehensive income

loss net of tax as applicable of $3584000 $982000 and $2550000 respectively Taxes on the

portion of its cumulative currency translation adjustment considered not to be permanently reinvested

abroad were insignificant in fiscal 2009 2008 and 2007

Concentrations of riskThe Company has some degree of risk concentration with respect to

sourcing the Companys inventory purchases However the Company believes alternative merchandise

sources could be procured over relatively short period of time Pier Imports sells merchandise

imported from over 50 different countries with more than 40% of its sales derived from merchandise

produced in China approximately 10% derived from merchandise produced in each of India

Indonesia Vietnam and the United States and approximately 10% collectively derived from

merchandise produced in Thailand Brazil the Philippines Italy Mexico and Spain The remaining

sales were from merchandise produced in various Asian European Central American South

American African countries and Canada

Financial instrumentsThe fair value of financial instruments is determined by reference to

various market data and other valuation techniques as appropriate Other than the 375% convertible

senior notes due 2036 there were no assets or liabilities with fair value significantly different from

the recorded value of February 28 2009 and March 2008 The fair value of these notes was

$42900000 and $133650000 based on quoted market values as of February 28 2009 and March

2008 respectively On March 20 2009 foreign subsidiary of the Company purchased portion
of

these convertible notes at price
which would imply fair value of the total outstanding prior to the

purchase of approximately $56000000 Changes in the market interest rates and other factors affecting

convertible notes affect the fair value of the Companys fixed rate notes but do not affect the

Companys financial position results of operations or cash flows related to these instruments

Risk management instruments The Company may utilize various financial instruments to manage

interest rate and tharket risk associated with its on and off balance sheet commitments

From time to time the Company hedges certain commitments denominated in foreign currencies

through the purchase of forward contracts The forward contracts are purchased to cover portion of

commitments to buy merchandise for resale The Company also on occasion uses contracts to hedge
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its exposure associated with the repatriation of funds from its Canadian operations At February 28
2009 and March 2008 there were no outstanding contracts to hedge exposure associated with the

Companys merchandise purchases denominated in foreign currencies or the repatriation of Canadian

funds For financial accounting purposes the Company does not designate such contracts as hedges

Thus changes in the fair value of both types of fOrward contracts would be included in the Companys
consolidated statements of operations Both the changes in fair value and settlement of these contracts

are included in cost of sales for forwards related to merchandise purchases and in selling general and

administrative expense for the contracts associated with the repatriation of Canadian funds

When the Company enters into forward foreign currency exchange contracts it enters into them

with major financial institutions and continually monitors its positions with and the credit quality of

these counterparties to such financial instruments

Beneficial interest in securitized receivablesAs of February 28 2009 and March 2008 the

Company had no beneficial interest since it allowed its securitization agreement to expire in fiscal 2007

Prior to the expiration of this agreement the Company securitized its entire portfolio of proprietary

credit card receivables except an immaterial amount of those that failed certain eligibility

requirements to special-purpose wholly owned subsidiary Funding which transferred the receivables

to the Pier Imports Credit Card Master Trust the Master Trust Neither Funding nor the Master

Trust were consolidated by the Company as the Master Trust met the requirements of qualifying

special-purpose entity under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS No 140

Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities The

Master Trust issued beneficial interests that represent undivided interests in the assets of the Master

Trust consisting of the transferred receivables and all cash flows from collections of such receivables

The beneficial interests included certain interests retained by Funding which were represented by

Class Certificates and the residual interest in the Master Trust the excess of the principal amount of

receivables held in the Master Trust over the portion represented by the certificates sold to third-party

investors and the Class Certificates Gain or loss on the sale of receivables depended in part on the

previous carrying amount of the financial assets involved in the transfer allocated between the assets

sold and the retained interests based on their relative fair value at the date of transfer

The beneficial interest in the Master Trust was accounted for as an available-for-sale security and

was recorded at fair value The Company estimated fair value of its beneficial interest in the Master

Trust both upon initial securitization and thereafter based on the present value of future expected

cash flows using managements best estimates of key assumptions including credit losses and payment

rates See Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion

InventoriesThe Companys inventory is comprised of finished merchandise and is stated at the

lower of weighted average cost or market value Cost is calculated based upon the actual landed cost of

an item at the time it is received in the Companys warehouse using actual vendor invoices the cost of

warehousing and transporting merchandise to the stores and other direct costs associated with

purchasing merchandise

The Company recognizes known inventory losses shortages and damages when incurred and

maintains reserve for estimated shrinkage since the last physical count when actual shrinkage was

recorded The reserves for estimated shrinkage at the end of fiscal years 2009 and 2008 were $6582000
and $3756000 respectively The Companys reserve for shrinkage as of fiscal 2009 year end increased

from 2008 as result of shift in the timing of physical inventory counts
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In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 the Company made strategic decision to liquidate certain

inventory and completed its liquidation efforts by the end of the first quarter
of fiscal 2008 In

connection with this decision $32500000 inventory write-down was recorded in fiscal 2007 to state

the excess inventory at the lower of average cost or market The write-down of inventory consisted

primarily of previous merchandise assortments the Company discontinued offering in its stores This

decision was made by the Company in order to clear room in its stores to allow for new inventory to

be displayed as it arrived throughout fiscal 2008

Properties maintenance and repairsBuildings equipment furniture and fixtures and leasehold

improvements are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation Depreciation is computed using the

straight-line method over estimated remaining useful lives of the assets generally thirty years for

buildings and three to ten years for equipment furniture and fixtures Depreciation of improvements to

leased properties is based upon the shorter of the remaining primary lease term or the estimated useful

lives of such assets Depreciation related to the Companys distribution centers is included in cost of

sales All other depreciation costs are included in depreciation
and amortization Depreciation costs

were $30556000 $39478000 and $49984000 in fiscal 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

Expenditures for maintenance repairs and renewals that do not materially prolong the original

useful lives of the assets are charged to expense as incurred In the case of disposals assets and the

related depreciation are removed from the accounts and the net amount less proceeds from disposal is

credited or charged to income

Long lived assets are reviewed for impairment at least annually and whenever an event or change

in circumstances indicates that its carrying value may not be recoverable If the carrying value exceeds

the sum of the expected undiscounted cash flows the assets are considered impaired For store level

long lived assets expected cash flows are estimated based on managements estimate of future sales

merchandise margin rates and expenses over the remaining expected terms of the leases Impairment is

measured as the amount by which the carrying value of the asset exceeds the fair valie of the asset

Fair value is determined by discounting expected cash flows Impairment if any is recorded in the

period in which the impairment occurred Impairment charges were $9420000 or $0 11 per share

$4838000 or $0.05 per share and $31947000 or $0.7 per share in fiscal 2009 2008 and 2007

respectively and were included in selling general and administrative expenses As the projectiOn of

future cash flows requires the use of judgment and estimates if actual results differ from the

Companys estimates additional charges for asset impairments may be recorded in the future If

management had lowered its assumptions of comparable store sales results by 3% fr each of the next

five years additionalimpairment charges of approximately $2300000 would have been recorded in

fiscal 2009

Goodwill an4 intangible assetsThe Company applies the provisions of SFAS No 142 Goodwill

and Intangible Assets SFAS No 142 Under SFAS No 142 goodwill and intangible assets with

indefinite useful lives are not amortized but instead are tested for impairment at least annually In

accordance with SFAS No 142 the Companys reporting units were identified as components and the

goodwill assigned to each represents the excess of the original purchase price over the fair value of the

net identifiable assets acquired for that component The Company completed the annual impairment

test as of March 2007 Fair value was determined through analyses of discounted future cash flows

for the applicable reporting units The analysis resulted in write down of goodwill in fiscal 2007
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included in selling general and administrative expenses of approximately $4422000 primarily related

to Pier Kids The Company had no goodwill remaining as of the end of fiscal 2007

Revenue recognitionRevenue is recognized upon customer receipt or delivery for retail sales

including sales under deferred payment promotions on the Companys proprietary credit card in fiscal

2007 and prior years reserve has been established for estimated merchandise returns based upon
historical experience and other known factors The reserves for estimated merchandise returns at the

end of fiscal
years

2009 and 2008 were $1374000 and $1559000 respectively The Companys

revenues are reported net of discounts and returns net of sales tax and third-party credit card fees and

include wholesale sales and royalties received from Sears Roebuck de Mexico S.A de C.V and from

franchise stores in fiscal 2008 and 2007 Amounts billed to customers for shipping and handling are

included in net sales and the costs incurred by the Company for these items are recorded in cost of

sales

Gift cardsRevenue associated with gift cards is recognized when merchandise is sold and gift

card is redeemed as payment Gift card breakage is estimated and recorded as income based upon an

analysis of the Companys historical data and expected trends in redemption patterns and represents

the remaining unused portion of the gift card liability for which the likelihood of redemption is remote

If actual redemption patterns vary from the Companys estimates actual gift card breakage may differ

from the amounts recorded For all periods presented gift card breakage was recognized at 30 months

from the original issuance and was $4107000 $1699000 and $6222000 in fiscal 2009 2008 and 2007

respectively

LeasesThe Company leases certain property consisting principally of retail stores warehouses its

home office and material handling and office equipment under leases expiring through fiscal 2022

Most retail store locations are leased for primary terms of ten years with varying renewal options and

rent escalation clauses Escalations occurring during the primary terms of the leases are included in the

calculation of the minimum lease payments and the rent expense related to these leases is recognized

on straight-line basis over this lease term including free rent periods prior to the opening of its

stores The portion of rent expense applicable to store before opening is included in selling general

and administrative expenses Once opened for business rent expense is included in cost of sales

Certain leases provide for additional rental payments based on percentage of sales in excess of

specified base This additional rent is accrued when it appears that the sales will exceed the specified

base Construction allowances received from landlords are initially recorded as lease liabilities and

amortized as reduction of rental expense over the primary lease term The Companys lease

obligations are operating leases under SFAS No 13 Accounting for Leases

Advertising costsAdvertising production costs are expensed the first time the advertising takes

place Advertising costs were $49506000 $55122000 and $109540000 in fiscal 2009 2008 and 2007

respectively Prepaid advertising at the end of fiscal years 2009 and 2008 was $2707000 and $2096000

respectively

Defined benefit plansThe Company maintains supplemental retirement plans the Plans for

certain of its current and former executive officers The Plans provide that upon death disability

reaching retirement age or certain termination events participant will receive benefits based on

highest compensation years of service and years of plan participation These benefit costs are

dependent upon numerous factors assumptions and estimates Benefit costs may be significantly
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affected by changes in key actuarial assumptions such as the discount rate compensation increase rates

or retirement dates used to determine the projected benefit obligation Additionally changes made to

the provisions of the Plans may impact current and future benefit costs In accordance with accounting

rules changes in benefit obligations associated with these factors may not be immediately recognized as

costs in the statement of operations but recognized in future years over the remaining average service

period of plan participants See Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further

discussion

Income taxesThe Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method

Under this method deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between

financial reporting and income tax bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted

tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse Deferred tax

assets and liabilities are recorded in the Companys consolidated balance sheet and are classified as

current or noncurrent based on the classification of the related assets or liabilities for financial

reporting purposes valuation allowance is recorded to reduce the carrying amounts of deferred tax

assets unless it is more likely than not those assets will be realized In assessing the need for

valuation allowance all available evidence is considered including past operating results estimates of

future income and tax planning strategies At any point in time multiple tax years are subject to audit

by various jurisdictions and the Company records reserves for estimates of tax exposures for foreign

and domestic tax audits However negotiations with taxing authorities may yield results different from

those currently estimated See Note 10 of the Ntes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further

discussion

Loss per shareBasic loss per share amounts were determined by dividing loss from continuing

operations loss from discontinued operations and net loss by the weighted average number of common

shares outstanding for the period Diluted loss per share amounts were similarly computed but would

have included the effect if dilutive of the Companys weighted average number of stock options

outstanding and shares of unvested restricted stock
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Loss per share amounts were calculated as follows in thousands
except per share amounts

2009 2008 2007

Loss from continuing operations basic and

diluted
$129253 $96011 $227238

Loss from discontinued operations basic and

diluted 407
Net loss basic and diluted $129253 $96011 $227645

Average shares outstanding

Basic and diluted 88912 88083 87395

Loss per share from
continuing operations

Basic and diluted 1.45 1.09 2.59

Loss per share from discontinued operations

Basic and diluted .01

Net loss per share

Basic and diluted 45 09 60

All 12302323 13102360 and 13991195 outstanding stock options and shares of unvested

restricted stock were excluded from the computation of the fiscal 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively loss

per share as the effect would be antidilutive In addition incremental net shares for the conversion
feature of the Company 375% senior convertible notes due 2036 have not been included in the

Companys diluted earnings per share calculations for those periods aS the average common stock price
has not exceeded the initial conversion price of $15.19 per share

Stock based compensationThe Company grants stock
options and restricted stock for fixed

number of shares to employees with stock option exercise prices equal to the fair market value of the

shares on the date of the grant The Company accounts for stock based compensation under the

provisions of SFAS No 123 Revised 2004 Share Based Payment SFAS 123R SFAS 123R

requires all companies to measure and recognize compensation expense at an amount equal to the fair

value of share based payments granted under compensation arrangements

The Company adopted SFAS 123R at the beginning of fiscal 2007 using the modified prospective
method Under the modified prospective method the Company records stock-based compensation

expense for all awards granted on or after the date of adoption and for the portion of previously
granted awards that remained unvested at the date of adoption Currently the Companys stock-based

compensation relates to stock options restricted stock awards and director deferred stock units

Compensation expense is recognized for any unvested stock option awards outstanding as of the date of

adoption on straight-line basis over the remaining vesting period The fair values of the options are
calculated using Black-Scholes option pricing model The Company records compensation expense for

stock-based awards with performance condition when it is probable that the condition will be
achieved The compensation expense ultimately recognized if any related to these awards will equal
the grant date fair value for the number of shares for which the performance condition has been
satisfied
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SFAS 123R requires that forfeitures be estimated at the time of grant The Company estimates

forfeitures based on its historical forfeiture experience In accordance with SFAS 123R the Company

adjusts forfeiture estimates based on actual forfeiture experience for all awards with service conditions

The effect of forfeiture adjustments for the year was insignificant

LiquidityFrom fiscal 2006 through fiscal 2009 the Company has incurred net losses and had

negative cash flows from operating
activities The Companys turnaround plan includes making

conservative inventory purchases managing those inventories continuing to make the Companys

merchandise offering more compelling and improving the in-store experience In addition the

Company will continue to focus on its ongoing mission to maximize its revenues while seeking out

ways to reduce its cost base considering refinancing alternatives of its convertible senior notes and

preserving
its liquidity

The end of the difficult economic situation faced by the United States is not

known at this time and consumer confidence and spending could remain depressed and possibly

deteriorate even further The Company may incur negative operating cash flows in future periods and

long-term decline in consumer spending could have material adverse effect on the Companys

financial condition and ability to generate cash flows from operations There can be no assurance that

the Company will achieve or sustain positive
cash flows or profitability over the long term During fiscal

2010 the Company may become dependent on availability of adequate capital including utilization

under its secured credit facility to fund operations and carry out its turnaround strategy
The Company

believes that its existing cash balances and borrowings under its secured credit facility will provide

sufficient liquidity to fund operational obligations
and capital expenditure requirements through fiscal

year 2010 However if fiscal 2010 cash flow needs are in excess of availability under the secured credit

facility and the Company is unable to obtain additional financing sources the impact thereof will have

material adverse effect on the Companys business financial condition and results of operations

Adoption of new accounting standardsIn May 20O8 the Financial Accounting Standards Board

FASB issued FASB Staff Position FSP APB 14-i Accounting for Convertible Debt Instruments

That May Be Settled in Cash upon Conversion Including Partial Cash Settlement which clarifies

that convertible debt instruments that may be settled in cash upon conversion including partial cash

settlement are not addressed by paragraph 12 of APB Opinion No 14 Accounting for Convertible

Debt and Debt Issued with Stock Purchase Warrants Additionally this FSP specifies that issuers of

such instruments should separately account for the liability and equity components in manner that

will reflect the entitys nonconvertible debt borrowing rate when interest cost is recognized in

subsequent periods This FSP will be applied retrospectively to all periods presented FSP APB 14-1 is

effective for the Company at the beginning of fiscal year 2010 The Company is currently evaluating the

impact of the adoption on its financial statements
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Other properties are summarized as follows at February 28 2009 and March 2008 in
thousands

2009 2008

Land 6379 6379

Buildings 29546 29621
Equipment furniture and fixtures 243403 246803
Leasehold improvements 162832 167542

Computer software 74588 73175
Projects in

progress 798 41

517546 523561

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 432411 408609

Other properties net 85135 $114952

In addition to the above properties the Company had an office building and related assets with

net book value of $80539000 as of March 2008 which it utilized as its corporate headquarters On
June 2008 the Company sold its corporate headquarters building and accompanying land to

Chesapeake Plaza L.L.C an affiliate of Chesapeake Energy Corporation for net proceeds of

approximately $102400000 The Company also entered into lease agreement to rent office space in

the building The lease has primary term of seven years which began on June 2008 with one

three-year renewal option and provisions for terminating the lease at the end of the fifth lease year
The related gain on the sale of the property was approximately $23300000 the majority of which is

included in other noncurrent liabilities and will be recognized over the expected lease term In

connection with this transaction the corporate headquarters building was removed from the assets

securing borrowings under the Companys secured credit facility

NOTE 3OTHER ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

The following is summary of other accrued liabilities and noncurrent liabilities at February 28
2009 and March 2008 in thousands

2009 2008

Accrued payroll and other employee-related liabilities 38185 46416
Accrued taxes other than income 23617 24030
Rent-related liabilities 10423 11017
Retirement benefits 3292 1351
Other 25833 19003

Other accrued liabilities $101350 $101817

Rent related liabilities 30047 34887
Deferred gains 31673 19634
Retireffient benefits 21074 24276
Other 10596 15361

Other noncurrent liabilities 93390 94158
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As part of the ordinary course of business the Company terminates leases prior to their expiration

when certain stores or distribution center facilities are closed or relocated as deemed necessary by the

evaluation of its real estate portfolio These decisions are based on store profitability lease renewal

obligations relocation space availability local market conditions and prospects
for future profitability

In connection with these lease terminations the Company has recorded estimated liabilities in

accordance with SFAS No 146 Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities At

the time of closure neither the write-off of fixed assets nor the write-down of inventory related to such

stores was material Additionally employee severance costs associated with these closures were not

significant The estimated liabilities were recorded based upon the Companys remaining lease

obligations less estimated subtenant rental income Revisions during the periods presented relate to

changes in estimated buyout terms or subtenant receipts expected on closed facilities Expenses related

to lease termination obligations are included in selling general and administrative expenses in the

Companys consolidated statements of operations The write-off of fixed assets and associated

intangible assets related to Pier Imports store closures excluding clearance and Pier Kids stores

was approximately $56000 $751000 and $370000 in fiscal 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively The

following table represents roilforward of the liability balances for the three fiscal years
ended

February 28 2009 in thousands

Lease

Termination

Obligations

Balance at February 25 2006 2859

Original charges 4245

Revisions 242
Cash payments 4426

Balance at March 2007 2436

Original charges 11573

Revisions 1133
Cash payments 7248

Balance at March 2008 5628

Original charges 5591

Revisions 483

Cash payments 6704

Balance at February 28 2009 4998

Included in the table above are lease termination costs related to the closure .of all of the

Companys clearance and Pier Kids stores and the direct to consumer channel These concepts were

closed during fiscal 2008 since their aggregate performance was not in line with the Companys

profitability targets Lease termination costs associated with these closures were $258000 or less than

$0.01 per share during fiscal 2009 and $7973000 or $0.09 per share during fiscal 2008 Cash outflows

related to these lease terminations were $2889000 and $5138000 during fiscal 2009 and 2008

respectively The net write-off of fixed assets write-down of inventory and employee severance costs

associated with these closures was not material

An outside firm has been hired to assist the Company in negotiating with landlords to achieve

reductions in rental rates across its store portfolio
In certain cases if appropriate rental reductions
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cannot be reached the Company may elect to close those locations Currently the Company expects to

close no more than 80 locations in connection with these negotiation efforts Actual expenses related to

these closures cannot be estimated as they will largely depend upon the results of on going

negotiations

NOTE 5LONG-TERM DEBT AND AVAILABLE CREDIT

Long term debt is summarized as follows at February 28 2009 and March 2008 in thousands

2009 2008

Industrial revenue bonds $19000 $19000
375% convertible senior notes due 2036 165000 165000

184009 184000
Lessportion due within one year

Long-term debt $184000 $184000

The Company has $19000000 in industrial revenue bond loan agreements which have been

outstanding since 1987 Proceeds were used to construct warehouse/distribution facilities The loan

agreements and related tax-exempt bonds mature in the year 2026 The Companys interest rates on the

loans are based on the bond interest rates which are market driven reset weekly and are similar to

other tax exempt municipal debt issues The Companys weighted average effective interest rate

including standby letter of credit fees was 5% for fiscal 2009 and 2% for both fiscal 2008 and 2007

In February 2006 the Company issued $165000000 of 6.375% convertible senior notes due 2036

the Notes in private placement and subsequently registered the Notes with the Securities and

Exchange Commission in June 2006 The Notes are governed by an Indenture dated February 14 2006

the Indenture The Notes bear interest at rate of 6.375% per year until February 15 2011 and at

rate of 6.125% per year thereafter Interest is payable semiannually in arrears on February 15 and

August 15 of each year and commenced August 15 2006 The Notes are convertible into cash and if

applicable shares of the Company common stock based on an initial conversion rate subject to

adjustments of 65 8328 shares per $1000 principal amount of Notes which represents an initial

conversion price of approximately $15 19 per share
representing 40% conversion premium at

issuance Holders of the Notes may convert their Notes only under the following circumstances

during any fiscal quarter and only during such fiscal quarter commencing after May 27 2006 if

the last reported sale price of the Companys common stock for at least 20 trading days during the

period of 30 consecutive trading days ending on the last trading day of the preceding fiscal quarter is

greater than or equal to 130% of the applicable conversion price on such last trading day if the

Company has called the Notes for redemption or upon the occurrence of
specified corporate

transactions In general upon conversion of Note holder will receive cash equal to the lesser of the

principal amount of the Note or the conversion value of the Note plus common stock of the Company
for any conversion value in excess of the principal amount As of February 28 2009 the maximum
number of shares that could be required to be issued to net share settle the conversion of the Notes
was 10862412 shares The Company may redeem the Notes at its option on or after February 15 2011
for cash at 100% of the principal amount The Notes are fully and

unconditionally guaranteed on

joint and several basis by all of the Companys material domestic consolidated subsidiaries

53



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

NOTE 5LONG-TERM DEBT AND AVAILABLE CREDIT Continued

The holders of the Notes can at their option require the Company to purchase all or portion of

their Notes at repurchase price in cash equal to 100% of the principal amount of the repurchased

Notes at February 15 2011 February 15 2016 February 15 2021 February 15 2026 and February 15

2031 or if fundamental change occurs Fundamental change is defined in the Indenture and will be

deemed to have occurred upon certain changes in beneficial ownership of the Companys common

equity as described in the Indenture certain share exchanges consolidations mergers or assets

transactions as described in the Indenture Continuing Directors as defined in the Indenture

ceasing to constitute at least majority
of the Companys board of directors the Companys

stockholders approving any plan or proposal for the Companys liquidation or dissolution or the

Companys common stock ceasing to be listed on national securities exchange or quoted on the

Nasdaq National Market or another established automated over-the-counter trading market in the

United States The Company believes that it will continue to be able to satisfy the above requirement

for the listing or quotation of its common stock If the Company is however unable to comply with

this provision of the Notes the holders of the Notes could at their option require the Company to

repurchase all or portion
of their Notes Such an event could have material adverse effect on the

Company if the Company does not have sufficient cash is unable to raise sufficient additional capital

for such repurchases or is otherwise unable to refinance the Notes

In connection with the issuance of the Notes the Company purchased call option with respect to

its common stock Tithe call option which expires February 15 2011 is exercised by the Company it

must be net share settled and in all cases the Company would receive shares This transaction has no

effect on the terms of the Notes but is intended to reduce the potential dilution upon future

conversion of the Notes by effectively increasing the initial conversion price to $17.09 per share

representing 57.5% conversion premium at issuance The call option is exercisable under the same

circumstances which can trigger conversion under the Notes so long as the Company remains listed on

the New York Stock Exchange The American Stock Exchange or the Nasdaq National Market or their

respective successors The cost of $9145000 of the purchased call option is included in shareholders

equity

EITF Issue No 00 19 Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed to and

Potentially Settled in Company Own Stock EITF 00 19 provides guidance for distinguishing

between when financial instrument should be accounted for permanently in equity temporarily in

equity or as an asset or liability The conversion feature of the Notes and the call option
each meet the

requirements of EITF 00 19 to be accounted for as equity instruments Therefore the conversion

feature has not been accounted for as derivative which would require
mark to market adjustment

each period In the event the debt is exchanged the transaction will be accounted for with the cash

payment of principal reducing the recorded liability and the issuance of common shares recorded in

shareholders equity In addition the premium paid
for the call option

has been recorded as additional

paid-in capital in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and is not accounted for as derivative

Incremental net shares for the Note conversion feature will be included in the Companys future

diluted earnings per share calculations for those periods in which the Companys average common

stock price exceeds $15.19 per share

As discussed in Note 13 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements on March 20 2009

foreign subsidiary of the Company purchased $78941000 of the Companys outstanding Notes at

purchase price of $27399000 including accrued interest The foreign subsidiary intends to hold the

Notes until maturity As result of this transaction the Company has reduced its outstanding

convertible debt to $86059000 on consolidated basis The Company expects to recognize gain of
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approximately $49000000 in connection with this transaction
during the first quarter of fiscal 2010 As

result of the put features of the Notes the Company anticipates that the remaining $86059000 in

Notes will have to be repaid or refinanced on or before February 15 2011 The Notes are included in

fiscal 2011 long-term debt maturities in the table below at the entire $165000000 that was outstanding
at the end of fiscal 2009 Long-term debt matures as follows in thousands

Long-term
Fiscal Year Debt

2010

2011 165000
2012

2013

2014

Thereafter 19000

Total long-term debt $184000

The Company has $325000000 secured credit facility which matures in May 2012 and is secured

by the Companys eligible merchandise inventory and third-party credit card receivables The Company
sold its corporate headquarters building during fiscal 2009 and as result the building was removed
from the assets securing borrowings under the Companys secured credit facility at that time During
fiscal 2009 and 2008 the Company had no cash borrowings under this facility As of February 28 2009
the Companys borrowing base as defined by the agreement was $201669000 This borrowing base
calculation is subject to advance rates and commercially reasonable availability reserves After excluding
the required minimum $32500000 and the $84256000 in utilized letters of credit and bankers

acceptances from the borrowing base $84913000 remained available for cash borrowings The facility

bears interest at LIBOR plus 1.0% for cash borrowings The Company pays fee ranging from 1.0% to

1.5% for standby letters of credit depending on the average daily availability as defined by the

agreement 0.5% for trade letters of credit and commitment fee of 0.25% for any unused amounts
As of February 28 2009 the fee for standby letters of credit was 1.0% As of February 28 2009 the

Company utilized approximately $84256000 in letters of credit and bankers
acceptances against the

secured credit facility Of the
outstanding balance approximately $16228000 related to trade letters of

credit and bankers acceptances for merchandise purchases $43669000 related to standby letters of

credit for the Companys workers compensation and general liability insurance policies $19429000
related to standby letters of credit related to the Companys industrial revenue bonds and $4930000
related to other miscellaneous standby letters of credit Should the availability under the facility be less

than $32500000 the Company would be required to comply with fixed charge coverage ratio as

stated in the agreement Assuming availability was below that level the fixed charge coverage ratio

would not have been met during fiscal 2009 The Company does not anticipate falling below this

minimum availability in the foreseeable future The Company was in compliance with all required debt
covenants at fiscal 2009 year end This facility may limit certain investments and in some instances
limit payment of cash dividends and repurchases of the Companys common stock Under this credit

facility the Company will not be restricted from paying certain dividends unless the
availability under

the facility over specified period of time is projected to be less than $97500000
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NOTE 6CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Companys 6.375% conveitibie senior notes due 2036 are fully and unconditionally

guaranteed on joint and several basis by all of the Companys material domestic consolidated

subsidiaries the Guarantor Subsidiaries The subsidiaries that do not guarantee such notes are

comprised of the Companys foreign subsidiaries and certain other insignificant domestic consolidated

subsidiaries the Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries Each of the Guarantor Subsidiaries is wholly owned

The Company registered these Notes with the Securities and Exchange Commission in June 2006

therefore in lieu of providing separate audited financial statements for the Guarantor Subsidiaries

condensed consolidating financial information is presented below

CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended February 28 2009

in thousands

Non-

Pier Guarantor Guarantor

Imports Inc Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Net sales $1312426 $14674 6423 $1320677

Cost of sales including buying and

store occupancy costs 950710 13244 6741 957213

Selling general and administrative

including depreciation and

amortization 3788 479724 515 484027

Operating income loss 3788 118008 915 318 120563

Nonoperating income expenses 2398 10881 417 8066

Income loss from continuing

operations before income taxes 1390 128889 1332 318 128629

Provision benefit for income taxes 637 13 624

Net income loss from continuing

operations 1390 129526 1345 318 129253

Net income loss from subsidiaries 128181 1345 126836

Net income loss $129571 128181 $1345 $127154 129253
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CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended March 2008

in thousands

Non-
Pier Guarantor Guarantor

Imports Inc Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Net sales $1505011 $38155 $31334 $1511832
Cost of sales including buying and

store occupancy costs 1068371 35466 31557 1072280
Selling general and administrative

including depreciation and

amortization 1829 525279 582 527690

Operating income loss 1829 88639 2107 223 88138
Nonoperating income expenses 2106 7999 614 5279

Income loss from continuing

operations before income taxes 277 96638 2721 223 93417
Provision for income taxes 2380 214 2594

Net income loss from continuing

operations 277 99018 2507 223 96011
Net income loss from subsidiaries 96511 2507 94004

Net income loss $96234 96511 2507 94227 96011
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CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended March 2007

in thousands

Non-

Pier Guarantor Guarantor

Imports Inc Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Net sales $1615951 $42780 $35515 $1623216

Cost of sales including buying and

store occupancy costs 1145765 39114 35622 1149257

Selling general and administrative

including depreciation and

amortization 1585 697075 1529 700189

Operating income loss 1585 226889 2137 107 226230

Nonoperating income expenses 3660 6251 698 1893

Income loss from continuing

operations before income taxes 2075 233140 2835 107 228123

Provision benefit for income taxes 1101 216 885

Net income loss from continuing

operations 2075 232039 2619 107 227238

Net income loss from subsidiaries 229827 2212 227615

Discontinued operations

Loss from discontinued operations 638 638

Benefit for income taxes 231 231

Net loss from discontinued

operations
407 407

Net income loss $227752 229827 2212 $227722 227645
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CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED BALANCE SHEET

February 28 2009

in thousands

Non-

Pier Guarantor Guarantor

Imports Inc Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 61648 62399 $31751 $155798
Other accounts receivable net 15684 1880 17566
Inventories 316245 86 316331
Income tax receivable 1667 482 2149
Prepaid expenses and other current

assets 100 41783 41883

Total current assets 61750 437778 34199 533727
Other properties net 81398 3737 85135
Investment in subsidiaries 16125 45262 61387
Other noncurrent assets 5525 31075 36600

83400 $595513 $37936 $61387 $655462

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS
EQUITY

Current liabilities

Accounts payable 116 80288 291 80695

Intercompany payable receivable 226635 234163 7528
Gift cards and other deferred revenue 47332 47332
Accrued income taxes payable

receivable 48 4553 167 4434
Other accrued liabilities 610 100662 78 101350

Total current liabilities 225861 466998 7326 233811
Long-term debt 165000 19000 184000
Other noncurrent liabilities 93390 93390
Shareholders equity 144261 16125 45262 61387 144261

83400 $595513 $37936 $61387 $655462
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CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED BALANCE SHEET

March 2008

in thousands

Non-

Pier Guarantor Guarantor

Imports Inc Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 53030 26824 $13579 93433

Other accounts receivable net 21607 1509 23121

InVentories 411709 411709

Income tax receivable 13251 381 13632

Prepaid expenses and other current

assets
78 41367 41445

Total current assets 53113 514758 15469 583340

Office building and related assets 80539 80539

Other properties net 111112 3840 114952

Investment in subsidiaries 145555 43354 188909

Other noncurrent assets 6588 36485 43073

205256 $786248 $19309 $188909 $821904

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS
EQUITY

Current liabilities

Accounts payable 126 $104900 1058 $106084

Intercompany payable receivable 228310 253339 25029
Gift cards and other deferred revenue 63101 63101

Accrued income taxes payable

receivable
48 5065 113 5000

Other accrued liabilities 648 101130 39 101817

Total current liabilities 227488 527535 24045 276002

Long-term debt 165000 19000 184000

Other noncurrentliabilities 94158 94158

Shareholders equity 267744 145555 43354 188909 267744

205256 $786248 $19309 $188909 $821904
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CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended February 28 2009

in thousands

Non-

Pier Guarantor Guarantor

Imports Inc Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Cash flow from operating activities

Net cash provided by used in operating

activities 4782 $55282 $18866 $31634
Cash flow from investing activities

Capital expenditures 13378 13378
Proceeds from disposition of properties 102478 102478
Proceeds from the sale of restricted

investments 3258 3258
Purchase of restricted investments 2020 2020
Collections of note receivable 1500 1500
Capitalization of subsidiary 250 250

Net cash provided by investing activities 91588 250 91838

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from stock options exercised

stock purchase plan and other net 2161 2161
Advances to from subsidiaries 1675 731 944

Net cash provided by used in financing

activities 3836 731 944 2161
Change in cash and cash equivalents 8618 35575 18172 62365
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning

of period 53030 26824 13579 93433

Cash and cash equivalents at end of

period $61648 62399 $31751 $155798
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CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended March 2008

in thousands

Non-

Pier Guarantor Guarantor

Imports Inc Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Cash flow from operating activities

Net cash provided by used in operating

activities 7230 $94318 4014 $83074

Cash flow from investing activities

Capital expenditures 7153 7153

Proceeds from disposition of properties 5674 5674

Proceeds from the sale of restricted

investments 6986 6986

Purchase of restricted investments 589 589

Collections of principal on beneficial

interest in securitized receivables 1500 1500

Net cash provided by investing activities 6418 6418

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from stock options exercised

stock purchase plan and other net 3909 --- 3909

Debt issuance costs 998 998

Advances to from subsidiaries 69272 72023 2751

Net cash provided by use4 in financing

activities 65363 71025 2751 2911

Change in cash and cash equivalents 58133 16875 1263 73745

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning

of period 111163 43699 12316 167178

Cash and cashequivalents at end of

periOd 53030 26824 $13579 93433
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CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended March 2007

in thousands

Non-
Pier Guarantor Guarantor

Imports Inc Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Cash flow from operating activities

Net cash provided by used in

operating activities 9354 $117163 2922 $18 $104905

Cash flow from investing activities

Capital expenditures 28600 28600
Proceeds from disposition of

properties 173 173

Net proceeds from sale of

discontinued operations 14998 3397 11601
Net proceeds from sale of Pier

National Bank 12962 2208 10754
Proceeds from the sale of restricted

investments 25707 25707
Purchase of restricted investments 9712 9712
Collections of principal on beneficial

interest in securitized receivables 21907 21907

Net cash provided by used in

investing activities 37435 5605 31830

Cash flow from financing activities

Cash dividends 17398 18 18 17398
Proceeds from stock options

exercised stock purchase plan and

other net 4618 101 4719
Notes payable borrowings 69000 69000
Repayments of notes payable 69000 69000
Debt issuance costs 283 283
Advances to from subsidiaries 16190 22858 6668

Net cash provided by used in

financing activities 28970 22658 6668 18 12962
Change in cash and cash equivalents 19616 57070 9351 86037
Cash and cash

equivalents at beginning
of period 130779 100769 21667 253215

Cash and cash equivalents at end of

period $111163 43699 $12316 $167178

Includes cash at discontinued operation at the beginning of period of $7100 and $0 at end of

period
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NOTE 7EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company offers qualified defined contribution employee retirement plan to all its full- and

part-time personnel who are at least 18 years old and have been employed for minimum of six

months During fiscal 2009 2008 and 2007 employees contributing 1% to 5% of their compensation

received matching Company contribution of up to 3% Company contributions to the plan were

$2082000 $2305000 and $2645000 in fiscal 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

In addition the Company offers non-qualified deferred compensation plans for the purpose of

providing deferred compensation for certain employees whose benefits under the qualified plan may be

limited under Section 401k of the Internal Revenue Code The Companys expense for these

non-qualified plans was $690000 $831000 and $1628000 for fiscal 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

The Company has trusts established for the purpose of setting aside funds to be used to settle certain

obligations of these non-qualified deferred compensation plans and contributed $2020000 and used

$3258000 to satisfy portion of retirement obligations during fiscal 2009 As of February 28 2009 and

March 2008 the trusts assets consisted of interest bearing investments of $247000 and $1460000

and life insurance policies with cash surrender values of $5409000 and $7187000 and death benefits

of $13486000 and $17100000 respectively The trust assets are restricted and may only be used to

satisfy obligations to plan participants The Company owns and is the beneficiary of number of

insurance policies on the lives of current and former key executives that are unrestricted as to use At

the discretion of the Board of Directors such policies could be contributed to these trusts or to the

trusts established for the purpose of setting aside funds to be used to satisfy obligations arising from

supplemental retirement plans described below The cash surrender value of these unrestricted policies

was $16038000 at February 28 2009 and the death benefit was $24920000 These cash surrender

values are carried in the Companys consolidated financial statements in other noncurrent assets

The Company maintains supplemental retirement plans the Plans for certain of its executive

officers The Plans provide that upon death disability reaching retirement age and certain termination

events participant will receive benefits based on highest compensation years of service and years
of

plan participation The Company recorded expenses related to the Plans of $3210000 $3511000 and

$15112000 in fiscal 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

The Plans are not funded and thus have no plan assets However trust has been established for

the purpose of setting aside funds to be used to settle the defined benefit plan obligations upon

retirement or death of certain participants The trust assets are consolidated in the Companys financial

statements and consist of interest bearing investments in the amounts of $17 000 and $16000 included

in other noncurrent assets at February 28 2009 and March 2008 respectively These investments are

restricted and may only be used to satisfy retirement obligations to certain participants
The Company

has accounted for these restricted investments as available-for-sale securities Cash contributions of $0

and $23000 were made to the trust in fiscal 2009 and 2008 respectively Any future contributions will

be made at the discretion of the Board of Directors Restricted investments from the trust were sold to

fund retirement benefits of $0 and $6986000 in fiscal 2009 and 2008 respectively Funds from the trust

will be used to fund or partially
fund benefit payments through fiscal year

2019 that are expected to

total approximately $21118000 Of this amount the Company expects to pay $1784000 during fiscal

2010 $118000 during fiscal 2011 $118000 during fiscal 2012 $118000 during fiscal 2013 $1792000

during fiscal 2014 and $17188000 during fiscal
years

2015 through 2019
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Measurement of obligations for the Plans is calculated as of each fiscal year end The following

provides reconciliation of benefit obligations and funded status of the Plans as of February 28 2009

and March 2008 in thousands

2009 2008

Change in
projected benefit obligation

Projected benefit obligation beginning of
year $16609 $16460

Service cost 923 498

Interest cost 923 764

Actuarial gain ioss1 715 5238
Benefits paid including settlements 118 6351

Projected benefit obligation end of year $17622 $16609

Reconciliation of funded status

Projected benefit obligation $17622 $16609
Plan assets

Funded status $17622 $16609

Accumulated benefit obligation $17622 $16609

Amounts recognized in the balance sheets

Current liabilit 1784 326
Noncurrent liability 15838 16282
Accumulated other comprehensive loss pre-tax 4232 6311

Net amount recognized $13390 $10297

Cumulative other comprehensive loss net of taxes of $3291

in fiscal 2009 and 2008 941 3020

Weighted average assumptions used to determine

Benefit obligation end of year

Discount rate 5.00% 5.00%

Lump-sum conversion discount rate 5.00% 2.75%

Rate of compensation increase2 00% 00%

Net periodic benefit cost for years ended

Discount rate 500% 5.50%

Lump-sum conversion discount rate 2.75% 2.75%

Rate of compensation increase2 0.00% 0.00%

Actuarial loss for fiscal 2008 included the impact from the addition of the Companys
President and Chief Executive Officer to the Plan during the year Pursuant to his

employment agreement he was entitled to initially participate in the Plan with the same
level of benefit as his accrued benefit at his former employer

The rate of compensation increase shown above reflects no increase anticipated for fiscal

2010 An increase of 0% was assumed for fiscal years 2011 and thereafter
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Net periodic benefit cost included the following actuarially determined components during fiscal

2009 2008 and 2007 in thousands

2009 2008 2007

Service cost 923 498 2405

Interest cost 923 764 1931

Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost 551 361 804

Amortization of net actuarial loss 445 125 3203

Settlement charges 1399 5257

Curtailment charge 368 364 1512

Net periodiŁ benefit cost $3210 $3511 $15112

As of February 28 2009 and March 2008 accumulated other comprehensive loss included

amounts that had not been recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost related to prior

service cost of $3398000 and $4317000 and net actuarial loss of $834000 and $1993000

respectively The estimated prior
service cost and net actuarial loss that will be amortized from

accumulated other comprehensive loss into net periodic cost in fiscal 2010 are $498000 and $67000

respectively

In September 2006 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued SFAS No 158

Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Pension Plans an

amendment of FASB Statements No 87 88 106 and 132R SFAS 158 SFAS 158 requires

companies to recognize the funded status of postretirement benefit plans as an asset or liability in the

financial statements The Company adopted the funded status recognition portion of SFAS 158 as of

March 2007 and recorded an additional liability with an offset to other comprehensive income of

$1631000 In addition SFAS 158 requires an employer to measure its postretirement benefit plan

assets and benefit obligations as of the date of the employers fiscal year end This portion of the

statement was effective for the Company for fiscal 2009 and did not have material impact on the

Companys consolidated financial statements

NOTE 8MATTERS CONCERNING SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

On March 23 2006 the Board of Directors approved the adoption of the Pier Imports Inc 2006

Stock Incentive Plan the 2006 Plan The 2006 Plan was approved by the shareholders on June 22

2006 The aggregate number of shares available for issuance under the 2006 Plan included new

authorization of 1500000 shares plus shares not to exceed 560794 shares that remained available for

grant under the Pier Imports Inc 1999 Stock Plan the 1999 Stock Plan and the Pier

Imports Inc Management Restricted Stock Plan increased by the number of shares not to exceed

11186150 shares subject to outstanding awards on March 23 2006 under these prior plans that cease

to be subject to such awards As of February 28 2009 there was total of 1505812 shares available

for grant under the 2006 Plan

Stock option grantsOn January 27 2007 the Board of Directors approved an employment

agreement for the Companys President and Chief Executive Officer the CEO The employment

agreement set forth that on February 19 2007 the CEO would be granted two options to purchase an

aggregate of 3000000 shares of the Companys common stock The exercise price per share would be

the fair market value of the Companys common stock on the following day which was $6.69 The

66



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

NOTE 8MATTERS CONCERNING SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY Continued

options were granted as an employment inducement award and not under any stock option or other

equity incentive plan adopted by the Company The first option for 1000000 shares vested on

February 19 2008 The second option for 2000000 shares could have vested up to 1000000 shares

based on the Companys performance as measured by an adjusted consolidated EBITDA target as

defined in the agreement for the Companys 2009 fiscal year However the target was not met and the

shares did not vest The remaining 1000000 shares from the second option may vest based on the

Companys performance as measured by an adjusted consolidated EBITDA target for the Companys
2010 fiscal year Subject to the terms of the employment agreement the CEO must be employed at the

end of each fiscal year for the respective options to vest All options have term of ten years from the

date of grant The Company did not expense 1000000 shares of the second option during fiscal 2009

since the adjusted consolidated EBITDA target was not met The remaining 1000000 shares of the

second grant did not have SFAS 123R grant date at the end of fiscal 2009 and will be expensed in

fiscal 2010 if the Company determines it is probable the adjusted consolidated EBITDA target that was

set will be met

During fiscal 2009 the Board of Directors approved stock option grants under the 2006 Plan of

617300 shares As of February 28 2009 andMarch 2008 outstanding options covering 1259250 and

802625 shares were exercisable under the 2006 Plan respectively Options were granted at exercise

prices equal to the fair market value of the Companys common stock at the date of grant Employee

options issued under the 2006 Plan vest over period of four years and have term of ten years from

the grant date The employee options are fully vested upon death disability or retirement of the

employee The 2006 Plans administrative committee also has the discretion to take certain actions with

respect to stock options such as accelerating the vesting upon certain corporate changes as defined in

the 2006 Plan Non-employee director options are fully vested on the date of grant and are

exercisable for period of ten years

The 1999 Stock Plan provided for the granting of options to directors and employees with an

exercise price not less than the fair market value of the common stock on the date of the grant The

1999 Stock Plan provided that maximum of 14500000 shares of common stock could be issued under

the 1999 Stock Plan of which not more than 250000 shares could be issued under the Director

Deferred Stock Program The options issued to employees vest equally over period of four years

while non-employee directors options were fully vested at the date of issuance Both options have

term of ten years from the grant date The employee options are fully vested upon death disability or

retirement of an employee or under certain conditions such as change in control of the Company
unless the Board of Directors determines otherwise

prior to change of control event As of

February 28 2009 there were no shares available for grant under the 1999 Stock Plan All future stock

option grants will be made from shares available under the 2006 Plan Additionally outstanding options

covering 7757400 and 8465775 shares were exercisable under the 1999 Stock Plan at fiscal
years

ended 2009 and 2008 respectively

Under the 1989 Employee Stock Option Plan options vest over period of four to five
years

and

all have term of ten
years

from the
grant date As of February 28 2009 and March 2008

outstanding options covering 368975 and 714825 shares were exercisable respectively As result of

the expiration of the plan during fiscal 2005 no shares are available for future grant The plan was

subject to adjustments for stock dividends and certain other changes to the Companys capitalization
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summary of stock option transactions related to the stock option plans during the three fiscal

years
ended February 28 2009 is as follows

Weighted
Exercisable Shares

Average Fair Value at Number of Weighted Average

Shares Exercise Price Date of Grant Shares Exercise Price

Outstanding at February 25 2006 12738025 $15.41 11438025 $15.54

Options granted 2745500 7.24 $3.33

Options exercised 98950 7.77

Options cancelled or expired 1716450 14.42

Outstanding at March 2007 13668125 13.95 10797625 15.31

Options granted 724000 7.71 3.31

Options exercised 50775 7.43

Options cancelled or expired 1763875 14.54

Outstanding at March 2008 12577475 13.53 10983225 14.18

Options granted 617300 7.29 3.42

Options exercised 2875 679

Options cancelled or expired 1481975 14.43

Outstanding at February 28 2009 11709925 13 09 10385625 13 72

For shares outstanding at February 28 2009

Weighted Average

Remaining Shares Weighted Average

Total Weighted Average Contractual Currently Exercise Price-

Ranges of Exercise Prices Shares Exercise Price Life in years Exercisable Exercisable Shares

$4.24$6.69 1524150 6.37 5.76 1471650 6.41

$7.42$11.27 4200900 8.23 5.46 3062850 8.48

$11.50$17.25 2712500 16.20 5.65 2580000 16.30

$18.49$21.00 3272375 19.88 4.10 3271125 19.88

As of February 28 2009 the weighted average remaining contractual term for outstanding and

exercisable options was 5.16
years

and 4.78 years respectively The aggregate
intrinsic value for

outstanding and exercisable options was zero at fiscal 2009 year end The total intrinsic value of options

exercised for the fiscal years
ended 2009 2008 and 2007 was approximately $2000 $58000 and

$372000 respectively The intrinsic value of stock option is the amount by which the market value of

the underlying stock exceeds the exercise price
of the option

On February 26 2006 the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS 123R SFAS 123R requires all

companies to measure and recognize compensation expense at an amount equal to the fair value of

share based payments granted under compensation arrangements Prior to February 26 2006 the

Company accounted for stock option grants using the intrinsic value method in accordance with

AŁcounting Principles Board Opinion No 25 Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees and

recognized no compensation expense for stock option grants
since all options granted had an exercise

price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant The fair value of

the stock options is amortized on straight-line basis as compensation expense over the vesting periods

of the options The fair values for options granted during the respective period were estimated as of
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the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted average

assumptions

2009 2008 2007

Weighted average fair value of options granted 3.42 3.31 3.33

Risk-free interest rates 2.60% 4.68% 4.95%

Expected stock price volatility 51.29% 42.43% 47.15%

Expected dividend yields 0.00% 0.25% 0.40%

Weighted average expected lives
years years years

Option valuation models are used in estimating the fair value of traded options that have no

vesting restrictions and are fully transferable In addition option valuation models require the input of

highly subjective assumptions including the expected stock price volatility and the average life of

options The Company uses expected volatilities and risk-free interest rates that correlate with the

expected term of the option when estimating an options fair value To determine the expected term of

the option the Company bases its estimates on historical exercise
activity of grants with similar vesting

periods Expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of the common stock of the Company
for period approximating the expected life The risk free interest rate utilized is the United States

Treasury rate that most closely matches the weighted average expected life at the time of the grant
The expected dividend yield is based on the annual dividend rate at the time of grant or estimates of

future anticipated dividend rates

At February 28 2009 there was approximately $3313000 of total unrecognized compensation

expense related to unvested stock option awards This expense is expected to be recognized over

weighted average period of 2.08 years The Company recorded stock-based compensation expense
related to stock options of approximately $3528000 or $0.04 per share $4278000 or 0.05 per
share and $4494000 or $0.05 per share in fiscal 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively The Company
recognized no net tax benefit related to stock based compensation during fiscal 2009 or fiscal 2008 as

result of the Companys valuation allowance on all deferred tax assets See Note 10 of the Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements for additional discussion of income taxes

summary of the Companys nonvested options as of February 28 2009 is as follows

Weighted Average
Grant Date

Options Fair Value

Nonvested at beginning of period 1594250 $3.68

Granted 617300 3.42

Vested 674750 3.78

Cancelled 212500 3.54

Nonvested at end of period 1324300 $3.53

Restricted stock grantsAs of February 28 2009 and March 2008 the Company had 592398
and 524885 unvested shares of restricted stock awards outstanding respectively During fiscal 2009
399400 shares of restricted stock were granted 177268 shares of restricted stock vested and 154619
shares of restricted stock were cancelled During fiscal 2008 435100 shares of restricted stock were

granted 78870 shares of restricted stock vested and 154415 shares of restricted stock were cancelled

The weighted average fair market value at the date of grant of the restricted stock shares granted
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during fiscal 2009 pursuant to the 2006 Plan was $7.45 and is being expensed over the requisite vesting

period of three years As of fiscal 2009 year end no shares were available for future grant under the

Management Restricted Stock Plan since all future grants if any will be made from shares available

under the 2006 Plan

Compensation expense for restricted stock was $1649000 or $0.02 per share $1559000 or 0.02

per share and $970000 or $0.01 per share in fiscal 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively As of

February 28 2009 there was $3122000 of total unrecognized compensation expense related to

restricted stock that may be recognized over weighted average period of 1.62 years
if all performance

targets are met The total fair value of restricted stock awards vested was $1076000 $664000 and

$456000 in fiscal 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

Director deferred stock unitsThe 2006 Plan and the 1999 Stock Plan also authorize director

deferred stock unit awards to be granted to non-employee directors During fiscal 2009 each director

could elect to defer up to 100% of their directors cash fees into deferred stock unit account The

annual retainer tees deterred otner tnan committee cnairman ana cnairman annual ietainers received

25% matching contribution from the Company in the form of director deferred stock units As of

February 28 2009 and March 2008 there were 554292 shares and 360939 shares deferred but not

delivered under the 2006 Plan and the 1999 Stock Plan All future grants will be awarded from shares

available for grant under the 2006 Plan During fiscal 2009 approximately 193352 director deferred

stock units were granted no shares were delivered and no shares were cancelled Compensation

expense for the director deferred stock awards was $1015000 $1084000 and $557000 in fiscal 2009

2008 and 2007 respectively

Stock purchase planSubstantially all Company employees are eligible to participate in the Pier

Imports Inc Stock Purchase Plan under which the Companys common stock is purchased on behalf of

employees at market prices through regular payroll deductions Each participant may contribute up to

20% of the eligible portions of compensation The Company contributes 25% of the participants

contributions Prior to June 20 2008 participant could contribute up to 10% of eligible

compensation and the Company contributed from 10% to 100% of the participants contribution

depending on length of participation and date of entry into the plan Company contributions to the

plan were $263000 $786000 and $1143000 in fiscal years 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively As of

March 29 2009 the Companys stock purchase plan was suspended

Shares reserved for future issuancesAs of February 28 2009 the Company had approximately

15770000 shares reserved for future issuances under the stock plans This amount includes stock

options outstanding director deferred units and shares available for future grant

NOTE 9PROPRIETARY CREDIT CARD INFORMATION

On September 2006 the Company allowed its agreement to securitize its proprietary credit card

receivables to expire At the time of expiration the Company purchased $144007000 of proprietary

credit card receivables previously held by the Master Trust an unconsolidated subsidiary for

$100000000 in cash and in exchange for $44007000 of beneficial interest The Master Trust upon

approval from the Class Certificate holders paid $100000000 to redeem the Class Certificates

that were outstanding
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

NOTE 9PROPRIETARY CREDIT CARD INFORMATION Continued

On November 21 2006 the Company completed the sale of .its proprietary credit card operations

to Chase The sale was comprised of the Companys proprietary credit card receivables certain

charged-off accounts and the common stock of Pier National Bank The Company received cash

proceeds of $157583000 and was entitled to receive additional proceeds of $10750000 plus any

accrued interest over the life of the long term program agreement In both fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008
the Company received payments of $1500000 The net deferred gain associated with this sale will be

recognized in nonoperating income over the ten year life of the agreement described below The

Company recognized $2164000 and $1551000 deferred gain related to this agreement in fiscal 2009

and 2008 respectively

In addition the Company and Chase entered into long-term program agreement Under this

agreement the Company cOntinues to support the card through marketing programs and receive

additional payments over the life of the agreement for transaction level incentives marketing support
and other program terms The Company received total payments of $7500000 and $8742000 related

to this agreement during fiscal 2009 and 2008 respectively

Prior to the sale of its proprietary credit card operations in NOvember 2006 the COmpanys

proprietary credit card receivables were generated under open-ended revolving credit accounts issued

by its subsidiary Pier National Bank to finance purchases of merchandise and services offered by the

Company These accounts had various billing and payment structures including varying minimum

payment levels The Company had an agreement with third party to provide certain credit card

processing and related credit services while the Company maintained control over credit policy

decisions and customer service standards

Net proprietary credit card income was included in selling general and administrative expenses on

the Companys statements of operations The following table presents summary of the Companys

proprietary credit card results prior to the sale of Pier National Bank for fiscal 2007 on managed
basis Fiscal 2007 income and costs include activity through November 21 2006 when the Company

completed the sale of its proprietary credit card operations

2007

in thousands

Income

Finance charge income net of debt service costs $20127

Other income 118

20245

Costs

Processing fees 11565

Bad debts 3449

15014

Net proprietary credit card income 5231

The Company began securitizing its entire portfolio of proprietary credit card receivables the

Receivables in fiscal 1997 On daily basis from February 26 to September 2006 the Company
sold all of its proprietary credit card receivables except an immaterial amount of those that failed

certain eligibility criteria to special-purpose wholly owned subsidiary Funding The Receivables were

then transferred from Funding to the Master Trust In exchange for the Receivables the Company
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

NOTE 9PROPRIETARY CREDIT CARD INFORMATION Continued

received cash and retained residual interest in the Master Trust These cash payments were funded

from undistributed principal collections on the Receivables that were previously sold to the Master

Trust

Funding was capitalized by the Company as special-purpose wholly owned subsidiary and was

subject to certain covenants and restrjctions including restriction from engaging in any business or

activity unrelated to acquiring and selling interests in receivables The Master Trust issued beneficial

interests that represented undivided interests in the assets of the Master Trust Neither Funding nor the

Master Trust was consolidated in the Companys financial statements Under U.S generally accepted

accounting principles if the structure of securitization meets certain requirements such transactions

are accounted for as sales of receivables As the Companys securitizations met such requirements they

were accounted for as sales Gains or losses resulting from the daily sales of Receivables to Funding

were not material during fiscal 2007 The Companys exposure to deterioration in the performance of

the Receivables was limited to its retained beneficial interest in the Master Trust As such the

Company had no corporate obligation to reimburse Funding the Master Trust or purchasers of any

certificates issued by the Master Trust for credit losses from the Receivables

As result of the securitization the Master Trust had $100000000 of outstanding 2001-1 Class

Certificates issued to third party through September 2006 The 2001-1 Class Certificates bore

interest at floating rate equal to the rate on commercial paper issued by the third party plus credit

spread Since the securitization agreement expired in September 2006 there were no outstanding

2001-1 Class Certificates or 2001-1 Class Certificates at the end of fiscal 2009 or 2008 as all

amounts were settled

Cash flows received by the Company from the Master Trust during fiscal 2007 were as follows in

thousands

2007

Proceeds from collections reinvested in revolving securitizations $212653

Servicing fees received 1190

Cash flows received on retained interests 32592
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

NOTE 10INCOME TAXES

The provision benefit for income taxes for each of the last three fiscal
years consists of in

thousands

2009 2008 2007

Federal

Current $296 521 $25442
Deferred

22980
State

Current 236 1623 365
Deferred

1596
Foreign

Current 92 450 346

Deferred

Provision benefit for income taxes from continuing

operations 624 2594 885
Provision benefit for income taxes from discontinued

operations 231
Total provision benefit for income taxes $624 $2594 1116

The Company files U.S federal income tax return and income tax returns in various states and

foreign jurisdictions The Company has settled and closed all Internal Revenue Service IRS
examinations of the Companys tax returns for all years through fiscal 2002 Certain refund claims have
been through appeals and during fiscal 2009 the Company received refund of $12429000 including
interest With only few exceptions and other than changes to state taxable income required by the

IRS adjustments from the fiscal years 2000 through 2002 audit the Company is no longer subject to

state local and non-U.S income tax examinations by tax authorities for
years before fiscal 2003 The

IRS completed its examination of fiscal years 2003 through 2007 during the first quarter of fiscal 2010
As result of prior refunds received for the

years under audit the final audit results are subject to

approval by the Joint Committee on Taxation Final approval is expected to be received within

15 months There were no adjustments from thjs examination which resulted in significant permanent
differences that had not already been reserved

The Company has net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $276000000 These loss

carryforwards can be utilized to offset future income but will begin to expire in fiscal year 2027 if not
utilized before then
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities from continuing operations at February 28 2009 and March

2008 were comprised of the following in thousands

2009 2008

Deferred tax assets

Deferred compensation 19157 16933

Net operating loss 109779 75924

Accrued average rent 13180 13912

Fixed assets net 33741 17584

Self insurance reserves 10999 9658

Deferred gain on sale of credit card operations 6793 7373

Cumulative foreign currency translation 1299 1949

Deferred revenue and revenue reserves 6380 5111

Purchased call option 1561 2159

Other 6892 6630

Total deferred tax assets 209781 157233

Deferred tax liabilities

Inventory 27733 29898

Other 1049 1630

Total deferred tax liabilities 28782 31528

Valuation allowance 180999 125705

Net deferred tax assets

During fiscal 2007 the Company recorded valuation allowance against all deferred tax assets in

addition net deferred tax assets arising from losses during fiscal 2009 and 2008 iii excess of the amount

expected to be carried back to offset taxable income in prior year were fully reserved through

valuation allowance during the respective years As these deferred tax assets were established and fully

reserved during fiscal 2009 and 2008 there was no net impact to the provision of income taxes

The difference betWen income taxes at the statutory federal income tax rate of 35% in fiscal 2009

2008 and 2007 and income tax reported in continuing operations
in the consolidated statements of

operations is as follows in thousands

2009 2008 2007

Tax benefit at statutory federal income tax rate $45020 $32696 $79843

State income taxes net of federal benefit 12350 1240 4091

Increase in valuation allowance 56637 36498 83047

Net foreign
income taxed at lower rates net of

foreign tax credits 92 209 718

Other net 1265 241 716

Provision benefit for income taxes from continuing

operations _____

In July 2006 the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income

TaxesAn Interpretation of FASB Statement No 109 FIN 48 which clarifies the accounting for
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uncertainty in tax positions FIN 48 prescribes the minimum recognition threshod tax position is

required to meet before being recognized in the financial statements It also provides guidance on

derecognition measurement classification interest and penalties accounting in interim periods

disclosure and transition The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48 effective as of the beginning

of fiscal 2008 As result of the cumulative effect of the adoption the Company recorded $5073000

decrease in retained earnings in fiscal 2008 Upon adoption on March 2007 total reserves for

uncertain tax positions were $13908000

On quarterly and annual basis the Company accrues for the effects of open uncertain tax

positions summary of amounts recorded for unrecognized tax benefits at the beginning and end of

fiscal 2009 and 2008 are presented below in thousands

Unrecognized Tax BenefitsMarch 2007 $13908

Gross increasestax positions
in prior period 1880

Gross decreasestax positions
in prior period 1400

Settlements 449

Unrecognized Tax BenefitsMarch 2008 $13939

Gross increasestax positions in prior period

Gross decreasestax positions in prior period 1179
Settlements 1418

Expiration of statute of limitations 168

Unrecognized Tax BenefitsFebruary 28 2009 $11177

If the Company were to prevail on all unrecognized tax benefits recorded this entire reserve for

uncertain tax positions would have favorable impact on the effective tax rate It is reasonably possible

that the amount of the unrecognized tax benefit with respect
to certain of the Companys unrecognized

tax positions
will increase or decrease during the next 12 months as result of audit settlements

Accordingly the Company has classified $4680000 of the reserve for uncertain tax positions and the

related accrued interest as current liability in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet The

Company does not expect
the resolution of these issues to have significant effect on the Companys

results of operations or financial position

Interest and penalties associated with unrecognized tax benefits are recorded in nonoperating

income and expenses and selling general and administrative expenses respectively The Company

recorded expenses of $1059000 and $2312000 related to penalties and interest in fiscal 2009 and

fiscal 2008 respectively The Company had accrued penalties and interest of $5854000 and $6786000

at February 28 2009 and March 2008 respectively
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NOTE 11COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

LeasesAt February 28 2009 the Company had th following minimum lease commitments and

future subtenant receipts from
continuing operations in the

years indicated in thousands

Operating Subtenant
Fiscal Year

Leases Income

2010 $225496 787

2011 202259 839

2012
177640 783

2013
141379 561

2014 99542 333

Thereafter 90115 112

Total lease commitments $936431 $3415

Rental expense incurred was $244776000 $253962000 and $257255000 including contingent

rentals of $43000 $46000 and $93000 based upon percentage of sales and net of sublease incomes

totaling $281000 $332000 and $304000 in fiscal 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

During fiscal 2009 the Company entered into an agreement to sell its corporate headquarters

building and accompanying land As part of the transaction the Company entered into an agreement to

rent office
space in the building See Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further

discussion

Legal mattersThere were no significant legal matters in fiscal 2009 During fiscal 2008 the

Company paid $4376000 for the settlement of class action lawsuit regarding compensation matters
which was included in selling general and administrative expenses in fiscal 2007

There are various claims lawsuits investigations and pending actions against the Company and its

subsidiaries incident to the operations of its business The Company considers them to be ordinary and

routine in nature The Company maintains liability insurance against most of these claims It is the

opinion of management after consultation with counsel that the ultimate resolution of such litigation

will not have material adverse effect either
individually or in aggregate on the Companys financial

position results of
operations or liquidity

NOTE 12DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 the Companys Board of Directors authorized

management to sell its operations of The Pier with stores located in the United Kingdom and Ireland
The Company met the criteria of SFAS 144 that allowed it to classify The Pier as held for sale and

present its results of operations as discontinued for all
years presented On March 20 2006 the

Company sold The Pier to Palli Limited for approximately $15000000 Palli Limited is wholly owned
subsidiary of Lagerinn ehf Lagerinn an Iceland corporation owned by Jakup Dul Jacobsen

Collectively Lagerinn and Mr Jacobsen beneficially owned approximately 9.9% of the Companys
common stock as of the date of the sale Expenses incurred by the Company in March 2006 related to

The Pier were $407000 net of taxes which included an insignificant gain on the sale The Company
recorded net sales from these discontinued operations of $3323000 for fiscal 2007
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

NOTE 13SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On March 20 2009 foreign subsidiary of the Company purchased $78941000 of the Companys

outstanding 6.375% convertible senior notes due 2036 at purchase price of $27399000including

interest accrued to the date of purchase The foreign subsidiary presently intends to hold the notes

until maturity As result of this transaction the Company has reduced its outstanding convertible debt

to $86059000 on consolidated basis In connection with this transaction the Company expects to

recognize gain of approximately $49000000 during the first quarter of fiscal 2010

NOTE 14SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA UNAUDITED

Summarized quarterly financial data for the years ended February 28 2009 and March 2008 are

set forth below in thousands except per share amounts

Three Months Ended

Fiscal 2009 5/31/2008 8/30/2008 11/29/2008 2/28/2009

Net sales $310020 $320494 $300906 $389257

Gross profit 87606 86135 87891 101832

Net loss 32824 30156 36855 29418
Basic and diluted loss per share .37 .34 .41 .33

Three Months Ended

Fiscal 2008 6/2/2007 9/1/2007 12/1/2007 3/1/2008

Net sales $356375 $344566 $374181 $436710

Gross profit 87178 87524 125895 138955

Net income loss 56378 43409 9962 13738

Basic and diluted income loss per share .64 .49 .11 .16
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Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

As required by Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15 under.the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended

the Exchange Act an evaluation was conducted under the supervision and with the participation of

the Companys management including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the

effectiveness of the design and operation of the Companys disclosure controls and procedures as of

February 28 2009 and based on this evaluation the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial

Officer have concluded with reasonable assurance that .the Companys disclosure controls and

procedures were effective as of such date to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the
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communicated to management including the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer

as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure and recorded processed

summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange

Commission rules and forms

REPORT OF MANAGEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining system of internal control over

financial reporting designed to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are executed in

accordance with management authorization and that such transactions are properly recorded and

reported in the financial statements and that records are maintained so as to permit preparation of the

financial statements in acºordance with U.S generally accepted accounting principles Because of its

inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements

Management has assessed the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting

utilizing the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of.the Treadway

Commission in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework Management concluded that based on its

assessment Pier Imports Inc.s internal control over financial reporting was effective as of

February 28 2009 Ernst Young LLP an independent registered public accounting firm has audited

the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of February 28 2009 as stated in their

report which is included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

/s Alexander Smith

Alexander Smith

President and

Chief Executive Officer

Is Charles Turner

Charles Turner

Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

There were no changes in the Companys internal control over financial reporting during the

fourth quarter of fiscal 2009 that would have materially affected or would have been reasonably likely

to materially affect the Companys internal control over financial reporting
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors of Pier Imports Inc

We have audited Pier Imports Inc.s internal control over financial reporting as of February 28

2009 based on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee

of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission the COSO criteria Pier Imports Inc

management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its

assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the

accompanying Report of Management on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Our responsibility

is to express an opinion on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained

in all material respects Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over

financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists testing and evaluating the design

and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk and performing such other

procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit provides

reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal

control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the

maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are

recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only

in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide

reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or

disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or

detect misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject

to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in cOnditions or that the degree

of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion Pier Imports Inc maintained in all material respects effective internal control

over financial reporting as of February 28 2009 based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States the consolidated balance sheets of Pier Imports Inc as of

February 28 2009 and March 2008 and the related consolidated statements of operations

shareholders equity and cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended February 28 2009

and our report dated April 28 2009 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

is Ernst Young LLP

Fort Worth Texas

April 28 2009

Item 9B Other Information

None
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PART III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Directors of the Company

Information regarding directors of the Company required by this Item is incorporated by reference

to the section entitled Item 1Election of Directors Nominees for Directors set forth in the

Companys Proxy Statement for its 2009 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

The information regarding compliance with Section 16a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the section entitled Section 16a Beneficial

Ownership Reporting Compliance set forth in the Companys Proxy Statement for its 2009 Annual

Meeting of Shareholders

Information regarding the Companys audit committee financial
experts

and code of ethics and

business conduct required by this item is incorporated by reference to the section entitled Matters

Relating tO Corporate Governance Board Structure Director Compensation and Stock Ownership set

forth in the Companys Proxy Statement for its 2009 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

No director or nominee for director of the Company has any family relationship with any other

director or nominee or with any executive officer of the Company

Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the section entitled

Executive Compensation and the section entitled Matters Relating to Corporate Governance Board

Structure Director Compensation and Stock OwnershipNon-Employee Director Compensation for

the Fiscal Year Ended February 28 2009 set forth in the Companys Proxy Statement for its 2009

Annual Meeting of Shareholders

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the section entitled Matters

Relating to Corporate Governance Board Structure Director Compensation and Stock Ownership
Security Ownership of Management Matters Relating to Corporate Governance Board Structure

Director Compensation and Stock OwnershipSecurity Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners the

table entitled Executive CompensationOutstanding Equity Awards Table for the Fiscal Year Ended

February 28 2009 and the table entitled Equity Compensation Plan Information set forth in the

Companys Proxy Statement for its 2009 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related fransactions and Director Independence

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the section entitled

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation CertaIn Related Party Transactions

and Matters Relating to Corporate Governance Board Structure Director Compensation and Stock

OwnershipDirector Independence set forth in the Companys Proxy Statement for its 2009 Annual

Meeting of Shareholders

Item 14 Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the sections entitled

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Fees and Pre-approval of Nonaudit Fees set forth

in Item of the Companys Proxy Statement for its 2009 Annual Meeting of Shareholders
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PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits Financial Statement Schedules

List of consolidated financial statements schedules and exhibits filed as part of this report

Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended February 28 2009 March

2008 and March 2007

Consolidated Balance Sheets at February 28 2009 and March 2008

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended February 28 2009 March

2008 and March 2007

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity for the Years Ended February 28 2009

March 2008 and March 2007

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Statement Schedules

Schedules have been omitted because they are not required or are not applicable or because

the information required to be set forth therein either is not material or is included in the

financial statements or notes thereto

Exhibits

See Exhibit Index
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the

Company has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly

authorized

PIER IMPORTS INC

Date April 28 2009 By Is ALEXANDER SMITH

Alexander Smith

President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed

below by the following persons on behalf of the Company and in the capacities and on the dates

indicated

Signature Title Date

Is TOM THOMAS
Director Chairman of the Board April 28 2009

Tom Thomas

Is ALEXANDER SMITH
Director President and Chief

April 28 2009
Alexander Smith Executive Officer

Is CHARLES TURNER Executive Vice President and
April 28 2009

Charles Turner Chief Financial Officer

Is LAURA SCHACK
Principal Accounting Officer April 28 2009

Laura Schack

/s/ JOHN BURGOYNE
Director April 28 2009

John Burgoyne

Is DR MICHAEL FERRARI
Director April 28 2009

Dr Michael Ferrari

Is ROBERT HOLLAND III

Director April 28 2009
Robert Holland III
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Title DateSignature

Is REN TZ
Director April 28 2009

Karen Katz

Is TERRY LONDON
Director April 28 2009

Terry London

Is CECE SMITH
Director April 28 2009

Cece Smith
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit No Description

3i Certificate of Incorporation and Amendments thereto incorporated herein by reference

to Exhibit 3i to Registrants Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 30 1998

3u Bylaws of the Company as amended to date incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 3u to Registrants Form 10-K for the year ended February 26 2005

4.1 Indenture dated February 14 2006 and Form of 6.375% Convertible Senior Notes due

2036 among Pier Imports Inc the Subsidiary Guarantors parties thereto and

JPMorgan Chase Bank National Association incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 4.1 to the Companys Form 8-K filed February 16 2006

4.1.2 Registration Rights Agreement dated February 14 2006 among Pier Imports Inc the

Guarantors parties thereto and the Initial Purchaser named therein incorporated herein

by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Companys Form 8-K filed February 16 2006

10.1 Form of Indemnity Agreement between the Company and the directors and executive

officers of the Company dated December 2003 incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 10-K for the year ended February 28 2004

10.2 The Companys Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan Restated as of January 2009

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Companys Form 10-Q for the

quarter ended November 29 2008

10.3 The Companys Supplemental Retirement Plan Restated as of January 2009

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Companys Form 10-0 for the

quarter ended November 29 2009

10.3.1 Participation Agreement dated November 2007 by and between Alexander Smith

and Pier Imports Inc incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the

Companys Form 8-K filed November 15 2007

10.3.2 Participation Agreement Amendment dated April 20 2008 by and between Jay Jacobs

and Pier Imports Inc incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the

Companys Form 8-K filed April 24 2008

10.3.3 Participation Agreement Amendment dated April 20 2008 by and between Charles

Turner and Pier Imports Inc incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the

Companys Form 8-K filed April 24 2008

10.3.4 Participation Agreement Amendment dated April 20 2008 by and between David

Walker and Pier Imports Inc incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the

Companys Form 8-K filed April 24 2008

10.3.5
Participation Agreement Amendment dated April 20 2008 by and between Gregory

Humenesky and Pier Imports Inc incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3.6

to the Companys Form 10-K for the year ended March 2008

10.4 The Companys 1989 Employee Stock Option Plan amended and restated as of June 27
1996 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6.1 to the Companys Form 10-K for

the year ended February 26 2005

10.4.1 Amendment No to the Companys 1989 Employee Stock Option Plan incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6.2 to the Companys Form 10-K for the year ended

February 26 2005



Exhibit No Description

10.5 Form.of Post-Employment Consulting Agreement between the Company and its

executive officers incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10r to the Companys
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 29 1992

10.5.1 Termination of Post-Employment Consulting Agreement dated April 20 2008 by and

between Jay Jacobs and Pier Imports Inc incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1

to the Companys Form 8-K filed April 24 2008

10.5.2 Termination of Post-Employment Consulting Agreement dated April 20 2008 by and

between Cary Turner and Pier Imports Inc incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.2 to the companys Form 8-K filed April 24 2008

10.5.3 Termination of Post-Employment Consulting Agreement dated April 20 2008 by and

between David Walker and Pier Imports Inc incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10 to the Company Form filed April 24 2008

10.6 The Companys 1999 Stock Plan as amended and restated December 31 2004

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Companys filed October 12

2006

10.6.1 First Amendment to the Pier Imports Inc 1999 Stock Plan as amended and restated

December 31 2004 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Company
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 2007

10.7 Forms of Director and Employee Stock Option Agreements incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10 to the Companys Form 10 for the
quarter

ended August 28
1999

10.8 Pier Imports Inc Stock Purchase Plan restated as amended June 20 2008

incorporated herein by reference Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Form 10-Q for the

quarter ended May 31 2008

10.8.1 Amendment to the Pier Imports Inc Stock Purchase Plan

10.9 Secured Credit Agreement dated November 22 2005 among the Company certain of its

subsidiaries Bank of America N.A Wells Fargo Retail Finance LLC Wachovia Bank
National Association HSBC Bank USA N.A JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A and others

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Company Form filed

November 23 2005

10.9.1 First Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of July 28 2006 by and among Pier

Imports Inc Bank of America the facility guarantors party thereto and the

lenders party thereto incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys
Form 8-K filed July 28 2006

10 Second Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of May 31 2007 by and among Pier

Imports U.S Inc Bank of America N.A the facility guarantors party thereto and the

lenders party thereto incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys
Form 8-K filed June 2007

10.10 Pier Umbrella Trust dated December 21 2005 incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K filed December 21 2005

10.10.1 Pier Umbrella Trust Amendment No effective January 2009 incorporated herein

by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Company Form 10 for the quarter ended

November 29 2008

10 11 Pier Imports Inc 2006 Stock Incentive Plan Omnibus Plan Restated as Amended

through March 25 2008 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10 15 to the

Companys Form 10-K for the year ended March 2008



Exhibit No Description

10.11.1 First Amendment dated December 15 2008 to Pier Imports Inc 2006 Stock Incentive

Plan Omnibus Plan Restated as Amended Through March 25 2008 incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Companys Form 10-Q for the quarter ended

November 29 2008

10.11.2 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option AgreementNon-Employee Director incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Form 8-K filed June 23 2006

10.11.3 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option AgreementEmployee Participant incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Form 8-K filed June 23 2006

10.11.4 Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement Time Vesting incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Companys Form 8-K filed June 23 2006

10.11.5 Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement Performance Vesting incorporated herein

by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Companys Form 8-K filed June 23 2006

10 12 Pier Imports Non Employee Director Compensation Plan incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 26

2006

10 12 Pier Imports Non Employee Director Compensation Plan as amended March 2007

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.22.1 to the Companys Form 10-K for the

year
ended March 2007

10.12.2 Pier Imports Non-Employee Director Compensation Plan as amended March 25 2008

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.16.2 to the Companys Form 10-K for the

year ended March 2008

10 12 Pier Imports Non Employee Director Compensation Plan as amended December 15

2008 incorporated by reference tO Exhibit 10.7 to the Companys Form 10-0 for the

quarter ended November 29 2008

10 13 Pier Imports Benefit Restoration Plan as amended and restated effective January

2005 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Form 8-K filed

October 12 2006

10 14 Pier Imports Benefit Restoration Plan II as amended and restated effective January

2009 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Form 10-0 for

the quarter
ended November 29 2008

10.15 Employment Agreement by and between Alexander Smith and Pier Imports Inc

dated February 19 2007 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the

Companys Form 8-K filed January 30 2007

10.15.1 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement between Alexander Smith and Pier

Imports mc incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Company

Form 8-K filed January 30 2007

10.15.2 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement between Alexander Smith and Pier

Imports Inc incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys
Form 8-K filed January 30 2007

10.15.3 First Amendment to Employment Agreement by and between Alexander Smith and

Pier Imports Inc dated October 2008 incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.19.3 to the Companys Form 10-0 for the quarter ended August 30 2008

10.15.4 First Amendment to Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement between Alexander

Smith and Pier Imports Inc dated October 2008 incorporated herein by reference

to Exhibit 10.19.4 to the Companys Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 30 2008



Exhibit No Description

10.16 Credit Card Program Agreement by and among Pier Imports U.S Inc and Chase

Bank USA N.A incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 2007

10.16.1 Amendment No to the Credit Card Program Agreement by and among Pier Imports

U.S Inc and Chase Bank USA N.A incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3

to the Companys Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 2007

10.16.2 Amendment No to the Credit Card Program Agreement by and among Pier Imports

U.S Inc and Chase Bank USA N.A incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4

to the Companys Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 2007

10.17 Real Estate Purchase Agreement by and between Chesapeake Land Company L.L.C

and Pier Services Company dated March 25 2008 incorporated by reference herein to

Exhibit 10.21 to the Companys Form 10-K for the year ended March 2008

10.18 Office Lease between Chesapeake Plaza L.L.C and Pier Services Company dated

June 2008 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31 2008

10.18.1 First Amendment to Office Lease dated June 20 2008 incorporated herein by reference

to Exhibit 10.1.1 to the Companys Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31 2008

10.19 Agreement for Severance Benefits and for Release Waiver and Nondisclosure

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Companys Form 8-K filed

October 2008

10.20 Summary Plan Description of Pier Imports Limited Severance Plan Restated as of

January 2009 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended November 29 2008

10.21 Termination of Pier Executive Health Expense Reimbursement Plan effective

January 2009 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Companys
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended November 29 2008

21 Subsidiaries of the Company

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Exchange Act

Rule 13a-14a/15d-14a

31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Exchange Act

Rule 13a-14a/15d-14a

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to

18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002

99.1 Pier Imports Inc Stock Purchase Plan Audit Report

Management Contracts and Compensatory Plans
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PIER IMPORTS INC
100 Pier Place

Fort Worth Texas 76102

May 27 2009

Dear Shareholder

The board of directors and management cordially invite you to attend Pier Imports annual

meeting of shareholders to be held at 1000 a.m local time on Wednesday July 2009 at Pier

Imports corporate headquarters Mezzanine Level Conference Center Room 100 Pier Place

Fort Worth Texas 76102 The formal notice of the annual meeting of shareholders and proxy statement

are attached Please read them carefully We are pleased to offer live webcast of the annual meeting

at wwwpierl .com by linking through the Investor Relations page and then the Events page

It is important that your shares be voted at the meeting in accordance with your preference If you

do not plan to attend you may vote your proxy by telephone Internet or mail toll-free telephone

number and web site address are included on your proxy card If you choose to vote by mail please

complete the proxy card located in the envelopes address window by indicating your vote on the issues

presented and sign date and return the proxy card in the prepaid envelope provided If you are able to

attend the meeting and wish to vote in person you may withdraw your proxy at that time See the

response to the question
How do vote below for more detailed description of voting procedures

and the response to the question Do need an admission ticket to attend the annual meeting below

for our procedures for admission to the meeting

Sincerely

Alexander Smith Tom Thomas

President and Chief Executive Officer Chairman of the Board



PIER IMPORTS INC
100 Pier Place

Fort Worth Texas 76102

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

To Be Held July 2009

Pier Imports annual meeting of shareholders will be held on Wednesday July 2009 at

1000 a.m local time at Pier Imports corporate headquarters Mezzanine Level Conference Center

Room 100 Pier Place Fort Worth Texas 76102 for the following purposes

to elect as directors the eight nominees named in the attached proxy statement to hold office

until the next annual meeting of shareholders and until their successors are elected and

qualified

to vote on proposal to approve an amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation of Pier

Imports Inc to effect reverse stock split of Pier Imports common stock having split

ratio between and including 1-for-2 and 1-for-20 as will be selected by the board of directors

prior to the time of filing such Certificate of Amendment with the Delaware Secretary of

State

to vote on proposal to approve an amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation of Pier

Imports Inc to reduce the par value of Pier Imports common stock from $1.00 per share

to $0.001 per share

to vote on proposal to approve an amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation of Pier

Imports Inc to increase the authorized number of Pier Imports shares of preferred stock

from 5000000 shares to 20000000 shares to shorten the description of the authority of the

board of directors to issue such shares and to eliminate the terms and provisions of the

Formula Rate Preferred Stock currently set forth in the Certificate of Incorporation

to vote on proposal to ratify the audit committees approval to engage Ernst Young LLP

as Pier Imports independent registered public accounting firm for fiscal 2010

to vote on shareholder proposal if properly presented at the meeting and

to transact any other business as may properly come before the annual meeting or any

adjournment or postponement of the meeting

Only shareholders of record at the close of business on May 2009 which is the record date for

the annual meeting of shareholders will be entitled to vote at the annual meeting

Pier Imports will begin sending this combined proxy statement and annual report and the

enclosed proxy card to all shareholders entitled to vote on or about May 27 2009

By order of the board of directors

XL9d
Michael Carter

Senior Vice President and General Counsel

Secretary

May 27 2009

Fort Worth Texas

PLEASE PROMPTLY SUBMIT YOUR PROXY BY MAIL TELEPHONE OR INTERNET WHETHER
OR NOT YOU INTEND TO BE PRESENT AT THE ANNUAL MEETING



IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS FOR THE
ANNUAL MEEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS TO BE HELD JULY 2009

Pursuant to rules promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission we have elected to provide

access to our proxy materials bothby sending you this full set of proxy materials inchiding

pruAy Cilru uhlu flI iiiiunyaiig yuu ut tile ilVhlhlilWJiI UI UUU JJfuAy hIliuIXfihhi WI LJIV IIILCLIIVL liC 1IJLICV

of Annual Meeting Proxy Statement and 2009 Annual Report are available on our web site at

httpIlwww.pierl.comlannualreport Additionally you may access the Notice of Annual Meeting Proxy

Statement and 2009 Annual Report at httpIlbnymellon.mobular.netbnymellonlpir which does not use

cookies or other software that identifies visitors accessing the web site



PIER IMPORTS INC
100 Pier Place

Fort Worth Texas 76102

PROXY STATEMENT
FOR

ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

To Be Held July 2009

Questions and Answers Regarding the Annual Meeting

Why did receive these proxy materials

These proxy materials are being mailed to all shareholders entitled to vote beginning on or about

May 27 2009 We are providing them to you in connection with the solicitation by the board of

directors of Pier Imports Inc Delaware corporation of proxies to be voted at our 2009 annual

meeting of shareholders and at any adjournment or postponement of the meeting

You are receiving these proxy materials because you own shares of Pier Imports common stock

that entitle you to vote at the meeting Financial and other information concerning Pier Imports is

contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 28 2009 By use of

proxy you can vote on the matters to be decided at the meeting without actually attending the meeting

in person

You are invited to attend our annual meeting of shareholders on July 2009 beginning at

1000 a.m local time The annual meeting will be held at Pier Imports corporate headquarters

Mezzanine Level Conference Center Room 100 Pier Place Fort Worth Texas 76102 Shareholders

will be admitted to the annual meeting shortly before it begins at 1000 a.m local time Seating will be

limited You will need an admission ticket or proof of ownership to enter the annual meeting See the

response to the question Do need an admission ticket to attend the annual meeting below

Directions to Pier Imports corporate headquarters are located on the last page of this proxy

statement

Pier Imports corporate headquarters is accessible to disabled persons and upon request we will

provide wireless headsets for hearing amplification Sign interpretation
also will be provided upon

request To request either of these accommodations please contact our Investor Relations Department

on or before June 17 2009 You may make your request by mail to Pier Imports Inc Attn Investor

Relations Department 100 Pier Place Fort Worth Texas 76102 or by telephone at 817 252-7835 or

toll-free at 888 807-4371

Pursuant to rules promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC we have

elected to provide access to our proxy materials both by sending you this full set of proxy materials

including proxy card and by notifying you of the availability of our proxy materials on the Internet

This proxy statement and our 2009 Annual Report are available on our web site at

http//wwwpierl.comlannualreport Additionally you may .access our proxy statement and 2009 Annual

Report on Form 10-K at http//bnymellon.mobulainet/bnymellon/pir
which does not use cookies or

other software that identifies visitors accessing the web site

What will the shareholders vote on at the annual meeting

The shareholders will be asked to vote on the following items

the election as directors of the eight nominees named in this proxy statement to hold office until

the next annual meeting of shareholders and until their successors are elected and qualified

proposal to approve an amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation
of Pier Imports Inc

to effect reverse stock split of Pier Imports common stock having split ratio between and



including 1-for-2 and 1-for-20 as will be selected by the board of directors prior to the time of

filing such Certificate of Amendment with the Delaware Secretary of State

proposal to approve an amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation of Pier Imports Inc

to reduce the par value of Pier Imports common stock from $1.00 per share to $0.001 per

share

to vote on proposal to approve an amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation of Pier

Imports Inc to increase the authorized number of Pier Imports shares of preferred stock

from 5000000 shares to 20000000 shares to shorten the description of the authority of the

board of directors to issue such shares and to eliminate the terms and provisions of the Formula

Rate Preferred Stock currently set forth in the Certificate of Incorporation

proposal to ratify the audit committees approval to engage Ernst Young LLP as Pier

Imports independent registered public accounting firm for fiscal 2010

shareholder proposal if properly presented at the meeting and

any other business as may properly come before the annual meeting or any adjournment or

postponement of the meeting

Who is entitled to vote at the annual meeting

Holders of Pier Imports common stock at the close of business on May 2009 are entitled to

receive this notice and to vote their shares at the annual meeting As of that date there were

90489276 shares of common stock outstanding and entitled to vote Each share of common stock is

entitled to one vote on each matter properly brought before the annual meeting

What is the difference between holding shares as shareholder of record and as beneficial owner

If your shares are registered directly in your name with Pier Imports transfer agent Mellon

Investor Services LLC you are considered with respect to those shares the shareholder of record
The notice of annual meeting proxy statement proxy card and accompanying documents have been

sent directly to you by us

If your shares are held in stock brokerage account or by bank or other holder of record you

are considered the beneficial owner of these shares The notice of annual meeting proxy statement

proxy card and accompanying documents have been forwarded to you by your broker bank or other

holder of record who is considered with respect to those shares the shareholder of record As the

beneficial owner you have the right to direct your broker bank or other holder of record on how to

vote your shares by using the voting instruction card included in the mailing or by following their

instructions for voting by telephone or on the Internet

How do vote

You may vote using any of the following methods

By mail

Be sure to complete sign and date the proxy card or voting instruction card and return it in the

prepaid envelope If you are shareholder of record and you return your signed proxy card but

do not indicate your voting preferences the persons named in the proxy card will vote the

shares represented by that proxy as recommended by the board of directors

If you are shareholder of record and the prepaid envelope is missing please mail your

completed proxy card to BNY Mellon Shareowner Services Proxy Processing P.O Box 3550

Hackensack New Jersey 07606-9210



By telephone or on the Internet

The telephone and Internet voting procedures established by us for shareholders of record are

designed to authenticate your identity to allow you to give your voting instructions and to

confirm that those instructions have been properly recorded

You can vote by calling the toll-free telephone number on your proxy card Please have your

proxy card in hand when you call Easy-to-follow voice prompts allow you to vote your shares

and confirm that your instructions have been properly recorded If you are located outside the

U.S and Canada please use the mail or Internet voting methods

The web site for Internet voting is httpI/wwwproxyvoting.com/pir Please have your proxycard in

hand when you go online As with telephone voting you can confirm that your instructions have

been properly recorded

Telephone and Internet voting facilities for shareholders of record will be available 24 hours

day and will close at 1159 p.m Eastern Time on June 30 2009

The availability of telephone and Internet voting for beneficial owners will depend on the voting

processes
of your broker bank or other holder of record We therefore recommend that you

follow the voting instructions in the materials provided to you by your broker bank or other

holder of record

If you vote by telephone or on the Internet you do not have to return your proxy card or voting

instruction card

In person at the annual meeting

All shareholders may vote in person at the annual meeting You may also be represented by

another person at the annual meeting by executing proper proxy designating that person If

you are beneficial owner of shares you must obtain legal proxy from your broker bank or

other holder of record and
present

it to the inspector of election with your ballot to be able to

vote at the annual meeting

Your vote is important Your timely response can save us the expense of attempting to contact you

again

What can do if change my mind after vote my shares

If you are shareholder of record you can revoke your proxy prior to the completion of voting at

the meeting by

written notice to our corporate secretary at 100 Pier Place Fort Worth Texas 76102

timely delivery of valid later-dated proxy or

voting in person at the annual meeting

If you are beneficial owner of shares you may submit new voting instructions by contacting your

broker bank or other holder of record You may also vote in person at the annual meeting if you

obtain legal proxy as described in the answer to the
previous question

What shares are included on the proxy card9

If you are shareholder of record you will receive only one proxy card for all the shares you hold

in certificate form

in book-entry form



in book-entry form purchased through the Pier Imports Inc Direct Stock Purchase and

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

and if you are Pier Imports employee

in book-entry form granted under the Pier Imports Inc 2006 Stock Incentive Plan as

restricted stock award

If you are beneficial owner you will receive voting instructions from your broker bank or other

holder of record

What will happen if sign and return my proxy card with no voting instructions

If you sign and return your proxy card with no voting instructions with
respect to matter to be

voted on your shares will be voted in accordance with the recommendation of the board of directors

contained in this proxy statement

Who will count the vote

Representatives of Pier Imports transfer agent Mellon Investor Services LLC will tabulate the

votes and act as inspector of election

Is there list of shareholders entitled to vote at the annual meeting

The names of shareholders of record entitled to vote at the annual meeting will be available at the

annual meeting and for ten days prior to the meeting for any purpose germane to the meeting

between the hours of 800 a.m and 500 p.m local time at our corporate headquarters at 100 Pier

Place Fort Worth Texas 76102 by contacting our corporate secretary

What constitutes quorum

The presence of the holders of majority of the outstanding shares of common stock entitled to

vote at the annual meeting present in person or represented by proxy is necessary to ºonstitute

quorum

How are abstentions and broker non-votes counted in determining the presence of quorum

Abstentions and broker non-votes are counted as present and entitled to vote for purposes of

determining quorum broker non-vote occurs when broker bank or other holder of record

holding shares for beneficial owner does not vote on particular proposal because that holder does

not have discretionary voting power for that particular item and has not received instructions from the

beneficial owner

How are abstentions and broker non-votes counted in voting

An abstention if allowed for proposal will not be counted as voting FOR matter and

therefore will have the same effect as vote AGAINST the matter Broker non votes will have the

same effect as vote AGAiNST Item to increase the authorized number of shares of preferred

stock from 5000000 shares to 20000000 shares to shorten the description of the authority of the

board of directors to issue such shares and to eliminate the terms and provisions of the Formula Rate

Preferred Stock and Item the shareholder proposal if the proposal is properly presented at the

meeting



What are the voting requirements to elect the directors and to approve each of the proposals discussed

in this proxy statement

DISCRETIONARY

VOTING

PROPOSAL VOTE REQUIRED ALLOWED

Election of Directors Majority of the shares entitled to vote Yes

present
in person or represented by proxy at

the annual meeting

Amendment of Certificate of Majority of the outstanding shares entitled Yes

Incorporation of Pier Imports Inc to vote on the proposal

Reverse Stock Split of Common

Stock

Amendment of Certificate of Majority of the outstanding shares entitled Yes

Incorporation of Pier Imports Inc to vote on the proposal

Reduce Par Value of Common

Stock

Amendment of Certificate of Majority of the outstanding shares entitled No

Incorporation of Pier Imports Inc to vote on the proposal

Increase the Authorized Number of

Shares of Preferred Stock Shorten

Board of Directors Authority

Description and Eliminate Formula

Rate Preferred Stock Provisions

Ratification of Ernst Young LLP Majority of the shares entitled to vote Yes

present in person or represented by proxy at

the annual meeting

Shareholder Proposal If the proposal is properly presented at the No

meeting majority of the shares entitled to

vote present in person or represented by

proxy at the annual meeting

If you are beneficial owner your broker bank or other holder of record is permitted to vote

your shares on the election of directors the approval of the amendment of the Certificate of

Incorporation of Pier Imports Inc reverse stock split of common stock the approval of the

amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation of Pier Imports Inc reduce par value of common

stock and the ratification of Ernst Young LLP as our independent registered public accounting

firm even if the holder of record does not receive voting instructions from you If you are beneficial

owner your broker bank or other holder of record is not permitted to vote on the approval of the

amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation of Pier Imports Inc increase the authorized number

of shares of preferred stock shorten board of directors authority description and eliminate Formula

Rate Preferred Stock provisions or the shareholder proposal absent instructions from you Without

your voting instructions broker non-vote will occur on these items

Could other matters be decided at the annual meeting

At the date this proxy statement went to press we did not know of any matters to be raised at the

annual meeting other than those referred to in this proxy statement



If you have returned your signed and completed proxy card and other matters are properly

presented at the annual meeting for consideration the proxies appointed by the board of directors the

persons named in your proxy card if you are shareholder of record will have the discretion to vote

on those matters for you

Can access the notice of annual meeting proxy statement and accompanying documents on the

Internet

The notice of annual meeting proxy statement and 2009 annual report are available on our web

site at httpI/wwwpierl.comlannualreport Additionally and in accordance with SEC rules you may
access these materials at httpI/bnymellon.mobulainet/bnymellon/pir which does not use cookies or

other software that identifies visitors accessing the web site

Instead of receiving future copies of our proxy statement and annual report materials by mail

shareholders can elect to receive an e-mail that will provide electronic links to these materials Opting

to receive or access your proxy materials online will save us the cost of reproducing and mailing

documents to your home or business and also will give you an electronic link to the proxy voting site

Shareholders of Record You may enroll in MLinkSM offered by Pier Imports transfer agent

Mellon Investor Services LLC for online access to our future proxy statement and annual report

materials by going to http//bnymellon.com/shareowner/isd and logging into or activating your Investor

ServiceDirect account where step-by-step instructions will prompt you through the enrollment process

Beneficial Owners If you hold your shares in brokerage account you also may have the

opportunity to receive or access copies of these materials electronically Please check the information

provided in the proxy materials mailed to you by your broker bank or other holder of record regarding

the availability of this service

Who will pay for the cost of this proxy solicitation

We have hired Mellon Investor Services LLC to assist us in soliciting proxies We will pay all costs

associated with the solicitation including Mellons fees which it expects to be approximately $10000

plus all mailing and delivery expenses In addition to solicitations by mail our officers and employees

may solicit proxies on behalf of Pier Imports personally and by telephone or other means for which

they will receive no compensation beyond their normal compensation We may also make arrangements

with brokerage houses and other custodians nominees and fiduciaries to forward solicitation material

to the beneficial owners of stock held of record by such persons and we will reimburse them for their

reasonable out-of-pocket and clerical expenses

Do need an admission ticket to attend the annual meeting

You will need an admission ticket or proof of ownership to enter the annual meeting An

admission ticket is attached to your proxy card if you hold shares directly in your name as

shareholder of record If you plan to attend the annual meeting please vote your proxy bUt keep the

admission ticket and bring it with you to the annual meeting

If your shares are held beneficially in the name of broker bank or other holder of record and

you plan to attend the annual meeting you must present proof of your ownership of Pier Imports

common stock such as bank or brokerage account statement to be admitted to the annual meeting

If you would rather have an admission ticket you can obtain one in advance by mailing written

request along with proof of your ownership of Pier Imports common stock to

Pier Imports Inc

Attn Investor Relations Department

100 Pier Place

Fort Worth Texas 76102



No cameras recording equipment electronic devices large bags briefcases or packages will be

permitted in the annual meeting

If you have any further questions about attending the meeting please call our Investor Relations

Department at 817 252 7835 or toll free at 888 807 4371

Will the annual meeting be webcast

Our annual meeting also will be webcast live on the date and time of the meeting You are invited

to visit wwwpierl.com by linking through the Investor Relations page and then Events page at

10 00 local time on July 2009 to access the webcast of the annual meeting An archived copy

of the webcast also will be available on our web site for period of 90 days

MATTERS RELATING TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE BOARD STRUCTURE
DIRECTOR COMPENSATION AND STOCK OWNERSHIP

Corporate Governance

The board of directors believes that good corporate governanºe is prerequisite to achieving

business success Pier Imports board of directors has adopted formal written corporate governance

guidelines policies and procedures designed to strengthen Pier Imports corporate governance

Among other things the guidelines contain standards for determining whether director is

independent code of business conduct and ethics applicable to all of Pier Imports directors

officers and employees and charters for each of the board of directors committees The nominating

and corporate governance committee is responsible for overseeing and reviewing the guidelines at least

annually and recommending any proposed changes to the full board for its approval The Pier

Imports Inc Corporate Governance Guidelines Code of Business Conduct and Ethics Ethics

Compliance Policies and Procedures and charters for the audit compensation and nominating and

corporate governance committees are available on Pier Imports web site at www.pierl .com under the

heading Investor RelationsCorporate Governance and are available in print free of charge to any

shareholder who requests copy by contacting our Investor Relations Department in writing at Pier

Imports Inc Attn Investor Relations Department 100 Pier Place Fort Worth Texas 76102 or by

telephone at 817 252-7835 or toll-free at 888 807-4371

Director Independence

It is Pier Imports policy that the board of directors will at all times consist of majority of

independent directors In addition all members of the audit committee compensation committee and

nominating and corporate governance committee must be independent To be considered independent

director must satisfy both the subjective and objective independence requirements established by the

New York Stock Exchange NYSE In assessing independence under the subjective test the board of

directors takes into account the standards in the objective tests and reviews and discusses additional

information provided by the directors and Pier Imports with regard to each directors business and

personal activities as they may relate to Pier Imports and Pier Imports management Based on the

foregoing as required by NYSE rules the board of directors makes subjective determination as to

each independent director that no relationship exists with Pier Imports which in the opinion of the

board of directors is material The board of directors has not established categorical standards or

guidelines to make these subjective determinations The board of directors will consider and apply all

relevant facts and circumstances relating to director in determining whether that director is

independent

Based on the NYSE independence requirements the board of directors has determined that seven

of the eight members of the board of directors are independent They are directors Mrs Katz



Ms Smith and Messrs Thomas Burgoyne Ferrari Holland and London Pier Imports president and

chief executive officer Alexander Smith is the eighth member of the board of directors

Independence for the non-employee directors was considered under both the subjective and objective

requirements of the NYSE In other words none of the non-employee directors was disqualified from

independent status under the objective standard and under the subjective standard each non-employee

director was determined not to have material relationship with Pier Imports

Meetings of Independent Directors without Management Present

The independent directors of Pier Imports met without management present four times during

the last fiscal year The chairman of the board of directors presides over these meetings

Procedures for Communicating with Directors

The board of directors has established process by which shareholders and other interested parties

can send communications to board members Shareholders and other interested parties can send

written communications to one or more members of Pier Imports board of directors addressed to

of Board Member Board of Directors

Dm
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do Corporate Secretary

100 Pier Place

Fort Worth Texas 76102

In addition shareholders and other interested parties may communicate with the chairman of the

audit committee compensation committee executive committee or nominating and corporate

governance committee by sending an email to auditchair@Jpierl corn compchair@pierl corn

executivechair@pzerl corn or corpgovchairEdjpierl corn respectively as well as the independent directors

as group by sending an email to independentdirectors@pierl corn

Communications are distributed to the board of directors or to the individual director or directors

as appropriate depending on the subject matter and facts and circumstances outlined in the

communication Communications that are not related to the duties and responsibilities of the board of

directors or committee will not be distributed including spam junkmail and mass mailings product

complaints product inquiries new product suggestions rØsumØs and other forms of job inquiries

surveys and business solicitations or advertisements In addition Pier Imports will not distribute

unsuitable material to its directors including material that is unduly hostile threatening or illegal

Director Nomination Process

Board Mernber Qualification Criteria

The board of directors has adopted Board Mernber Qualification Criteria listing the attributes and

qualifications considered by the nominating and corporate governance committee in evaluating

nominees for director The primary qualities and characteristics the committee looks for in nominees

for director are

management and leadership experience

relevani knowledge and diversity of background and experience and

personal and professional ethics integrity and professionalism



The committee also believes that the board of directors should be composed of individuals who

have achieved high level of distinction in business accounting finance law education or public

service and who possess one or more of the following specific qualities or skills

financial expertise

general knowledge of the retail industry

information technology experience

international business experience and

chief executive officer chief financial officer or other senior management experience

Internal Process for Identifying Candidates

Members of the nominating and corporate governance committee or other Pier Imports directors

or executive officers may from time to time identify potential candidates for nomination to Pier

Imports board of directors The committee typically considers candidates for nomination to Pier

Imports board of directors in early March of each year All proposed nominees including candidates

recommended for nomination by shareholders in accordance with the procedures described below will

be evaluated in light of Pier Imports Corporate Governance Guidelines the Board Member

Qualification Criteria and the projected needs of the boatd of directors at the time The committee may

retain search firm to assist in identifying potential candidates for nomination to the board of

directors The search firms responsibilities may include identifying and evaluating candidates believed

to possess the qualities and characteristics set forth in the Board Member Qualification Criteria as well

as providing background information on potential nominees and interviewing and screening nominees if

requested to do so by the committee

Shareholder Recommendations for Directors

The nominating and corporate governanCe committee will consider candidates recommended by

shareholders for election to Pier Imports board of directors shareholder who wishes to

recommend candidate for evaluation by the committee for inclusion as nominee for director at the

2010 annual meeting of shareholders should forward by certified or express mail the candidates name
business or residence address principal occupation or employment and description of the candidates

qualifications to the Chairman of thc Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee in care of

the corporate secretary Pier Imports Inc 100 Pier Place Fort Worth Texas 76102 To be properly

considered by the committee Pier Imports corporate secretary must receive the recommendation and

all required information no later than 00 local time on January 27 2010

In order for candidate recommended by shareholder to be considered by the committee for

inclusion as nominee for director at the 2010 annual meeting of shareholders the candidate must

meet the Board Member Qualification Criteria described above and must be expressly interested and

willing to serve as Pier Imports director The committee will also consider the independence of the

candidate and evaluate the candidate in light of Pier Imports Corporate Governance Guidelines

described above The corporate secretary will send properly submitted shareholder recommendations to

the chairman of the committee Individuals recommended to the committee by shareholders in

accordance with these procedures will be evaluated by the committee in the same manner as individuals

who are recommended through other means

Shareholder Nominations at Annual Meeting

Pier Imports by-laws also permit shareholder to propose candidate at an annual meeting of

shareholders who is not otherwise nominated by the board of directors through the
process described



above if the shareholder complies with the advance notice information and consent provisions

contained in the by-laws To comply with the advance notice provision of our by-laws shareholder

who wishes to nominate director for election at the 2010 annual meeting of shareholders must

provide Pier Imports written notice no earlier than April 2010 and no later than May 2010 You

may contact Pier Imports corporate secretary to obtain the specific information that must be

provided with the advance notice

No shareholder nominated an individual for election to the board of directors at Pier Imports

2009 annual meeting of shareholders

Committees of the Board of Directors

There are four standing committees of the board of directors They are the audit committee the

compensation committee the executive committee and the nominating and corporate governance

committee brief description of each committees functions follows

Audit Committee The audit committee provides assistance to the board of directors in overseeing

Pier Imports accounting auditing financial reporting and systems of internal controls As part of its

duties the audit committee is directly responsible for the appointment compensation retention and

oversight of Pier Imports independent registered public accounting firm The audit committee also

reviews Pier Imports quarterly and year-end financial statements The board of directors has

determined that each member of the audit committee is independent and is an audit committee

financial expert as defined by the SEC and therefore has accounting or related financial management

expertise and is financially literate within the meaning of NYSE listing standards

Compensation Committee The compensation committee oversees Pier Imports administratiOn

of base pay short-term and long-term incentive compensation plans including equity-based plans

perquisites and retirement plans for Pier Imports executive officers The compensation committee

has the authority to review and approve corporate goals and objectives relevant to executive officer

compensation programs evaluate the performance of executive officers in light of those goals and

objectives evaluate overall company performance and relative shareholder return and make

recommendations to the board of directors on the establishment and amendment of compensation

programs for executive officers

The compensation committee may at any time form and delegate authority to subcommittees of

the compensation committee with responsibility for establishing corporate goals and objectives relevant

to executive officer compensation programs and the design and administration of all elements of Pier

Imports compensation program The compensation committee may retain and/or terminate outside

compensation consulting firms to assist in the evaluation of executive officer compensation The

compensation committee also may recommend to the board of directors at least
every

other year

compensation for service to Pier .1 Imports as member of the board of directors The compensaion

committee has the authority to obtain advice and assistance from internal or external legal accounting

and other advisors

The compensation committee and board of directors believe that attracting retaining and

motivating Pier Imports employees and particularly Pier Imports executive management are

essential to Pier Imports performance and enhancing shareholder value The compensation

committee will continue to administer and develop Pier Imports compensation programs in manner

designed to achieve these objectives The compensation committee also believes that the total

compensation opportunity provided for the executive officers must be consistent with compensation of

comparable peer group companies and in the Dallas/Fort Worth labor market

Base pay short-term incentive and long-term incentive compensation recommendations for the

executive officers are presented to the compensation committee at their meeting in March of each year
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The presentation includes recommendations of Pier Imports chief executive officer human resources
compensation group or both on those elements of compensation plus recommended plan design
changes if any and summary of all awards to all eligible levels of management That presentation
may also from time to time include

survey data from peer group of retail companies for the
compensation committee consideration That data may include studies and recommendations from
outside consultants Generally the compensation committee and board of directors consider approval
of the fiscal year compensation in March the first month of the fiscal year of each year with
targeted effective date in April Implementation of any equity grant portion of the compensation for
the year occurs after board of directors and compensation committee approval In addition to the
compensation committee consultant described below Pier Imports management may from time to
time retain an outside consultant for assistance and guidance in the formulation of new compensation
programs and the modification of

existing compensation programs

During fiscal 2009 the compensation committee retained Towers Perrin Forster Crosby Inc as
its executive compensation consultant In its role as executive compensation consultant Towers Perrin
reports directly to and is accountable to the compensation committee which has the

authority to hire
retain and dismiss its advisor For fiscal 2009 Towers Perrin provided market data and
recommendations

regarding executive perquisites the base salary short-term incentive and long-term
incentive elements of total compensation and non-employee director compensation The market data
was from peer group of

specialty retailers all of which were publicly traded at the time the market
data was provided

Executive Committee The executive committee directs and manages Pier Imports business and
affairs in the intervals between board of directors meetings In doing so the executive committee has
all of the powers and authority of the full board in the management of Pier Imports business exceptfor powers or authority that may not be delegated to the executive committee as matter of law or
that are delegated by the board of directors to another committee

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee The nominating and
corporate gOvernance

committee is responsible for
considering and making recommendations to the board of directors

regarding nominees for election to the board of directors and the membership of the various board of
directors committees The nominating and corporate governance committee is also responsible for
overseeing the Pier Imports Inc Corporate Governance GuidelInes described earlier in this proxystatement plus other corporate governance matters

Directors Attendance at Board and Committee Meetings and at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders

In fiscal 2009 each director attended at least 75% of the total number of board of directors
meetings and meetings of the board of directors committee or committees on which he or she served
and which were held

during the time of his or her service as director and/or committee member
Although Pier Imports has no formal policy on the matter all directors are encouraged to attend
Pier Imports annual meeting of shareholders Last year all directors attended Pier Imports annual

11
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Pier Imports common stock on the dividend payable date Pier Imports discontinued its quarterly

cash dividend on October 2006 The DSUs are settled in shares of Pier Imports common stock

within thirty days after the person ceases to be member of the board of directors except that the

DSUs then credited to such director are adjusted both as to deferred stock units and cash fees for

the period of service as director and ii DSUs are paid in cash to the extent applicable plan

limitations at such time preclude distributions of Pier Imports common stock

Fiscal 2009 Non-Employee Director Compensation Table

The following table sets forth summary of the compensation with respect to the fiscal year ended

February 28 2009 for services rendered in all capacities to Pier Imports by its non employee

directors

Change in

Pension Value

and Non-

Fees Qualified

Earned Non-Equity Deferred

or Paid in Stock Option Incentive Plan Compensation All Other

Cash1 Awards2 Awards Compensation Earnings Compensation Total

John Burgoyne $175000 $24063 $0 $0 $0 $0 $199063

Michael Ferrari $160000 $16 250 $0 $0 $0 $0 $176 250

Robert Holland III $150000 $31875 $0 $0 $0 $0 $181875

Karen Katz $150000 $31875 $0 $0 $0 $0 $181875

Terry London $175000 $16250 $0 $0 $0 $0 $191250

Cece Smith $150000 $31875 $0 $0 $0 $0 $181875

Tom Thomas $225000 $31875 $0 $0 $0 $0 $256875

This column represents the amount of cash compensation earned in fiscal 2009 for board and

committee service As described in footnote below either 10% 50% 75% or 100% of this cash

compensation was deferred

This column represents the dollar value of Pier Imports 25% match on director annual retainer fees

but not committee chair or chairman annual retainers deferred by each director This amount was

converted to DSUs as shown in the table below The dollar amount recognized for fiscal 2009 financial

statement reporting purposes was the grant date fair value of such DSUs granted in fiscal 2009 in

accordance with SFAS No 123 Revised 2004 Share-Based Payment SFAS 123R The number of

DSUs is calculated using the closing price of Pier Imports common stock on the day the fees are

paid which price approximates the fair value of the units
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The following table shows fiscal 2009 DSUs for each non-emplOyee director given his or her fees

deferral percentage and Pier Imports match

Total Dividends Aggregate

Fiscal Fiscal DSUs DSUs Deferred DSUs DSUs
Year Year Converted Converted Dnring Converted Oied at

2009 2009 from from 25% Fiscal from Fiscal

Fees Fees Deferred Company Year Deferred 2009
Earned Deferral Deferred Fees Match 2009 Dividends Year-End

Name %a L_ __
John Burgoyne $175000 75% 10% $112292 21973 4708 $0 86929

Michael Ferrari $160000 50% 10% 69333 15615 3660 $0 75474
Robert Holland III $150000 100% 10% $127500 23029 5757 $0 52534
Karen Katz $150000 100% 10% $127500 23029 5757 $0 91045

Terry London $175000 50% 10% 75833 17079 3660 $0 50441
Cece Smith $150000 100% /10% $127500 23029 5757 $0 52534

Tom Thomas $225000 100% 10% $191250 34543 5757 $0 145334

Given
Pier Imports unprecedented stock price decline effective January 2009 each non-employee

director elected to defer only 10% of his or her cash fees If the historical deferral elections had

remained in place effective January 2009 then given the stock price shown below for January 2009

and similarly lower prices after that date those elections would have resulted in depletion of shares

available for grant under the Pier Imports Inc 2006 Stock Incentive Plan

The following table shows the Pier Imports common stock closing price by date used to

calculate the number of DSUs to be received for deferred director fees plus Pier Imports match
This closing price

also
represents the grant date fair value per share of each award in accordance with

SFAS 123R

Closing Price of Pier Imports
Common Stock on Date on which Fees

Date on which Fees were Paid were Paid

April 11 2098 $7.45

January 2009 $0 40

14



Stock options outstanding for each non-employee director on February 28 2009 are shown below

Aggregate Number
of Outstanding

Expiration Exercise Stock Options

Name Grant Date Date
__Price

Exercisable

John Burgoyne 06/23/2006 06/23/2016 7.5500 6000

07/01/2005 07/01/2015 $14.2500 6000

06/28/2004 06/28/2014 17.2500 6000

06/27/2003 06/27/2013 $20.3500 6000

06/28/2002 06/28/2012 $2L0000 6000

06/29/2001 06/29/2011 $11 .5000 6000

06/23/2000 06/23/2010 9.3 125 6000

06/25/1999 06/25/2009 $10.8750 11000

Total 53000

Michael Ferrari 06/23/2006 06/23/2016 7.5500 6000

07/01/2005 07/01/2015 14.2500 6000

06/28/2004 06/28/2014 $17.2500 6000

06/27/2003 06/27/20 13 $20.35 00 6000

06/28/2002 06/28/2012 $21 .0000 6000

06/29/2001 06/29/2011 $11.5000 6000

06/23/2000 06/23/2010 9.3125 6000

06/25/1999 06/25/2009 $10.8750 11000

Total 53000

WA WA MIA

Karen Katz 06/23/2006 06/23/2016 7.5500 6000

07/01/2005 07/01/2015 $14.2500 6000

06/28/2004 06/28/2014 $17.2500 6000

06/27/2003 06/27/2013 $20.3500 6000

06/28/2002 06/28/2012 $21 .0000 6000

06/29/2001 06/29/2011 $11.5000 6000

06/28/2001 06/28/2011 $11.1100 5000

Total 41000

Terry London 06/23/2006 06P3/016 7.5500 6000

07/01/2005 07/01/2015 $14.2500 6000

06/28/2004 06/28/2014 $1 7.2500 6000

09/25/2003 09/25/2013 $1 9.4000 5000

Total 23000

Cece Smith N/A N/A N/A N/A

Tom Thomas 06/23/2006 06/23/2016 7.5500 6000

07/01/2005 07/01/2015 14.2500 6000

06/27/2003 06/27/2013 $20.3500 6000

06/28/2002 06/28/2012 $2L0000 6000

Total 24000

On December 15 2008 the hoard of directors amended and restated Pier Imports

non-employee director compensation plan Pursuant to the amended and restated plan each

non-employee director will continue to receive an annual cash retainer of $150000 In addition the

audit committee chairman and compensation committee chairman will each continue to receive an

annual retainer of $25000 the nominating and corporate governance committee chairman will continue

to receive an annual retainer of $10000 and the non-executive chairman of the board will continue to

15



receive an annual retainer of $75000 The annual retainers will continue to be payable in advance at

the beginning of each fiscal year with Pier Imports having the right to adjust the credited DSUs of

non-employee director who ceases to be director of Pier Imports for the amount of the fees paid

and DSUs credited for the period after the non-employee director ceases to be director Pursuant to

the amended and restated plan each non-employee director may continue to elect to defer all or any

portion 01 their director compensation into an equivalent value ot DSIJ Also pursuant to the

amended and restated plan deferrals of the director annual retainer but not the committee chairman

or chairman annual retainers will continue to receive 25% Pier Imports match on the deferred

amount The deferred fees and matching contributions converted to DSUs are subject to the Pier

Imports Inc 2006 Stock Incentive Plans maximum calendar year limit of 375000 units per individual

Security Ownership of Managenent

The following table indicates the ownership of Pier Imports common stock by each director and

nominee each executive officer named in the Summary Compensation Table below and all directors

and executive officers as group as of May 2009 unless otherwise indicated below

Common

Shares Percent

Beneficially of

Name of Beneficial Owner Owned12 Class

John Burgoyne 256616
Michael Ferrari 230124
Robert Holland III 171284

Gregory Humenesky 163534

Jay Jacobs 672695

Karen Katz 225795

Sharon Leite 55610

Terry London 179691

Alexander Smith 1150000 26%

Cece Smith 182 284

Tom Thomas 350584

Charles Turner 701159

David Walker 6874933
All directors and executive officers as group 14 individuals 5214637 5.50%

Represents less than 1% of the outstanding shares of the class

The table includes shares issuable within 60 days of May 2009 to Mr Burgoyne 53000
shares of which 11000 shares expire June 25 2009 Mr Ferrari 53000 shares of which

11000 shares expire June 25 2009 Mr Holland shares Mr Humenesky 88750

shares Mr Jacobs 503750 shares Mrs Katz 41000 shares Ms Leite 18750 shares
Mr London 23000 shares Mr Smith 1000000 shares Ms Smith shares
Mr Thomas 24000 shares Mr Turner 518750 shares Mr Walker 630000 shares

and to all directors and executive officers as group 3067750 shares upon the exercise

of stock options granted pursuant to Pier Imports stock option plans

The table includes DSUs as of May 2009 for Mr Burgoyne 193179 DSUs
Mr Ferrari 174224 DSUs Mr Holland 146284 DSUs Mrs Katz 184795 DSUs
Mr London 156691 DSUs Ms Smith 146284 DSUs and Mr Thomas 276584

DSUs The DSUs will be exchanged one-for-one for shares of Pier Imports common
stock within 30 days after the director ceases to be member of the board of directors

subject to adjustment if any as described above under the caption Non-Employee

16



Director Compensation for the Fiscal Year Ended February 28 2009 DSU is the

economic equivalent of one share of Pier Imports common stock

Mr Walkers employment ended on August 15 2008 At that time Mr Walker directly

owned 57493 shares of Pier Imports common stock and non-qualified stock options

totaling 639500 shares The options are fully vested and exercisable until the earlier of

the expiration date of the grant or August 15 2011 On September 17 2008 and

March 25 2009 respectively 6000 and 3500 non-qualified stock options expired

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners

The following table indicates the ownership by each person who is known by Pier Imports as of

May 13 2009 to beneficially own more than 5% of Pier Imports common stock

Common
Shares Percent

Beneficially of

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner Owned Class

Greek Investments Inc 91276831 10.1%

Harbour House Queen Street

Grand Turk

Turks and Caicos Islands

Adage Capital Management L.P 87057002 9.8%

200 Clarendon Street 52 Floor

Boston Massachusetts 02116

Jakup Dul Jacobsen 85942003 9.7%

Sundaborg

Reykjavik Iceland

SCSF Equities LLC 55435794 6.2%

5200 Town Center Circle Suite 600

Boca Raton Florida 33486

This information was obtained from Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on May 13 2009

by Greek Investments Inc Maria Konstantinu Jorge Constantino Panayotis Constantino

and Athenea Constantino as beneficial owners of the shares listed The filing indicates

that the beneficial Owners have shared voting power and shared dispositive power over all

of the shares listed

This information was obtained from Schedule 13G Amendment No filed with the

SEC on February 17 2009 by Adage Capital Partners L.P Adage Capital Partners GP
L.L.C Adage Capital Advisors L.L.C Robert Atchinson and Phillip Gross as beneficial

owners of the shares listed The filing indicates that the beneficial owners have shared

voting power and shared dispositive power over all of the shares listed

This information was obtained from Schedule 13D Amendment No filed with the

SEC on October 2007 by Jakup Dul Jacobsen and Lagerinn ehf as beneficial owners

of the shares listed The filing indicates that Jakup Dul Jacobsen and Lagerinn ehf have

shared voting power and shared dispositive power over all the shares listed

This information was obtained from Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on October 27

2008 by SCSF Equities LLC Sun Capital Securities Offshore Fund Ltd Sun Capital

Securities Fund LP Sun Capital Securities Advisors LP Sun Capital Securities LLC
Marc Leder and Rodger Krouse as beneficial owners of the shares listed The filing

indicates that the beneficial owners have shared voting power and shared dispositive

power over all of the shares listed
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SECTION 16a BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires Pier Imports directors and

executive officers and persons who own more than 10% of registered class of Pier Imports equity

securities to file with the SEC and the NYSE reports disclosing their ownership and changes in

ownership of Pier Imports common stock or other equity securities Pier Imports executive

officers directors and greater than 10% shareholders are required by SEC regulations to furnish Pier

Imports with copies of all Section 16a forms they file To Pier Imports knowledge all Section 16a
filing requirements applicable to Pier Imports executive officers directors and

greater than 10%

beneficial owners during the last fiscal
year were observed

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION CERTAIN

RELATED PERSON TRANSACTIONS

Each director of Pier Imports who served as member of the compensation committee during

fiscal year ending February 28 2009 is identified above under the caption Directors Attendance at

Board and Committee Meetings and at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders During fiscal 2009 there

were no compensation committee interlocks or insider participation

Related Person Transaction Policies and Procedures

Pier Imports board of directors has adopted written Related Person Transaction Policies and

Procedures which is administered by the nominating and corporate governance committee The policy

applies to any transaction or series of transactions in which Pier Imports is participant the amount

involved exceeds $120000 annually and related person has direct or indirect material interest

Transactions that fall within the policy will be reviewed by the committee for approval ratification or

other action Based on its consideration of all of the relevant facts and circumstances the committee

will decide whether or not to approve such transaction and will approve only those transactions that are

in the best interest of Pier Imports The policy provides for standing pre-approval or ratification of

certain interested transactions along with authority for the chairman of the committee to pre-approve

or ratify interested transactions subject to the policy which fall below specified dollar amount

Transactions with Related Persons

During fiscal 2009 there were no transactions exceeding $120000 in which Pier Imports was

participant or is to be participant and in which any related person had or will have direct or

indirect material interest

Pier Imports indemnifies its directors and its executive officers to the fullest extent permitted by

law and has also entered into agreements with these individuals contractually obligating Pier Imports

to provide this indemnification to them

ITEMS OF BUSINESS TO BE ACTED UPON AT THE MEETING

ITEM 1Election of Directors

The shareholders will vote to elect as directors the eight nominees named below at the annual

meeting of shareholders Those elected will serve on the board of directors until the next annual

meeting and until their successors are elected and qualified The board of directors upon the

recommendation of the board of directors nominating and corporate governance committee has

nominated each person listed below to stand for election Although Pier Imports does not anticipate

that any of the nominees will be unable or unwilling to serve as director in the event that is the case

the board of directors may reduce its size or choose substitute for that nominee
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In order to be elected nominee for director must receive the affirmative vote of majority of

the shares of common stock entitled to vote present in person or represented by proxy at the annual

meeting If proxy card is signed and returned but no direction is made the persons named in your

proxy will vote your shares FOR the election of each of the nominees listed below as director Any

such shares not voted whether by abstention or otherwise will have the same effect as vote

AGAINST each of the nominees listed below as director

The board of directors unanimously recommends vote FOR the election of each of the

following nominees as director

Nominees for Directors

JOHN BURGOYNE

John Burgoyne age 67 has been director of Pier Imports since February 1999 During fiscal

2009 he was the chairman of the compensation committee Mr Burgoyne is retired and served as

president of Burgoyne and Associates an international consulting firm from March 1996 through

February 2007 From May 1995 to March 1996 Mr Burgoyne served as the general manager of IBMs

Travel Industry Sector for their Asia Pacific Region Prior to that time he Served as the president and

general manager of IBM China Corporation Ltd

MICHAEL FERRARI

Michael Ferrari age 69 has been director of Pier Imports since February 1999 During

fiscal 2009 he was member of the audit committee and chairman of the nominating and corporate

governance committee He is the president of Ferrari and Associates LLC higher education

consulting firm he established in May 2003 Dr Ferrari was elected Chancellor Emeritus of Texas

Christian University by the universitys board of trustees on June 2003 and served as chancellor of

Texas Christian University and as professor of management in the Neeley School of Business at

Texas Christian University from July 1998 through May 2003 From 1985 to 1998 he served as

president and professor of management at Drake University

ROBERT HOLLAND III

Robert Holland III age 56 has been director of Pier Imports since June 2007 During

fiscal 2009 he was member of the compensation committee He represented the United States on the

board of executive directors of the World Bank in various capacities including executive director and

alternate and acting executive director from 2002 to 2006 During that time Mr Holland served on the

World Banks aUdit committee Since leaving his position as U.S executive director Mr Holland has

served on the board of directors of Max Petroleum plc where he serves on the compensation

committee as audit committee chairman and co-chairman of the board From January 2007 to

November 2007 he served on the board of directors of Affiliated Computer Systems Inc where he

served as member of the audit committee Prior to his appointment as U.S executive director

Mr Holland was managing director of Texas Ltd strategic consulting firm

KAREN KATZ

Karen Katz age 52 has been director of Pier Imports since June 2001 During fiscal 2009

she was member of the executive committee and the compensation committee She has served as

president and chief executive officer of Neiman Marcus Stores since December 2002 In 2007 her

responsibilities were expanded and she was elevated to executive vice president office of the chairman

The Neiman Marcus Group From May 2000 to December 2002 she served as president and chief

executive officer of Neiman Marcus Direct division of The Neiman Marcus Group Prior to that

time she served as executive vice president of stores for Neiman Marcus Stores from February 1998 to
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May 2000 and senior vice president and director of stores of Neiman Marcus Stores from October 1996

to February 1998

TERRY LONDON
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fiscal 2009 he was the chairman of the audit committee In February 2008 London Partners LLC
private equity investment firm established by Mr London in August 2000 merged into London

Broadcasting Company Inc Since October 2007 he has served as president of London Broadcastiiig

Company Inc From May 1997 to August 2000 he served as president and chief executive officer of

Gaylord Entertainment Company specialty lodging and entertainment company Prior to that time

he served as chief financial and administrative officer of Gaylord Entertainment from November 1991

to April 1997 He also serves as director of Johnson Outdoors Inc and Tn-Artisan Acquisition Corp

ALEXANDER SMITH

Alexander Smith age 56 has been director of Pier Imports has served as its president and

chief executive officer and has been member of Pier Imports executive committee since

February 19 2007 From March 2004 to February 18 2007 Mr Smith served as the senior executive

vice president group president of The TJX Companies Inc From 2001 to March 2004 Mr Smith

served as executive vice president group executive international of The TJX Companies Inc He also

serves as director and chairman of the compensation committee of Papa Johns International Inc

Mr Smith is not related to Cece Smith

CECE SMITH

Cece Smith age 64 has been director of Pier Imports since June 2007 During fiscal 2009 she

was member of the nominating and corporate governance committee and the audit committee In

September of 2007 Ms Smith retired from her position as Managing General Partner of Phillips-

Smith Machens Venture Partners venture capital firm which she co founded in 1986 that invested in

retail and consumer businesses She serves on the executive boards of the Dallas Symphony Association

and the Edwin Cox School of Business at Southern Methodist University She also serves as

director of Brinker International Inc Ms Smith is not related to Alexander Smith

TOM M..THOMAS

Tom Thomas age 67 has been director of Pier Imports since September 1998 During fiscal

2009 he was the non executive chairman of the board chairman of the executive committee and

member of the nominating and corporate governance committee On February 2008 he formed the

law firm Thomas Blackwood LLP and is partner in the firm From August 2005 to January 31

2008 Mr Thomas was shareholder of the Winstead PC law firm formerly known as Winstead

Sechrest Minick P.C. From September 2001 to July 2005 he was senior
partner

of Kolodey
Thomas Blackwood LLP law firm He was also senior

partner
of Thomas Culp LLP law

firm from 1994 to August 2001

The board of directors unanimously recommends vote FOR the election of each of the above-

named nominees as director
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ITEM 2Proposal to Approve an Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation of Pier

Imports Inc to Effect Reverse Stock Split of Pier Imports Common Stock Having

Split Ratio Between and Including 1-for-2 and 1-for-20 as will be Selected by the Board of

Directors Prior to the Time of Filing Such Certificate of Amendment with the Delaware

Secretary of State

The board of directors has unanimously adopted resolution seeking shareholder approval to

amend Pier Imports Certificate of Incorporation to effect reverse stock split of Pier Imports

common stock If this proposal is approved by the shareholders the board of directors may

subsequently effect in its sole discretion the reverse stock split using split ratio of between and

including 1-for-2 and 1-for-20 e.g 1-for-2 1-for-lO 1-for-15 or 1-for-20 Approval of this proposal by

the shareholders would give the board of directors authority to implement the reverse stock split at any

time on or before the day prior to the 2010 annual meeting of shareholders In addition

notwithstanding the approval of this proposal by the shareholders the board of directors may in its

sole discretion determine not to effect and abandon the reverse stock split without further action by

the shareholders

The form of the proposed amendment to our Certificate of Incorporation to effect the reverse

stock split is attached to this proxy statement as Appendix The amendment will effect reverse

stock split of Pier Imports common stock using split ratio between and including 1-for-2 and

1-for-20 where the actual ratio within this range will be selected by the board of directors following

shareholder approval The board of directors believes that shareholder approval of range of potential

exchange ratios rather than single exchange ratio provides the board of directors with the flexibility

to achieve the desired results of the reverse stock split If the shareholders approve this proposal the

reverse stock split will be effected only upon determination by the board of directors that the reverse

stock split is in the best interests of the shareholders at that time In connection with any determination

to effect reverse stock split the board of directors will set the timing for such split and select the

specific ratio from within the range of ratios set forth herein If the board of directors does not

implement the reverse stock split on or before the day prior to the 2010 annual meeting of

shareholders the authority granted in this proposal to implement the reverse stock split on these terms

will terminate The board of directors reserves its right to elect not to proceed and abandon the reverse

stock split if it determines in its sole discretion that this proposal is no longer in the best interests of

the shareholders No further action by the shareholders will be required for the board of directors to

either implement or abandon the reverse stock split

In determining which reverse stock split ratio to implement if any following the receipt of

shareholder approval the board of directors may consider among other things factors such as

the historical trading price and trading volume of Pier Imports common stock

the then prevailing trading price and trading volume of Pier Imports common stock and the

anticipated impact of the reverse stock split on the trading market for Pier Imports common

stock

our ability to continue our listing on the NYSE

which of the alternative reverse split ratios would result in the greatest overall reduction in our

administrative costs and

prevailing general market and economic conditions

To avoid the existence of fractional shares of Pier Imports common stock shareholders who

would otherwise hold fractional shares as result of the reverse stock split will be entitled to receive

cash without interest or deduction in lieu of such fractional shares from the exchange agent and

where shares are held in certificated form the surrender of all old certificates and receipt by the
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exchange agent of properly completed and duly executed transmittal letter in an amount equal to the

proceeds attributable to the sale of such fractional shares following the aggregation and sale by the

exchange agent of all fractional shares otherwise issuable

At the close of business on May 2009 Pier Imports had 90489276 shares of common stock

iociicrl ind niitcf-cindtiy Rqc.sd inn tb niirnbnr nf chtiroc nf rnnnnnnn cl-nrlr rnirrontl icci.rl on1

outstanding immediately following the completion of the reverse stock split and for illustrative

purposes only assuming 1-for-lO reverse stock split we would have approximately 9048928 shares of

common stock issued and outstanding without giving effect to the treatment of fractional shares The

actual number of shares outstanding after giving effect to the reverse stock split will depend on the

reverse split ratio that is ultimately selected by the board of directors We do not expect the reverse

stock split itself to have any economic effect on the shareholders debt holders or holders of options or

restricted stock except to the extent the reverse stock split will result in fractional shares as discussed

below

Reasons for the Reverse Stock Split

The board of directors authorized the resolution to seek shareholder approval to effect the reverse

split of Pier Imports common stock with the primary intent of increasing the price of Pier Imports

common stock in order to meet the NYSEs price criteria for continued listing on that exchange Pier

Imports common stock is publicly traded and listed on the NYSE under the symbol PIR The board

of directors believes that in addition to increasing the price of Pier Imports common stock the

reverse stock split would also reduce certain of our costs such as NYSE listing fees and make Pier

Imports common stock more attractive to broader range of institutional and other investors The

combination of lower transaction costs and increased interest from institutional investors and

investment funds may ultimately improve the trading liquidity of Pier Imports common stock

Accordingly we believe that authority granted to the board of directors to effect the reverse stock split

is in Pier Imports and the shareholders best interests

On December 15 2008 we were notified in writing by NYSE Regulation Inc that the trading

price
of Pier Imports common stock was below the

price
criteria of the NYSEs continued listing

standards as the
average per share closing price

of Pier Imports common stock over consecutive

30 trading day period was less than $1 00 The letter stated that in the event $1 00 share
price

and

$1.00 average share price over the preceding 30 trading-days are not attained at the expiration of

six-month cure period the NYSE would commence suspension and delisting procedures Under NYSE

rules Pier Imports originally had six months from December 15 2008 to achieve compliance with the

NYSEs continued listing standard On February 26 2009 the NYSE temporarily suspended its $1.00

minimum price requirement until June 30 2009 The suspension extended the time that Pier Imports

had to comply with the NYSEs continued listing standards to approximately October 15 2009 because

the duration of the suspension did not count against the original six-month cure period On May
2009 NYSE Regulation Inc notified us that Pier Imports had regained compliance with the $1.00

minimum price requirement since as of April 30 2009 Pier Imports common stock had closing

price above $1.00 per share and had maintained consecutive 30 trading-day average above $1.00 as of

that date Failure to maintain the NYSEs minimum price requirement in the future however could

result in the removal of Pier Imports common stock from the NYSE

In addition to establishing mechanism for the price of Pier Imports common stock to meet the

NYSEs minimum price requirement we also believe that the reverse stock split will make Pier

Imports common stock more attractive to broader range of institutional and other investors It is our

understanding that the current market
price

of Pier Imports common stock may affect its

acceptability to certain institutional investors professional investors and other members of the investing

public It is also our understanding that many brokerage houses and institutional investors have internal

policies and practices that either prohibit them from investing in low-priced stocks or tend to
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discourage individual brokers from recommending low-priced stocks to their customers In addition

some of those policies and practices may function to make the processing of trades in low-priced stocks

economically unattractive to brokers Moreover because brokers commissions on low-priced stocks

generally represent higher percentage of the stock price than commissions on higher-priced stocks

the current average price per share of common stock can result in individual shareholders paying

transaction costs representing higher percentage of their total share value than would be the case if

the share price were substantially higher However some investors may view the reverse stock split

negatively since it reduces the number of shares of common stock available in the public market

Reducing the number of outstanding shares of Pier Imports common stock through the reverse

stock split is intended absent other factors to increase the per share market price of Pier Imports

common stock However other factors such as our financial results market conditions and the market

perception of our business may adversely affect the market price of Pier Imports common stock As

result there can be no assurance that the reverse stock split if completed will result in the intended

benefits described above that the market price of Pier Imports common stock will increase following

the reverse stock split that the market price of Pier Imports common stock will not decrease in the

future or that Pier Imports could fall below Other continued listing criteria of the NYSE

Effects of the Reverse Stock Split

General

If the reverse stock split is approved and implemented the principal effect will be to

proportionately decrease the number of outstanding shares of Pier Imports common stock based on

the reverse stock split ratio selected by the board of directors Pier Imports common stock is

currently registered under Section 12b of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Exchange Act
and we are subject to the periodic reporting and other requirements of the Exchange Act The reverse

stock split will not affect the registration of Pier Imports common stock under the Exchange Act or

except as described above the listing of Pier Imports common stock on the NYSE Following the

reverse stock split Pier Imports common stock will continue to be listed on the NYSE under the

symbol PIR although it will be considered new listing with new CUSIP number

Proportionate voting rights and other rights of the holders of Pier Imports common stock will

not be affected by the reverse stock split other than as result of the treatment of fractional shares as

described below For example holder of 2% of the voting power of the outstanding shares of Pier

Imports common stock immediately prior to the effectiveness of the reverse stock split will generally

continue to hold 2% of the voting power of the outstanding shares of Pier Imports common stock

after the reverse stock split The number of shareholders of record will not be affected by the reverse

stock split except to the extent any are cashed out as result of holding fractional shares If approved

and implemented the reverse stock split may result in some shareholders owning odd lots of less

than 100 shares of Pier Imports common stock Odd lot shares may be more difficult to sell and

brokerage commissions and other costs of transactions in odd lots are generally somewhat higher than

the costs of transactions in round lots of even multiples of 100 shares The board of directors

believes however that these potential effects are outweighed by the benefits of the reverse stock split

Effectiveness of Reverse Stock Split

The reverse stock split if approved by the shareholders and implemented by the board of

directors would become effective upon the filing and effectiveness the Effective Time of

Certificate of Amendment to our Certificate of Incorporation with the Secretary of State of the State

of Delaware It is expected that such filing would take place promptly after any implementation of

reverse stock split by the board of directors assuming the shareholders approve this proposal However

the exact timing of the filing of the amendment will be determined by the board of directors based on
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its evaluation as to when such action will be the most advantageous to Pier Imports and the

shareholders In addition approval of this proposal grants the board of directors the right in its sole

discretion to elect not to proceed with the reverse stock split if at any time prior to filing the

Certificate of Amendment the board of directors in its sole discretion determines that it is no longer

in Pier Imports best interests and the best interests of the shareholders to proceed with the reverse

stuck split

Effect on Pier Imports Stock Plans

As of May 2009 Pier Imports had approximately 11588700 shares subject to stock options

1278042 director deferred stock units not exchanged for common stock and 331684 shares of unvested

restricted stOck outstanding under the Pier Imports Inc 1989 Employee Stock Option Plan 1989
Plan the Pier Imports Inc 1999 Stock Plan 1999 Plan and the Pier Imports Inc 2006 Stock

Incentive Plan 2006 Planand collectively with the 1989 Plan the 1999 Plan and the 2006 Plan the

Stock Plans Under the 1989 Plan and the 1999 Plan the compensation committee of the board of

directors has discretion to determine the appropriate adjustment to the awards granted under each plan

in the event of stock split Should the reverse stock split be effected the 2006 Plan provides for

automatic proportionate adjustments to the number of shares available for issuance and awardable

automatic proportionate adjustments to the shares awarded and the exercise price grant price or

purchase price relating to awards under such plan plus automatic proportionate adjustments to the

awarded director deferred stock units Should the reverse stock split be effected the compensation

committee has approved proportionate adjustments to the shares awarded under the 1989 Plan and the

1999 Plan proportionate adjustments to the exercise price grant price or purchase price relating to

awards under each plan plus proportionate adjustments to the awarded director deferred stock units

under the 1999 Plan Under the 2006 Plan any fractional shares resulting from such adjustments are

rounded up to the next whole share The compensation committee has discretion under the 1989 Plan

and the 1999 Plan on the treatment of fractional shares and will treat fractional shares in the same

manner as the 2006 Plan

Accordingly if this proposal is approved by the shareholders and reverse stock split is

implemented by the board of directors upon the filing of an amendment to our Certificate of

Incorporation with the Delaware Secretary of State the number of all outstanding equity awards the

number of shares available for issuance and awardable and the exercise price grant priŒe or purchase

price relating to any award under Pier Imports Stock Plans will be proportionately adjusted using the

split ratio selected by the board of directors subject to the treatment of fractional shares as described

above The compensation committee has also authorized Pier Imports to effect any other changes

necessary desirable or appropriate to give effect to the reverse stock split including any applicable

technical conforming changes to our Stock Plans For example if 1-for-lO reverse stock split is

effected the 1005714 shares that remain available for issuance under the 2006 Plan as of May 2009
would be adjusted to 100572 shares subject to increase as and when awards expire or are forfeited and

are returned per the terms of the 2006 Plan In addition the exercise price per share under each stock

option would be increased by 10 times such that upon an exercise the aggregate exercise price payable

by the optionee to Pier Imports would remain the same For illustrative purposes only an outstanding

stock option for 3000 shares of common stock exercisable at $1.00 per share would be adjusted as

result of 1-for-lO split ratio into an option exercisable for 300 shares of common stock at an exercise

price of $10.00 per share

In addition to the stock options issued under our Stock Plans 3000000 options are outstanding

pursuant to option grants to Mr Smith pursuant to his employment agreement In the event of

reverse stock split the number of such shares will be proportionately reduced and the purchase price

per share will be proportionately increased
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Effect on Authorized but Unissued Shares of Common Stock

Currently we are authorized to issue up to total of 500000000 shares of common stock of

which 90489276 shares were issued and outstanding as of May 2009 We do not currently intend to

reduce the number of authorized shares of Pier Imports common stock

Effect on Par Value

We intend to amend our Certificate of Incorporation to reduce the
par

value of Pier Imports

common stock to $0.001 See Item below for further information The approval of this proposal is not

conditioned on the approval of Item or Item below

Reduction in Stated Capital

As result of the reverse stock split upon the Effective Time the stated capital on our balance

sheet attributable to Pier Imports common stock which consists of the par value per share of Pier

Imports common stock multiplied by the aggregate number of shares of Pier Imports common stock

issued and outstanding will be reduced in proportion to the size of the reverse stock split

Correspondingly our paid-in capital account which consists of the difference between our stated

capital and the aggregate amount paid to us upon issuance of all currently outstanding shares of Pier

Imports common stock will be increased by the same amount by which the stated capital is reduced

The shareholders equity in the aggregate will remain unchanged See Item for discussion on how

the proposal to reduce the par value of Pier Imports common stock will also affect stated capital

No Going Private Transaction

Notwithstanding the decrease in the number of outstanding shares following the proposed reverse

stock split this tranSaction is not the first step in going private transaction within the meaning of

Rule 13e-3 of the Exchange Act and will not produce either directly or indirectly any of the effects

described in paragraph a3ii of Rule 13e-3

Book-Entty Shares

If the reverse stock split is effected shareholders who hold uncertificated shares i.e shares held

in book-entry form and not represented by physical stock certificate either as direct or beneficial

owners will have their holdings electronically adjusted by Mellon Investor Services LLC the exchange

agent through the Depository Trust Companys Direct Registration System and for beneficial

owners by their brokers or banks that hold in street name for their benefit as the case may be to

give effect to the reverse stock split

U.S shareholders who hold uncertificated shares as direct owners do not need to take any action

in order to receive any cash payment in lieu of fractional shares or other distributions if any that may

be declared and payable to holders of record following the reverse stock split Non-U.S shareholders

who hold uncertificated shares as direct owners will be sent letter of transmittal and W-8BEN form

by the exchange agent ad will need to return it properly completed and duly executed in order to

receive any cash payment in lieu of fractional shares or other distributions if any that may be declared

and payable to holders of record following the reverse stock split

Exchange of Stock Certificates

If the reverse stock split is effected shareholders holding certificated shares shares

represented by one or more physical stock certificates will be required to exchange their old stock

certificates Old Certificates for shares held in book entry form through the Depository Trust

Company Direct Registration System representing the appropriate number of shares of Pier
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Imports common stock resulting from the reverse stock split Shareholders of record upon the

Effective Time will be furnished the
necessary

materials and instructions for the surrender and

exchange of their Old Certificates at the appropriate time by the exchange agent Shareholders will

not have to pay any transfer fee or other fee in connection with such exchange As soon as practicable

after the Effective Time the exchange agent will send transmittal letter to each shareholder advising

such holder of the procedure for surrendering Old Certificates in exchange for new shares held in

book-entry form Pursuant to applicable rules of the NYSE your Old Certificates representing

pre-split shares cannot be used for either transfers or deliveries made on the NYSE Accordingly you

must exchange your Old Certificates in order to effect transfers or deliveries of your shares on the

NYSE

YOU SHOULD NOT SEND YOUR OLD CERTIFICATES NOW YOU SHOULD SEND THEM ONLY
AFTER YOU RECEWE THE LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL FROM THE EXCHANGE AGENT

As soon as practicable after the surrender to the exchange agent of any Old Certificates

together with properly completed and duly exeu ted transmittal letter and any other documents the

exchange agent may specify the exchange agent will have their holdings electronically adjusted in the

name of such persOn

Until surrendered as contemplated herein shareholder Old Certificates shall be deemed at

and after the Effective Time to represent the number of full shares of Pier Imports common stock

resulting from the reverse stock split Until shareholders have returned their pi operly completed and

duly executed transmittal letter and surrendered their Old Certificates for exchange shareholders will

not be entitled to receive any other distributions if any that may be declared and payable to holders of

record following the reverse stock split

Any shareholder whose Old Certificates have been lost destroyed or stolen will be entitled to

new shares in book entry form only after complying with the requirements that we and our transfer

agent customarily apply in connection with lost stolen or destroyed certificates

No service charges brokerage commissions or transfer taxes shall be payable by any holder of any

Old Certificate except that if any book-entry shares are to be issued in name other than that in

which the Old Certificates are registered it will be condition of such issuance that the person

requesting such issuance must pay to us any applicable transfer taxes or establish to our satisfaction

that such taxes have been paid or are not payable the transfer complies with all applicable federal

and state securities laws and the surrendered certificate is properly endorsed and otherwise in

proper form for transfer

Any shareholder who wants to continue holding certificated shares may request new certificates

from Pier Imports transfer agent

Fractional Shares

We do nOt currently intend tO issue fractional shares in connection with the reverse stock split

Therefore we do not expect to issue book-entry shares or certificates representing fractional shares

Shareholders who would otherwise hold fractional shares because the number of shares of common
stock they hold before the reverse stock split is not evenly divisible by the split ratio ultimately selected

by the board of directors will be entitled to receive cash without interest or deduction in lieu of such

fractional shares from the exchange agent and where shares are held in certificated form the

surrender of all Old Certificates and receipt by the exchange agent of properly completed and duly

executed transmittal letter in an amount equal to the proceeds attributable to the sale of such

fractional shares following the aggregation and sale by the exchange agent of all fractional shares

otherwise issuable Non shareholders who hold certificated or uncertificated shares will need to

return to the exchange agent properly completed and duly executed transmittal letter and W-8BEN
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form in order to receive cash in lieu of such fractional shares The ownership of fractional share

interest will not give the holder any voting dividend or other rights except to receive the above-

described cash payment Pier Imports will be responsible for any brokerage fees or commissions

related to the exchange agents selling in the open market shares that would otherwise be fractional

shares

Shareholders should be aware that under the escheat or abandoned property laws of various

jurisdictions sums due for fractional interests that are not timely claimed after the Effective Time may

be required to be paid to the designated agent for each such jurisdiction unless correspondence has

been received by us or our transfer agent concerning ownership of such funds within the time

permitted in such jurisdiction Thereafter if applicable shareholders otherwise entitled to receive such

funds but who do not receive them due to for example their failure to timely comply with the

exchange agents instructions will have to seek to obtain such funds directly from the state to which

they were paid

No Appraisal Rights

Under the Delaware General Corporation Law the shareholders are not entitled to dissenters

rights or appraisal rights with respect to the reverse stock split described in this Item and we will not

independently provide the shareholders with any such rights

Certain Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Reverse Stock Split

The following discussion is general summary of certain U.S federal income tax consequences of

the reverse stock split that may be relevant to holders of Pier Imports common stock that hold such

stock as capital asset for federal income tax purposes This summary is based upon the provisions of

the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended the Code Treasury regulations promulgated

thereunder administrative rulings and judicial decisions as of the date hereof all of which may change

possibly with retroactive effect resulting in U.S federal income tax consequences that may differ from

those discussed below This discussion does not address all aspects of federal income taxation that may

be relevant to such holders in light of their particular circumstances or to holders that may be subject

to special tax rules including without limitation holders subject to the alternative minimum tax

ii banks insurance companies or other financial institutions iii tax-exempt organizations

iv dealers in securities or commodities regulated investment companies or real estate investment

trusts vi partnerships or other flow-through entities for U.S federal income tax purposes and their

partners or members vii traders in securities that elect to use mark-to-market method of

accounting for their securities holdings viii U.S Holders as defined below whose functional

currency is not the U.S dollar ix persons holding Pier Imports common stock as position in

hedging transaction straddle conversion transaction or other risk reduction transaction

persons who acquire shares of Pier Imports common stock in connection with employment or

other performance of services or xi U.S expatriates
In addition this summary does not address the

tax consequences arising under the laws of any foreign state or local jurisdiction and U.S federal tax

consequences other than federal income taxation If partnership including any entity or arrangement

treated as partnership for U.S federal income tax purposes holds shares of Pier Imports common

stock the tax treatment of holder that is partner in the partnership generally will depend upon the

status of the
partner

and the activities of the partnership

We have not sought and will not seek an opinion of counsel or ruling from the Internal

Revenue Service IRS regarding
the United States federal income tax consequences of the reverse

stock split and there can be no assurance the IRS will not challenge the statements and conclusions set

forth in this discussion or that court would not sustain any such challenge EACH HOLDER OF

COMMON STOCK SHOULD CONSULT SUCH HOLDERS TAX ADVISOR WITH RESPECT TO
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THE PARTICULAR TAX CONSEQUENCES OF THE REVERSE STOCK SPLIT TO SUCH
HOLDER

For purposes of the discussion below U.S Holder is beneficial owner of shares of Pier

Imports common stock that for U.S federal income tax purposes is an individual citizen or

resident of the United States ii corporation including any entity treated as corporation for U.S
federal income tax purposes created or organized in or under the laws of the United States any state

or political subdivision thereof iii an estate the income of which is subject to U.S federal income

taxation regardless of its source or iv trust the administration of which is subject to the primary

supervision of U.S court and as to which one or more U.S persons have the authority to control all

substantial decisions of the trust or that has valid election in effect to be treated as U.S person

Non-U.S Holder is beneficial owner other than partnership of shares of Pier Imports

common stock who is not U.S Holder

US Holders

The reverse stock split should constitute recapitalization for U.S federal income tax purposes
As result U.S Holder generally should not recognize gain or loss upon the reverse stock split

except with respect to cash received in lieu of fractional share of Pier Imports common stock as

discussed below U.S Holders aggregate tax basis in the shares of Pier Imports common stock

received pursuant to the reverse stock split should equal the aggregate tax basis of the shares of Pier

Imports common stock surrendered excluding any portion of such basis that is allocated to any

fractional share of Pier Imports common stock and such U.S Holders holding period in the shares

of Pier Imports common stock received should include the holding period in the shares of Pier

Imports common stock surrendered Treasury regulations promulgated under the Code provide

detailed rules for alloeating the tax basis and holding period of the shares of Pier Imports common
stock surrendered to the shares of Pier Imports common stock received pursuant to the reverse stock

split Holders of shares of Pier Imports common stock acquired on different dates and at different

prices should consult their tax advisors
regarding the allocation of the tax basis and holding period of

such shares

U.S Holder who receives cash in lieu of fractional share of Pier Imports common stock

pursuant to the reverse stock split should recognize capital gain or loss in an amount equal to the

difference between the amount of cash received and the U.S Holders tax basis in the shares of Pier

Imports common stock surrendered that is allocated to such fractional share of Pier Imports

common stock Such capital gain or loss should be long term capital gain or loss if the U.S Holders

holding period for Pier Imports common stock surrendered exceeded one year at the Effective Time

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding Information returns generally will be required to

be filed with the IRS with respect to the receipt of cash in lieu of fractional share of Pier Imports

common stock pursuant to the reverse stock split in the case of certain U.S Holders In addition U.S
Holders may be subject to backup withholding tax at the current applicable rate of 28% on the

payment of such cash if they do not provide their
taxpayer identification numbers in the manner

required or otherwise fail to comply with applicable backup withholding tax rules Backup withholding

is not an additional tax Any amounts withheld under the backup withholding rules may be refunded or

allowed as credit against the U.S Holders federal income tax liability if any provided the required

information is timely furnished to the IRS
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Non-US Holders

Non-U.S Holders who exchange shares of Pier Imports common stock pursuant to the reverse

stock split generally should be subject to tax in the manner described above under U.S Holders

except that any capital gain realized by Non-U.S Holder as result of receiving cash in lieu of

fractional share of Pier Imports common stock generally should not be subject to U.S federal

income or withholding tax if the Non-U.S Holder certifies under penalties of perjury that it is

Non-U.S Holder and neither we nor the exchange agent has actual knowledge to the
contrary unless

the Non-U.S Holder is an individual who holds Pier Imports common stock as capital asset

is present in the U.S for 183 days or more during the taxable
year

of the reverse stock split and

meets certain other conditions

the gain is effectively connected with the Non-U.S Holders conduct of trade or business in

the U.S and if certain income tax treaties apply is attributable to Non-U.S Holders

permanent establishment in the U.S or

we are or have been United States real property holding corporation for U.S federal

income tax purposes at any time within the shorter of the five-year period ending on the

Effective Time or the period that the Non-U.S Holder held the shares of Pier Imports

common stock We do not believe that we have been currently are or will become United

States real property holding corporation

Individual Non Holders who are subject to federal income tax because they are present

in the United States for 183 days or more during the year of the reverse stock split will be taxed on

their gain including gain from the sale of shares of Pier Imports common stock and net of

applicable U.S losses from sales or exchanges of other capital assets recognized during the year at

flat rate of 30% or such lower rate as may be specified by an applicable income tax treaty Other

Non-U.S Holders subject to U.S federal income tax with respect to gain recognized as result of

receiving cash in lieu of fractional share of common stock generally will be taxed on such gain in the

same manner as if they were U.S Holders and in the case of foreign corporations may be subject to

an additional branch profits tax at 30% rate or such lower rate as may be specified by an applicable

income tax treaty

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding In general backup withholding and information

reporting will not apply to payment of cash in lieu of fractional share of Pier Imports common
stock to Non-U.S Holder pursuant to the reverse stock split if the Non-U.S Holder certifies under

penalties of perjury that it is Non-U.S Holder and neither we nor the exchange agent has actual

knowledge to the contrary Backup withholding is not an additional tax Any amounts withheld under

the backup withholding rules may be refunded or allowed as credit against the Non-U.S Holders

U.S federal income tax liability if any provided that certain required information is timely furnished

to the IRS In certain circumstances the amount of cash paid to Non-U.S Holder in lieu of

fractional share of Pier Imports common stock the name and address of the beneficial owner and

the amount if any of tax withheld may be reported to the IRS

Vote Required

The affirmative vote of majority of the
outstanding shares of common stock entitled to vote is

required to approve the amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation of Pier Imports Inc to effect

reverse stock split of Pier Imports common stock having split ratio between and including
1-for2 and 1-for-20 as will be selected by the board of directors prior to the time of filing such

Certificate of Amendment with the Delaware Secretary of State If proxy card is signed and returned

but no direction is made the persons named in your proxy will vote your shares FOR this proposal

Any shares not voted whether by abstention or otherwise will have the same effect as vote

AGAINST this proposal
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The board of directors has declared it advisable and unanimously recommends vote FOR
approval of the amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation of Pier Imports Inc to effect

reverse stock split Of Pier Imports common stock having split ratio between and including 1-for-2

and 1-for-20 as will be selected by the board of directors prior to the time of filing such Certificate of

Amendment with the Delaware Secretary of State

ITEM 3Proposal to Approve an Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation of Pier

Imports Inc to Reduce the Par Value of Pier Imports Common Stock from $1.00 Per

Share to $0.001 Per Share

The board of directors has unanimously adopted resolution seeking shareholder approval to

amend Pier Imports Certificate of Incorporation to reduce the par value of Pier Imports common

stock The Certificate of Incorporation currently authorizes the issuance of shares of common stock

with par value of $1.00 per share The board of directors believes it is in the best interests of Pier

Imports to amend the Certificate of Incorporation to reduce the par value of Pier Imports common

stock to $0 001 per share The reduction in par value is intended to bring Pier imports in line with

the practice of other public companies with respect to par value

We further believe that change from par value of $1.00 per share to $0.001 per share will

provide us with greater flexibility in utilizing Pier Imports common stock for various corporate

purposes We also believe that reduction in par value will provide us with greater flexibility with

respect to the issuance of stock and stock-based compensation because Delaware law requires that we

receive at least the par value per share as consideration for the issuance of Pier Imports common

stock

Historically the concept of par value served to protect creditors and senior security holders by

ensuring that company received at least the par value as consideration for issuance of stock Over

time the concept of par value has lost its significance for the most part Many companies that

incorporate today use nominal par value or have no par value

The reduction in the par value of Pier Imports common stock would result in reduction in the

stated capital On our balance sheet attributable to Pier Imports common stock approximately

100.7 million and corresponding increase in the paid-in capital account approximately

$100.7 million The reduction in the par value would not change the number of authorized shares of

Pier 1Imports common stock The reduction in the par value would reduce the amount required to be

carried by Pier Imports as stated capital thereby potentially increasing our paid in capital available

for other corporate purposes The board of directors has not proposed the reduction in the par value

with the intention of declaring dividends on the common stock The reduction in the par value should

have no effect on the rights of the holders of Pier Imports common stock except for the minimum

amount per share Pier Imports may receive upon he issuance of authorized but unissued shares

The form of the proposed amendment to our Certificate of Incorporation to reduce the par value

of Pier Imports common stock to $0.001 is attached to this proxy statement as Appendix

Appendix will be appropriately modified to delete the proposed amendment if this proposal is not

approved by the requisite vote of the shareholders The amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation

will become effective upon the filing of such amendment with the Secretary of State for the State of

Delaware The approval of this proposal is not conditioned on the approval of Item above or Item

below

If this proposal is approved certificates representing shares of Pier Imports common stock

$1.00 par value per share issued and outstanding prior to the effective date of filing of the amendment

to the Certificate of Incorporation will be changed to represent the same number of shares of Pier

Imports common stock $0.001 par value per share as they did prior to such effective date Existing

certificates will not be exchanged for new certificates in connection with this amendment
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The affirmative vote of majority of the outstanding shares of common stock entitled to vote is

required to approve the amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation of Pier Imports Inc to

reduce the par value of Pier Imports common stock from $1.00 per share to $0.001 per share If

proxy card is signed and returned but no direction is made the persons named in your proxy will vote

your shares FOR this proposal Any shares not voted whether by abstention or otherwise will have

the same effect as vote AGAINST this proposal

The board of directors has declared it advisable and unanimously recommends vote FOR
approval of the amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation of Pier Imports Inc to reduce the

par value of Pier Imports common stock from $1.00 per share to $0.00 per share

ITEM 4Proposal to Approve an Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation of Pier

Imports Inc to Increase the Authorized Number of Pier Imports Shares of Preferred

Stock from 5000000 Shares to 20000000 Shares to Shorten the Description of the

Authority of the Board of Directors to Issue Such Shares and to Eliminate the Terms and

Provisions of the Formula Rate Preferred Stock Currently Set Forth in the Certificate of

Incorporation

The board of directors has unanimously adopted resolution seeking shareholder approval to

amend Pier Imports Certificate of Incorporation to increase the authorized number of shares of

preferred stock that we have authority to issue from 5000000 shares to 20000000 shares and to

submit this amendment for shareholder approval The board of directors also authorized an

amendment to amend and restate the board of directors authority to issue such shares and to

eliminate the terms and provisions of the Formula Rate Preferred Stock currently set forth in the

Certificate of Incorporation

The purpose for increasing the number of authorized shares of preferred stock is to give Pier

Imports the flexibility to take advantage of various business opportunities including financings raising

additional capital and other corporate purposes

The preferred stock will enable Pier Imports at the option of the board of directors to issue

series of preferred shares in manner calculated to take advantage of financing techniques that may
provide lower effective cost of capital to Pier Imports The availability of blank check preferred

shares for issuance in the future will give Pier Imports greater flexibility and permit such shares to be

issued without the expense and delay of special meeting of shareholders

We presently have 5000000 shares of preferred stock authorized for issuance in our Certificate of

Incorporation The board of directors has the authority to divide these preferred shares into series to

designate each series to fix and determine separately for each series any one or more relative rights

and preferences priorities and limitations and to issue shares of any series without further shareholder

approval

On or about July 1987 all 5000000 authorized shares of our preferred stock were designated as

the $.25 Preferred Stock and issued in private placement On October 29 1987 we amended our

Certificate of Incorporation to reclassify the 5000000 outstanding shares of the $.25 Preferred Stock as

the Formula Rate Preferred Stock On September 18 1991 all outstanding shares of the Formula Rate

Preferred Stock were redeemed in accordance with their terms Under Delaware law these 5000000
shares could not be reissued except as Formula Rate Preferred Stock The proposed amendment will

eliminate all references to the Formula Rate Preferred Stock in the Certificate of Incorporation

thereby returning the shares to the status of authorized but unissued shares of preferred stock that can

be issued pursuant to the board of directors blank check authority

Pursuant to our Certificate of Incorporation the board of directors is authorized without

shareholder approval to issue preferred shares on the terms that the board of directors determines in

its sole discretion For example the board of directors will be able to determine the voting rights

dividend or distribution rate dates for payment of dividends or distributions whether dividends are
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cumulative that is whether dividends must first be paid on outstanding preferred shares that are issued

before common sharedividends are paid liquidation prices redemption rights and prices any sinking

fund requirements any conversion rights and any restrictions on the issuance of any series of preferred

shares Subject to the exercise of its fiduciary duties to Pier Imports Inc and its shareholders the

board of directors will not issue any of the newly authorized 20000000 available shares of preferred

stock without prior shareholder approval for any defensive or anti-takeover purposes At this current

time we do not have any plans proposals or arrangements to issue any of the newly available shares of

preferred stock and the authorization of the preferred shares is not in response to any takeover

attempt or any other expression of interest indicated by third party

The board of directors present authority to issue the shares of preferred stock generally repeats in

their entirety various provisions of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware Such

long-form provision is not necessary under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware and

the board of directors has recommended that shorter form be substituted in place of the long-form

authority No substantive change to the board of directors authority to issue the authorized preferred

stock in series will occur if this part of the amendment is or is not adopted

The issuance of shares of preferred stock pursuant to the board of directors authority described

above may adversely affect the rights of holders of common stock For example preferred stock issued

by Pier Imports may rank prior to the common stock as to dividend rights liquidation preference or

both may have full or limited voting rights and may be convertible into shares of common stock

Accordingly the issuance of shares of preferred stock may discourage bids for the common stock at

premium or may otherwise adversely affect the market price of the common stock

The form of the proposed amendment to our Certificate of Incorporation to authorize an increase

in the number of authorized shares of preferred
stock from 5000000 shares to 20000000 shares to

shorten the description of the authority of the board of directors to issue such shares and to eliminate

the terms and provisions of the Formula Rate Preferred Stock is attached to this proxy statement as

Appendix Appendix will be appropriately modified to delete the proposed amendment if this

proposal is not approved by the requisite vote of the shareholders If the proposed amendment is

approved all 20000000 shares will be available for future issuance The approval of this proposal is

not conditioned on the approval of Item or Item above

The affirmative vote of majority of the outstanding shares of common stock entitled to vote is

required to approve the amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation of Pier Imports Inc to

increase the authorized number of shares of preferred stock from 5000000 shares to 20000000 shares

to shorten the description of the authority of the board of directors to issue such shares and to

eliminate the terms and provisions of the Formula Rate Preferred Stock No shares of our preferred

stock are outstanding If proxy card is signed and returned but no direction is made the persons

named in your proxy will vote your shares FOR this proposal Any shares not voted whether by

abstention or otherwise will have the same effect as vote AGAINST this proposal

The board of directors has declared it advisable and unanimously recommends vote FOR
approval of the amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation of Pier Imports Inc to increase the

authorized number of Pier Imports shares of preferred stock from 5000000 shares to

20000000 shares to shorten the description of the authority of the board of directors to issue such

shares and to eliminate the terms and provisions of the Formula Rate Preferred Stock currently set

forth in the Certificate of Incorporation

ITEM 5Proposal to Ratify the Audit Committees Approval to Engage Ernst Young LLP as Pier

Imports Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm for Fiscal 2010

At recent meetiug of the audit committee the committee approved engaging Ernst

Young LLP as Pier Imports independent registered public accounting firm for fiscal 2010 Ernst

Young served as Pier Imports independent registered public accounting firm for fiscal 2009
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Although approval or ratification of such engagement is not required by our by-laws Pier Imports is

seeking the shareholders ratification of the audit committees approval to engage Ernst Young
because we believe that allowing shareholders tO express

their view on the matter is good corporate

governance SEC Rule 1OA-3b2 requires that the audit committee ...must be directly responsible for

the appointment. .of any registered public accounting firm... Since the aUdit committee cannot

abdicate this authority to the shareholders the ratification is not binding on Pier Imports Any failure

of the shareholders to ratify the audit committees approval to engage Ernst Young as Pier

Imports independent registered public accounting firm would however be considered by the audit

committee in determining whether to engage Ernst Young

The affirmative vote of majority of the shares of common stock entitled to vote present in

person or represented by proxy at the annual meeting is required to ratify the approval to engage

Ernst Young LLP as Pier Imports independent registered public accounting firm for fiscal 2010 If

proxy card is signed and returned but no direction is made the persons named in your proxy will

vote your shares FOR this proposal Any such shares not voted whether by abstention or otherwise

will have the same effect as vote AGAINST this proposal

The board of directors unanimously recommends vote FOR the ratification the audit

committees approval to engage Ernst Young LLP as Pier Imports independent registered public

accounting firm for fiscal 2010

Relationship with Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Pursuant to its charter the audit committee is directly responsible for the appointment

compensation retention and oversight of Pier Imports independent registered public accounting firm

As described above the audit committee has approved the engagement of Ernst Young as Pier

Imports independent registered public accounting firm for fiscal 2010

The audit committee appointed Ernst Young LLP as Pier Imports independent registered

public accounting firm for fiscal 2009 and the shareholders ratified the appointment at the annual

meeting of the shareholders held on June 20 2008 representative of Ernst Young is expected to

be present at the annual meeting of shareholders and will be given the opportunity to make

statement if he or she so desires and to respond to appropriate questions from Shareholders

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Fees

The following table presents fees incurred for professional services rendered by Ernst

Young LLP Pier Imports independent registered public accounting firm for fiscal years ended

February 28 2009 and March 2008

February 28 2009 March 2008

Audit Fees1 $1141350 $1105700
Audit Related Fees

Tax Fees2 62773 136008

All Other Fees3 1981 1624

Total Fees $1206104 $1243332

Includes fees for services related to the annual audit of the consolidated financial

statements required statutory audits reviews of Pier Imports quarterly reports on

Form 10-0 the registered public accounting firms report on Pier Imports internal

control over financial reporting as required under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

of 2002 and registration statements during the respective period
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Includes fees for services related to tax compliance tax advice and tax planning

Includes fees for subscription to online research tool

Pre approval of Nonaudit Fees

The audit committee has adopted policy that requires advance approval of all audit audit

related tax and other services performed by the independent registered public accounting firm The

policy provides for pre-approval by the audit committee of specifically defined audit audit related and

tax services Unless the specific service has been previously pre-approved with respect to fiscal year

the audit committee must approve the permitted service before the independent registered public

accounting firm is engaged to perform it The audit committee has delegated to the chairman of the

audit committee authority to approve permitted services up to $50000 per engagement provided that

the chairman reports any pre approval decisions to the committee at its next scheduled meeting

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Each member of the audit committee is an independent director pursuant to the independence

requirements of the SEC and NYSE In accordance with the committees written charter the

committee assists the board of directors in overseeing the quality and integrity of Pier Imports

accounting auditing and financial reporting practices In performing its oversight function the

committee reviewed and discussed Pier Imports audited consolidated financial statements as of and

for the fiscal year ended February 28 2009 with management and Pier Imports independent

registered public accounting firm including discussion of the quality not just the acceptability of the

accounting principles the reasonableness of significant judgments and the clarity of disclosures in the

financial statements The committee also discussed with Pier Imports independent registered public

accounting firm all matters required by generally accepted auditing standards including those described

in Statement on Auditing Standards No 61 Communication with Audit Committees and with and

without management present discussed and reviewed the results of the independent registered public

accounting firms examination of the consolidated financial statements

The committee obtained from the independent registered public accounting firm formal written

statement describing all relationships between the firm and Pier Imports that might affect the firms

independence consistent with applicable requirements of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board regarding the independent accountants communications with the audit committee concerning

independence The committee also discussed with the registered public accounting firm any

relationships that may have an impact on their objectivity and independence and satisfied ourselves that

the registered public accounting firm is independent The committee also considered whether the

provision of non-audit services by Ernst Young LLP Pier Imports independent registered public

accounting firm for fiscal 2009 to Pier Imports is compatible with maintaining Ernst Young LLPs

independence

Based on the above-describedreview and discussions with management and the independent

registered public accounting firm the committee recommended to the board of directors that Pier

Imports audited consolidated financial statements be included in Pier Imports Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 28 2009 for filing with the SEC

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Terry London Chairman

Michael Ferrari

Cece Smith
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ITEM 6Shareholder Proposal

William Thompson Jr Comptroller of the City of New York as custodian and trustee df the

New York City Employees Retirement System 87157 shares owned as of December 16 2008 the

New York City Teachers Retirement System 100561 shares owned as of December 16 2008 the New
York City Police Pension Fund 42034 shares owned as of December 16 2008 and the New York City

Fire Department Pension Fund 10541 shares owned as of December 16 2008 and as custodian of

the New York City Board of Education Retirement System 4325 shares owned as of December 16

2008 has submitted the following proposal in accordance with Rule 14a-8 of the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 The proposal is substantially similar to the proposals that Mr Thompson submitted for

consideration at the last two annual meetings of Pier Imports which were both defeated by the

shareholders Mr Thompson has indicated to Pier Imports that each of the above entities intends to

continue to hold at least $2000 of Pier Imports common stock through the date of Pier Imports

annual shareholders meeting Mr Thompsons address is do The City of New York Office of the

Comptroller Bureau of Asset Management Centre Street Room 736 New York New York

10007-2341

To be approved if properly presented at the meeting the proposal must receive the affirmative

vote of majority of the shares of common stock entitled to vote present in person or represented by

proxy at the annual meeting If proxy card is signed and returned but no direction is made the

persons named in your proxy will vote your shares AGAINST this proposal Any such shares not

voted whether by abstention or otherwise will have the same effect as vote AGAINST this

proposal

The board of directors unanimously recommends vote AGAINST this proposal

Shareholder Proposal

Resolved That the shareholders of Pier Imports Inc the Company request that the Board

of Directors Executive Compensation Committee establish pay-for-superior-performance standard in

the Companys executive compensation plan for senior executives Plan by incorporating the

following principles into the Plan

The annual incentive or bonus component of the Plan should utilize defined financial

performance criteria that can be benchmarked against disclosed peer group of companies
and provide that an annual bonus is awarded only when the Companys performance exceeds

its peers median or mean performance on the selected financial criteria

The long-term compensation component of the Plan should utilize defined performance

criteria that can be benchmarked against disclosed peer group of companies Options
restricted shares or other

equity or non-equity compensation used in the Plan should be

structured so that compensation is received only when the Company performance exceeds its

peers median or mean performance on the selected performance criteria and

Plan disclosure should be sufficient to allow shareholders to determine and monitor the pay
and performance correlation established in the Plan

Supporting Statement We feel it is imperative that compensation plans for senior executives be

designed and implemented to promote long-term corporate value critical design feature of

well-conceived executjve compensation plan is close correlation between the level of pay and the level

of corporate performance relative to industry peers We believe the failure to tie executive

compensation to superior corporate performance that is performance exceeding peer group

performance has fueled the escalation of executive compensation and detracted from the goal of

enhancing long-term corporate value

We believe that common compensation practices have contributed to excessive executive

compensation Compensation committees typically target senior executive total compensation at the
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median level of selected peer group then they design any annual and long-term incentive plan

performance criteria and benchmarks to deliver significant portion of the total compensation target

regardless of the companys performance relative to its peers High total compensation targets

combined with less than rigorous performance benchmarks yield pattern of superior-pay-for-average

performance The problem is exacerbated when companies include annual bonus payments among

earnings used to calculate supplemental executive retirement plan SERP benefit levels guaranteeing

excessive levels of lifetime income through inflated pension payments

We believe the Companys Plan fails to promote the pay-for-superior-performance principle Our

Proposal offers straightforward solution The Compensation Committee should establish and disclose

performance criteria and set peer group-related performance benchmarks that permit awards or

payouts in its annual and long-term incentive compensation plans only when the Companys

performance exceeds the median of its peer group senior executive compensation plan based on

sound pay-for-superior-performance principles will help moderate excessive executive compensation and

create competitive compensation incentives that will focus senior executives on building sustainable

long-term corporate value

Pier Imports Response

As noted above the proposal is substantially the same as the proposals that Pier Imports

shareholders defeated at our annual meetings held on June 28 2007 and June 20 2008 The proposal

requests that the board of directors implement performance-based incentive plan for senior executives

covering both annual performance-based incentive and long-term compensation using defined

financial performance criteria that are benchmarked against peer companies Under the proposal

annual performance-based incentive and long-term compensation would be payable only if Pier

Imports performance were to exceed the peer groups mean or median performance with respect to

the selected financial performance criteria.1

In our opinion the proposal continues to be unnecessary in light of Pier ImpOrts current

turnaround efforts and general operating environment Moreover it duplicates certain elements of

Pier Imports existing incentive compensation policies and practices Pier Imports current incentive

plans annual and long-term already utilize financial performance criteria that are tied to an

improvement of Pier Imports profits and value Although these plans do not condition awards on

performance exceeding the mean or median of peer performance on the selected financial performance

criteria Pier Imports nevertheless must surpass certain financial performance objectives before any

annual performance-based incentive payments are made or long-term compensation has compensatory

value to senior executive Pier Imports believes that the tying of annual performance-based

incentive payments and long term compensation to the financial performance measures set forth in its

executive compensation program will focus senior executives on building sustainable long term

corporate value because Pier Imports profits and value actually would have to improve before the

annual performance-based incentive payments are made or the long-term compensation has any

compensatory value

Further Pier Imports believes that its current incentive plans provide more stringent standards

for performance-based incentive plans than those set forth in the proposal Indeed the proposal as

written could permit Pier Imports to reward its senior executives when its financial performance

exceeds that of its
peers

but has not resulted in any improved financial performance or stock

appreciation at Pier Imports In other words as long as Pier Imports performs less poorly relative

to its peers its senior executives could be entitled to incentive compensation result contrary to the

The Supporting Statement of the proposal however conflicts with the proposal by limiting the

peer groups performance to median performance with respect to the selected financial

performance criteria
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contention in the supporting statement that the proposal will focus senior executives on building

sustainable long-term corporate value If Pier Imports were to base the awarding of annual

performance-based incentive payments or other long-term compensation relative to the performance of

companies that are losing value the probability of such compensation being payable could be higher

than when compared to the requirements of Pier Imports current executive compensation program
that are specific to Pier Imports

Pier Imports annual performance-based incentive for senior executives is administered by the

board of directors compensation committee whose duties include establishing performance measure

and quantifying it for each
year

for the payment of cash incentive awards For fiscal 2009 the

committee established performance measure of adjusted consolidated operating cash earnings before

interest taxes depreciation and amortization from all domestic and international operations but not

including discontinued operations unusual or non-recurring charges nor recurring non-cash items each

as determined by the committee or subcommittee We refer to this measure as the Profit Goal For

fiscal 2009 the committee set the Profit Goal target level of $40000000 based on projected company
performance for senior executive to receive 100% of his or her cash incentive award potential

threshold Profit Goal of $25600000 would result in the senior executive receiving 10% of his or her

cash incentive award potential and at $48000000 the senior executive could receive 150% of his or

her cash incentive award potential The Profit Goal targets and corresponding cash incentive award

levels recommended by the committee were subsequently approved by the board of directors Neither

the Profit Goal target level of $40000000 nor the minimum level of $25600000 were met for fiscal

2009 and accordingly none of Pier Imports senior executives or key management participants

received any incentive payments with respect to the fiscal 2009 performance of Pier Imports

For fiscal 2009 Pier Imports long-term incentive plan for senior executives consisted of stock

option awards and restricted stock awards time-based issued under the Pier Imports Inc 2006

Stock Incentive Plan Pursuant to the plan the compensation committee adopted mix of stock options

and time-based restricted stock as long-term incentives for the senior executives The stock option
awards were granted at an exercise price equal to the market price on the date of grant and vest

equally over four years beginning one year after grant The time-based restricted stock awards vest

33% 33% and 34% over three
years beginning one year after the date of grant Each of these awards

was subsequently approved by the board of directors

Stock option awards are designed to promote Pier Imports success by providing value to senior

executives only upon corresponding increase in value to shareholders Pier Imports believes that

time-based restricted stock provides long-term incentive opportunity that is both competitive in the

retail industry and effective as retention tool To remain competitive given our turnaround efforts

Pier Imports must also design its executive incentive package to ensure its ability to attract and retain

highly skilled and motivated executive team which is critical to its future success and to maximizing

shareholder value Pier Imports executive pay therefore includes healthy mix of annual cash

incentive awards and long-term compensation components Overall pay is heavily weighted toward

incentive-based awards that are realized only when the established performance goals are achieved

Using targets that are benchmarked to exceed peer group performance however is unrealistic given

the turnaround environment in which Pier Imports currently operates Further benchmarking the

performance of peer group of companies would be difficult given the size of the home furnishings

industry and the fact that no single company competes directly in all aspects of Pier Imports

business In addition in this economic environment using benchmarked targets that are tied to peer

group performance may result in the payment of incentive awards for performance unrelated to

improved financial performance or stock appreciation at Pier Imports

As stated above no senior executive or key management employee of Pier Imports earned or

received performance cash incentive award for fiscal 2009 because the established minimum Profit

Goal for that
year was not met Additionally all stock option awards outstanding including those
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granted during fiscal 2009 have an exercise price higher than the closing price
of Pier Imports

common stock at the end of fiscal 2009 which was $0.21 In order to remain competitive and return

Pier Imports to profitability our pay program must be motivational realistically achievable and tied

to improved performance at Pier Imports We do not believe that compensation plan designed

according to the proposal would fulfill these objectives
Pier Imports remains committed to utilizing

rigorous performance goals as measure of executive compensation and benchmarking its mix of base

salary short-term incentives and long-term incentives as elements of total compensation to peer group

studies and surveys

It would be unwise at this time for Pier Imports to choose to condition payment of incentives to

senior executives and key management on meeting or exceeding performance standards based on

defined financial performance criteria of other peers which bear no relation to Pier Imports

turnaround efforts general operating
environment and focus on return to profitability Pier Imports

prefers to design and implement both realistic and achievable annual and long-term incentive plans for

its senior executives and key management team An incentive compensation program that could permit

payments to senior executives in certain circumstances when Pier Imports has performed below its

own expectations
wOuld fall well short of the objectives embodied in Pier Imports existing program

which has proven to be effective in Pier Imports current turnaround efforts general operating

environment and focus on return to profitability We believe that the performance measures used by

Pier Imports are set at levels that embody pay-for-superior-performance standard because the

profits and value of Pier Imports would have to improve before any annual performance-based

incentives are paid or long-term compensation has any value

The board of directors unanimously recommends vote AGAINST this proposal
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EXECUTiVE COMPENSATION

Compensation Committee Report

The compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed with management the Compensation

Discussion and Analysis below Based on the review and discussion the compensation committee has

recommended to the board of directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in

Pier Imports proxy statement

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
John Burgoyne Chairman

Robert Holland III

Karen Katz

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

The purpose of this Compensation Discussion and Analysis disclosure is to provide material

information about Pier Imports compensation objectives and policies for its named executive officers

for fiscal 2009 and to put into perspective the tabular disclosures and related narratives that follow it

Compensation Policies Principles and Objectives

Pier Imports has established business priorities as part of our ongoing strategy to return our

business to profitability Pier Imports success in effectively and efficiently executing these business

priorities depends in large part on being able to successfully attract motivate and retain qualified

management team and employees Sourcing qualified candidates to fill important positions within

Pier Imports especially executive management in the highly competitive retail environment is

challenging especially when coupled with our ongoing turnaround efforts Accordingly Pier Imports

overall compensation philosophy is that our executive compensation plan should be structured to attract

and retain highly skilled and motivated individuals who will lead Pier Imports to successful

performance that is consistent with shareholders expectations We accomplish this by creating total

compensation packages which are competitive in the retail industry fair and equitable among the

executives and which provide strong
incentives for the long-term success and performance of Pier

Imports Additionally Pier Imports provides both short-term and long-term incentives to its

executives for the effective management of major functions teamwork and effective expense control

Success on these fronts leads to the overall success of Pier Imports Pier Imports believes that as an

executives level of responsibility increases greater portion of that executive potential total

compensation should come from performance-based plans This aligns managements interests with

shareholders interests as the executives potential total compensation will only increase when Pier

Imports performance increases

Putting this philosophy into operation results in total compensation package for Pier Imports

executive officers approximately equal to the 50th percentile of Pier Imports peer group when Pier

Imports achieves planned financial goals Total compensation packages are designed to provide

75th percentile opportunity when Pier Imports results significantly exceed planned financial goals

For fiscal 2009 Pier Imports used group of peer companies to benchmark executive

perquisites the base salary short-term incentive and long-term incentive elements of total

compensation and non-employee director compensation That group included Bed Bath Beyond Inc

Blockbuster Inc Borders Group Inc Charming Shoppes Inº Cost Plus Inc Eddie Bauer

Holdings Inc Jo-Ann Stores Inc Kirklands Inc Liz Claiborne Inc PetSmart Inc Restoration

Hardware Inc Ross Stores Inc Stein Mart Inc Tuesday Morning Corporation Williams

Sonoma Inc and Zale Corporation Data for these companies was provided by Towers Perrin

Forster Crosby Inc the executive compensation consultant to the compensation committee
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Executive Compensation Components

In addition to base salary short-term incentives and long-term incentives Pier Imports

compensation program in fiscal 2009 included retirement plans and employment and post-employment

agreements With respect to Mr Smith who became Pier Imports president and chief executive

officer on February 19 2007 these elements are discussed separately below under the caption

Employment Agreements and Post-Employment Consulting Agreements As discussed below the

fiscal 2009 compensation program did not include the payment of allowances for certain perquisites

Base SalaryPier Imports designs base salary to reflect an individuals experience skills and

level of responsibility ii provide fixed amount of compensation commensurate with market

conditions for similar jobs iii reflect an executives individual performance and contribution and

iv aid in the retention of key personnel The aspects of individual performance that may be

considered in the determination of each executives base salary include the individuals contribution to

achieving operating goals expense control and expense reduction profitability and performance as

compared to planned results In addition the following factors may be considered when assessing the

performance of each named executive officer thought leadership analysis judgment and financial

acumen results leadership planning and execution people leadership influence and execution and

personal leadership the ability to trust adapt and learn In fiscal 2009 however Pier Imports

management through its human resources compensation group and Pier Imports chief executive

officer supplemented by data provided by Towers Perrin recommended to the compensation

committee no base pay increase for Pier Imports named executive officers at the beginning of the

fiscal year other than one-time adjustment to base pay for the named executive officers in

consideration of the discontinuance of the payment of pre-established amounts for the perquisites

described below The current pay of these officers was considered in comparison to the 50th percentile

of the selected peer group The data showed that the chief executive officers base salary was between

the 50th and 75th peer group percentiles and the base salaries of the executive vice presidents as

group approximated the 50th peer group percentile The compensation committee viewed the one-time

base salary adjustment to be within reasonable range around the 50th peer group percentile As

result the compensation committee agreed to support managements recommendation of these

one-time adjustments effective April 20 2008

Short-term IncentivesPier Imports designs short-term incentive cash awards to motivate

executives to achieve superior annual financial performance for Pier Imports and to reward an

executives contribution to achieving that financial performance During fiscal 2009 Pier Imports

maintained short-term incentive plan for its executives and key members of management The

short-term incentive plan used performance measure of adjusted consolidated operating cash earnings

before interest taxes depreciation and amortization from all domestic and international operations

but not including discontinued operations unusual or non-recurring charges nor recurring non-cash

items each as determined by the compensation committee or subcommittee We refer to this

measure as the Profit Goal This performance measure was selected as the underlying financial measure

because it focuses on factors that an individual participants actions can affect In addition the Profit

Goal is better measure of core operating profitability because it eliminates the effects of financing

and tax decisions as well as unusual charges and more closely reflects cash being generated by Pier

Imports ongoing core operations The offering of short-term incentive plan maintains competitive

position with Pier Imports peer group because meeting annual financial goals leads to the long-term

success of Pier Imports Also designing the short-term incentive Profit Goal specifically around Pier

Imports financial operations reinforces Pier Imports turnaround strategy thereby leading to

profitability over time

Three important factors went into developing the short-term incentive plan
for fiscal 2009

The plan was designed to reinforce the financial turnaround efforts of Pier Imports and focus

management on making the organization more efficient in every way
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The plan was designed to reward meaningful earnings level before cash incentive award is

paid and

The plan was designed to reinforce the previous fiscal years short-term incentive plan which

achieved its desired effect of turning Pier Imports toward profitability

These factors were discussed with the compensation committee and as result the compensation

committee and board of directors approved the plan and set $40000000 as the Profit Goal for fiscal

2009 This goal represented significant progress in returning Pier Imports to profitability given the

comparable Profit Goal measure achieved in fiscal 2008 of $10400000 The plan would pay 100% of

an individuals target cash incentive award at Profit Goal of $40000000 and maximum of 150% of

an individuals target cash incentive award at Profit Goal of $48000000 The incentive plan was

designed to pay an initial 10% of an individuals target cash incentive award when the Profit Goal

reached $25600000 or $15200000 improvement over the prior year participants target cash

incentive award for fiscal 2009 was expressed as percentage of the participants base salary In fiscal

2009 those were 100% of annual base salary for Pier Imports chief executive officer and 75% of

annual base salary for the other named executive officers The plan required participants to be

employed with Pier Imports at the end of fiscal 2009 to receive cash incentive award if any Pier

Imports believes that these target percentage levels are competitive when compared to Pier Imports

peer group as identified at the beginning of the fiscal year Neither the threshold nor minimum level of

the Profit Goal was achieved in fiscal 2009 therefore no participant in the plan including the named

executive officers received short-term incentive compensation

Long-term IncentivesPier Imports designs its long-term incentive awards to support Pier

Imports overall objectives of long-term company success and performance competitiveness in the retail

industry and retention of executives Pier Imports long-term incentive plan for fiscal 2009 was

comprised of stock option awards and time-based restricted stock awards Pier Imports believes that

stock options promote Pier Imports success by providing value to the executive only when there is

corresponding increase in shareholder value Pier Imports believes that time-based restricted stock

provides long-term incentive opportunity that is both competitive in the retail industry and serves as

retention tool During the vesting period restricted stock awards have voting rights and are eligible to

receive cash dividends should cash dividends be paid on Pier Imports common stock

Pier Imports fiscal 2009 long-term incentive plan included two elements non-qualified stock

option awards that vest equally over four-year period beginning on the first anniversary of the grant

date and time-based restricted stock awards that vest 33% 33% and 34% over three-year period

beginning on the first anniversary of the grant date

For fiscal 2009 the mix of long-term incentive awards for each executive officer was determined

with consideration of both internal pay equity concerns as well as market data The following factors

were taken into account in establishing that mix

setting the awards at the 50th peer group percentile

the historical grant practices of Pier Imports

the difficulty of identifying meaningful long-term performance target when executing

business turnaround

the affordability of the awards in terms of share usage and accounting expense and

the desired message to participants and external constituents for leverage risk retention and

performance
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For each named executive officer other than the chief executive officer Pier Imports established the

following mix of long-term incentive awards for fiscal 2009

of Total

Long-Term Incentive Long-Term Incentive

Stock Options 59%

Restricted StockTime-Based 41%

The value of this long-term incentive mix was determined using Black-Scholes methodology For its

chief executive officer Pier Imports provided long-term incentives pursuant to his employment

agreement as discussed below

Pier Imports distributes long-term incentive awards as soon as possible following receipt of all

required approvals Stock options are granted at the closing price of Pier Imports common stock on

the date of the grant Pier Imports practice is for the grants of stock options and restricted stock to

be made on the day following board of directors approval allowing Pier Imports to provide

information to the market if any that may require disclosure as result of Pier Imports board of

directors meeting at which the grants were approved Delays in the grant date may occur pending

quarterly earnings releases and conference calls or as otherwise directed by the board of directors For

fiscal 2009 the
grant date was delayed pending Pier Imports fourth

quarter
and year end earnings

release and conference call Pier Imports does not grant equity compensation awards in anticipation

of the release of material non-public information Similarly Pier Imports does not time the release of

material non-public information based on equity award grant dates Pier Imports practice is for the

date of grants of stock options and restricted stock for named executive officers to be the same date as

grants for all other employees

PerquisitesIn light of then current trepds regarding the payment of perquisites to executives

Pier Imports at the beginning of fiscal 2009 discontinued the payment of allowances for club dues

automobile expenses financial planning and tax preparation and the reimbursement for certain

medical expenses In order to maintain competitive position within the retail industry with respect to

total compensation and in consideration for the discontinuance of these benefits there was one-time

adjustment to the executive officers base salaries

Retirement and Other PlansPier Imports offers supplemental retirement plan which is

designed to provide certain executives with post employment financial security and to mitigate the

effects of deferral limitations on highly compensated individuals in qualified plans such as Pier

Imports 401k plan The plan also assists Pier Imports in attracting and retaining executives The

plan is discussed and described below under the caption Pension Benefits Table for the Fiscal Year

Ended February 28 2009

Pier Imports also offers non-qualified deferred compensation plan known as the Pier Benefit

Restoration Plan to its executives and key members of management This plan is also designed to

provide post-employment financial security and to mitigate the effects of deferral limitations on highly

compensated individuals in qualified plans such as Pier Imports 401k plan The plan also assists

Pier Imports in attracting and retaining executives and key members of management The plan is

described and discussed below under the caption Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Table for the

Fiscal Year Ended February 28 2009

Employment Agreements and Post-Employment Consulting AgreementsFrom time to time

Pier Imports utilizes employment agreements or post-employment consulting agreements to create

continuity of the executives services and to mitigate the executives risk of involuntary termination

other than for cause or the executives voluntary termination based on good reason both events as

defined in the respective agreements

Pier Imports entered into post-employment consulting agreements with Jay Jacobs Executive

Vice President Merchandising on September 13 1995 Charles Turner Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer on September 19 1994 and David Walker Executive Vice President
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Planning and Allocations on November 17 1999 Effective April 20 2008 Pier Imports and each of

Messrs Jacobs Turner and Walker mutually terminated their respective post-employment consulting

agreement There are no further post-employment consulting agreements to which Pier Imports is

party Messrs Jacobs Turner and Walker did not receive any consideration in exchange for the mutual

termination of their respective post-employment consulting agreements nor did Pier Imports incur

penalty with respect to the termination In conjunction with the termination of their respective

post-employment consulting agreements however Messrs Jacobs Turner and Walker along with

Mr Humenesky were offered and each elected lump-sum payment option of the actuarial equivalent

of his accrued benefit under the Pier Imports Inc Supplemental Retirement Plan This is further

discussed below under the caption Pension Benefits Table for the Fiscal Year Ended February 28

2009

As reflected in the fiscal 2007 and 2008 Compensation Discussion and Analysis Mr Smith and

Pier Imports entered into an employment agreement for Mr Smiths employment as Pier Imports

president and chief executive officer The initial term of the employment agreement is for three years

which began on February 19 2007 and ends on February 27 2010 The term of the employment

agreement renews for one-year periods unless Pier Imports or Mr Smith gives notice of non-renewal

at least 60 days prior to the term expiration

Pursuant to the employment agreement Mr Smith receives base salary of $1000000 per year

That amount was increased to $1050000 per year beginning in fiscal 2009 for the elimination of

allowances for certain perquisites and expense reimbursement discussed abOve Mr Smith participated

in Pier Imports annual short term incentive plan described above for fiscal 2009 As discussed above

neither he nor the other named executive officers received short-term incentive compensation because

the minimum level of the Profit Goal was not achieved in fiscal 2009

Pursuant to Mr Smiths employment agreement Mr Smith was granted two stock options

Option and Option and collectively the Options to purchase an aggregate of 3000000

shares of Pier Imports common stock at price of $6.69 per share The Options were granted as an

employment inducement award and not under any stock option or other equity incentive plan adopted

by Pier Imports Option for 1000000 shares was time-based and vested in full on February 19

2008

Option for 2000000 shares is performance-based and may vest upon meeting adjusted

consolidated operating cash earnings before interest taxes depreciation and amortization from all

domestic and international operations but not including discontinued operations unusual or

non-recurring charges nor recurring non-cash items each as determined by the compensation

committee or subcommittee For purposes of the discussion below we refer to this measure as

adjusted consolidated EBITDA This measure was established by the board of directors for fiscal

2009 and is the same measure as the Profit Goal for the short-term incentive plan for fiscal 2009 As

discussed above the short-term incentive for fiscal 2009 established an adjusted consolidated EBITDA

target of $40000000 In conjunction with establishing the short-term incentive plan and performance

measures for fiscal 2009 the board of directors in March of 2008 authorized an amendment to

Mr Smiths employment and option agreements whereby Option could have vested up to 1000000

shares based upon achieving percentage of the fiscal 2009 adjusted consolidated EBITDA target as

follows

100% of the 2009 EBITDA Target 1000000 shares

96% of the 2009 EBITDA Target 900000 shares

92% of the 2009 EBITDA Target 800000 shares

88% of the 2009 EBITDA Target 700000 shares

84% of the 2009 EBITDA Target 600000 shares and

80% of the 2009 EBITDA Target 500000 shares

The minimum level of the adjusted consolidated EBITDA target was not achieved in fiscal 2009

therefore none of the 1000000 shares vested at the end of fiscal 2009
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Option may vest up to 1000000 shares based upon achieving percentage of the fiscal 2010

adjusted consolidated EBITDA target as follows

100% of the 2010 EBITDA Target 1000000 shares

98% of the 2010 EBITDA Target 900000 shares

96% of the 2010 EBITDA Target 800000 shares

94% of the 2010 EBITDA Target 700000 shares

92% of the 2010 EBITDA Target 600000 shares and

90% of the 2010 EBITDA Target 500000 shares

If Pier Imports aggregate adjusted consolidated EI3ITDA for fiscal
years

2009 and 2010 equals

or exceeds the sum of the fiscal 2009 adjusted consolidated EBITDA target plus the fiscal 2010

adjusted consolidated EBITDA target then the Option shares that did not vest at the end of fiscal

2009 may be earned and vest at the end of fiscal 2010 Both Option and Option have an exercise

price of $6.69 per share and expire February 19 2017 Subject to certain terms of the employment

agreement Mr Smith must be employed with Pier Imports at the end of fiscal 2010 to be entitled to

the vesting of the portion of Option for that fiscal year

Mr Smiths employment agreement contains non-solicitation and non-competition agreements

binding Mr Smith for one year following termination of employment

Pursuant to the terms of Mr Smiths original employment agreement in the event that the total

payments and benefits received by Mr Smith or to be received by Mr Smith in connection with

change of control or in connection with Mr Smiths termination of employment in respect of change

of control whether pursuant to the terms of his employment agreement or any other plan arrangement

or agreement with Pier Imports Total Payments would be subject to the excise tax imposed under

Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code Pier Imports is obligated to pay to Mr Smith an

additional amount the Gross-Up Payment such that after payment by Mr Smith of all taxes

including any excise tax imposed upon the Gross-Up Payment and any interest or penalties imposed

with respect to such taxes Mr Smith retains from the Gross-Up Payment an amount equal to the

excise tax imposed upon the Total Payments The Total Payments subject to the excise tax will be such

payments that are excess parachute payments within the meaning of Section 280Gbl of the

Internal Revenue Code

Mr Smiths employment agreement cannot be terminated by either Pier Imports or Mr Smith as

result of change in control of Pier Imports and change in control of Pier Imports does not

constitute Good Reason under the employment agreement However under the Pier Imports

Inc Supplemental Retirement Plan as disclosed in the table below under the caption Potential

Payments upon Termination or Change in Control Mr Smith would be entitled to receive the
present

value of the lump-sum amount of the actuarial equivalent of his benefits assuming that Mr Smith is

involuntarily terminated other than for cause or leaves the employment of Pier Imports for good

reason as defined in the plan within 24 months of change in control as defined in the plan of

Pier Imports Had Mr Smiths employment terminated on February 28 2009 Mr Smith would not
however have been entitled to receive Gross Up Payment

Compensation Determinations and Role of Executive Officers

Base pay short-term incentive and long-term incentive compensation recommendations for the

named executive officers were presented to the compensation committee at their meeting in March of

2008 The presentation included recommendations of Pier Imports chief executive officer and human

resources compensation group on those elements of compensation plus recommended plan design

changes if any and summary of all awards to all eligible levels of management From time to time

these
types of presentations may include survey data from peer group of retail companies for the

compensation committees consideration That data may include studies and recommendations from

independent outside consultants Generally the compensation committee approves the fiscal year

compensation in March of each year with an effective date in April Implementation of the equity grant
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long-term incentive compensation for the year occurred after compensation committee and board of

directors approval

Effects of Market Conditions on Compensation

The global financial and credit crisis has presented challenges for many companies including

Pier Imports Our compensation committee has frozen fiscal 2010 salaries at fiscal 2009 levels for

executive officers Additionally the committee did not authorize long-term incentive awards of equity at

the beginning of fiscal 2010 Although the majority of potential compensation provided to our executive

officers is performance-based we do not believe that it is structured to promote inappropriate risk

taking by our executives We believe that the focus of Pier Imports overall compensation philosophy

encourages management to take balanced approach that focuses on returning the company to

profitability

Pier Imports Policy on Share Ownership

The Pier Imports board of directors has adopted voluntary stock ownership guidelines for its

non-employee directors These guidelines include acquiring ownership of 50000 or more shares of

Pier Imports common stock within five years of becoming director Shares counted toward

ownership include open market purchases beneficial ownership exercise of stock options DSUs and

lapse of restrictions on restricted stock Pier Imports does not have equity or other security ownership

requirements or guidelines for its executive officers Pier Imports has written insider trading policy

that among other things prohibits directors officers and employees from selling short Pier Imports

security or trading in options on Pier Imports security including calls and puts

Pier Imports Policy on Section 162m
Pier Imports considers the effect of limitations on deductibility of compensation for federal

income tax purposes Section 162m of the Internal Revenue Code generally denies public companies

like Pier Imports federal income tax deduction for compensation paid to the chief executive officer

or any of the four other most highly compensated officers that exceeds $1000000 for each such officer

during the tax year Qualifying performance-based compensation paid pursuant to plans approved by

shareholders is not subject to this deduction limitation Pier Imports attempts to preserve the federal

tax deductibility of compensation to the extent reasonably practicable when doing so is consistent with

the executive compensation objective and goals mentioned above While Pier Imports is aware of and

understands the requirements of Section 162m it does not believe that compensation decisions should

be based solely upon the amount of compensation that is deductible for federal income tax purposes

Pier Imports may approve elements of compensation for certain officers that are not fully deductible

by Pier Imports For fiscal 2009 the only officer who received compensation that was not fully

deductible was Mr Smith

45



Summary Compensation Table for the Fiscal Years Ended February 28 2009 March 2008 and

March 2007

The following table sets forth summary of the compensation in the past three fiscal years for

services rendered in all capacities to Pier Imports and its subsidiaries by the chief executive ofilcer

chief financial officer three other most highly compensated executive officers and one additional

individual for whom disclosure would be required hut for the fact that the individual was not serving as

Pier Imports executive officer at the fiscal year-end

Change in

Pension

Value and

Non-Equity Non-Qualified

incentive Deferred

Stock Option Plan Conipensation All Oilier

Name Principal Fiscal Salaryi2 Bonus Awards3 Assardsl4 ompensation Earnings51 Compensatioin6 lotal

Position Year 1$ $1 St St $1 St

Alexander Smith 2009 $1049039 N/A $1399166 28P5 6996 $2740326
President and Chief 2008 $L000000 $750000 N/A $1434638 S3.8836S $637144 f7705.650

xeculive Officer 2007 22243 N/A 47.296 N/A 40.598 116.137

Charles 1-I lurner 2009 459.421 5121.004 135.226 654707 22.l3 51.392.498

Executive Vice 2008 425.231 8141 241 l4.609 S3S7.00I1 385.9S 65.920 S1.490.999

President and chief 2007 377.692 8102916 42 692 107777 79.832 710909

Financial Officer

Orego
Rumeneyt1l 2009 329423 $121004 142.675 68365 9.300 670.767

Executive Vice 008 296923 $341241 102.472 $270 000 12034 28252 850.922

President HutrLan

Resources

Jay Jacobs 2009 419.43 5121.004 200.524 It 559.882 26.055 51326888

Executive Vice 2008 392115 $141241 116212 $351001 363390 14381 51.428.339

President 2007 377692 5102.916 44.80 9.926 74.334 609 545

Merchandising

Sharon iteI 2009 329423 45479 54.805 N/A 24066 451773

Executive Vice

Preskient Stre

David Walker 2009 207.192 41.746 153.230 410.970 53114.861 51.207.999

Executive Vice 2008 340000 $141241 223573 5306000 212.893 511.837 51.274544

President Planning 2007 291.922 5102.916 131.570 1742711 51.054 752.641

and Allocations

Employment ended

August 15 2008

Mr Humenesk3 was not named executive officer in fiscal 2007 Ms Leites employment began in fiscal 2018 and she was

not named executive officer in fiscal 2008

This column represents the amount of base salary paid to the named executive officer during each fiscal year As noted

above in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis base salary for fiscal 2009 was increased due to one-time adjustment

for the discontinuation of allowances for certain perquisites and reimbursement for certain medkal expenses

This column represents the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes in each fiscal year for the

fair value of time-based and performance-based restricted stock awards granted during such fiscal year as well as in prior

fiscal years in accordance with SFAS 123R The amounts shown exclude the impact of estimated forfeitures related to

service-based vesting conditions For time-based restricted stock awards fair value is calculated using the closing price of

Pier Imports common stock on the date of grant No amount was expensed in fiscal years 2007 2008 or 2009 for the

performance-based restricted stock awards granted in fiscal 2007 because the three-year cumulative adjusted consolidated

EBITDA performance goal of $331000000 was not met These amounts reflect Pier Imports accounting expense for

these awards and do not necessarily correspond to the actual value that will be recognized by the named executive officer

This column represents the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes for each fiscal year for the

fair value of stock options granted in such fiscal year as well as in prior fiscal years in accordance with SFAS 123R The

amounts shown exclude the impact of estimated forfeitures related to service-based vesting conditions The following table

sets forth additional information on the valuation assumptions used in the calculation of the fiscal 2009 option awards
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expense included in the Summary Compensation Table above These amounts reflect Pier Imports accounting expense for

these awards and do not necessarily correspond to the actual value that will be recognized by the named executive officers

Assumptions

Expected Risk Free Dividend

Volatility Life Interest Rate Yield Fiscal 2009

Name Grant Date Years Expense

Alexander Smith 02/19/2007 43.07 4.SX 0.25 199166

Charles II Turner 07/01i2005 40.00 3.840 2.20 23618

0623/2006 49.50 5.210 0.50 26763

14/13/2007 42.40 4.687 0.25 49782

04/ /2008 50.84 2.570 0.00 35063

Gregory Humenesky 03/03P005 40.00 4.XXl 200 7857

07/01/2005 40.00 3.840 2.20 61
06/3/2006 49.50 5.210 0.50 26763

04/13/2007 42.40 4.687 OZ 49
04/11/2011$ 50.84 2.570 0.00 345

Jay Jacobs 07/01/2005 40.00 3.840 2.20 23618

06/23/2006 49.50 5.210 0.50 29620

04/13/2007 42.40 4.687 0.25 70868

04/11/2008 50.84 2.570 0.00 76418

Sharon ..ite 08/06/2007 43 17 4520 20a50

04/i l/200 50.84 2370 34655

David Walker 07/01/2005 40.00 3.840 2.20 31605

06/23/2006 49.50 5.210 0.50

04/13/2007 42.40 4.687 0.25

04/11/2008 50.84 2.570 0.00 121625

Grant has already been expensed tot Mr Walker in accordance with retirement eligibility guidelines

Option granted to Mr Smith to purchase 1000000 shares of Pier Imports common stock on February 19 2007 was

time-based and vested on February 19 2008 The grant is being expensed over two years at $2.88 per share The minimum

level of the fiscal 2009 adjusted consolidated EBI1 DA target for Option was not achieved therefore none of the

1000000 shares which could have vested cre expensed during fiscal 2009

This column represents the sum of the change in pension value and above market earnings on non-qualified deferred

compensation earnings for each of the named executive officers During fiscal 2007 Mr Smith did not participate in

Pier Imports defined benefit plan and Mr Humenesky was not named executive officer During fiscal 2009 Ms Leite

did not participate in Pier Imports defined benefit plan

The change in pension value was

Name Fiscal 2009 Fiscal 2008 Fiscal 2007

Alexander Smith $285125 $3883868 N/A

Charles Turner $654343 385629 $107259

Gregory Humenesky 68092 11799 N/A

Jay Jacobs $558703 360718 8877

David Walker $407717 210351 $173593

See the Pension Benefits Table below for additional infOrmation

During fiscal 2009 2008 and 2007 Mr Smith did not participate in non-qualified deferred compensation plan During

fiscal 2007 Mr Humenesky was not named executive officer During fiscal 2009 Ms Leite did not participate in

non-qualified deferred compensation plan The above market earnings on the non-qualified deferred compensation plans
in which the below named executive officers participated were

Name Fiscal 2009 Fiscal 2008 Fiscal 2007

Charles Thrner 364 369 518

Gregory Humenesky 273 235 N/A

Jay Jacobs $1179 $2672 $1049

David Walker $3253 $2542 686

Above market earnings represent the difference between 120% of the long-term applicable Federal Rate at the time the

rate for the plan was selected and the annual interest credited in calendar years 2009 2008 and 2007 of 7.39% 7.03% and

7.05% respectively by Pier Imports on salary deferrd by the named executive officers plus Pier Imports match
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amounts under the non-qualified deferred compensation plans described below under the caption Non-Qualified Deferred

Compensation Table for the Fiscal Year Ended February 28 2009 Additional information on these plans and the indicated

named executive officers participation is shown in that table

The following tables describe each component of the All Other Compensation column in the Summary Compensation

Table

Fiscal 2009 All Other Compensationa

Payments

Relating to Moving
Employee Relocation Total

Tax Gross- Savings and Other All Other

Name upsb Plansc Expensesd Compensation

Alexander Smith 996 996

Charles Turner $22138 22138

Gregory Humenesky 9300 9300

Jay Jacobs $26055 26055

Sharon Leite $1134 8804 $14128 24066

David Walker $22065 $372796 $394861

Perquisites less than $10000 are not included in this table

This column reports the amount of gross-ups for taxes paid to the named executive officers The amount paid to

Ms Leite was for taxes on reimbursements taxable to Ms Leite for non deductible moving and relocation

expenses from her residence in Columbus Ohio to Fort Worth Texas All
eligible employees are entitled pursuant

to Pier Imports relocation policy to have their wages grossed-up to offset the effects of tax liability associated

with non-deductible relocation and moving expenses

This columnreports Pier Imports matching contributions to the named executive officers 401k savings

account equal to the sum of 100% of the first one percent of the participants elected compensation deferral

and ii 50% of the next four percent of the participants elected compensation deferral up to the limitations

imposed under IRS rules the same rate of Pier Imports matching contributions to the named executive

officers account in the Pier hIiports non-qualified deferred compensation plan known as the Benefit Restoration

Plan II which is subject to the same vesting requirements as Pier Imports 401k Retirement Plan and

Pier Imports matching contributions to the named executive officer Stock Purchase Plan account

Those contributions were as follows

Name 401k BRP II SPP Total

Alexander Smith $6996 N/A N/A 6996

Charles Turner $7073 5805 $9260 $22138

Gregory Humenesky $6900 $2400 9300

Jay Jacobs $7073 $10530 $8452 $26055

Sharon Leite $8804 N/A N/A 8804

David Walker $5919 $15396 750 $22065

Employment ended August 15 2008

Pier Imports 401k and Stock Purchase Plan are broad based plans available to all eligible employees on

non-discriminatory basis All stock purchases and contributions under the Stock Purchase Plan were suspended

from March 29 2008 through June 30 2008 For fiscal 2009 matching contributions under the Stock Purchase Plan

were at the following rates for each named executive officer

From March From July

2008 to 2008 to

March 28 February 28
Name 2008 2009

Charles Turner 50% 25%

Gregory Humenesky 30% 25%

Jay Jacobs 50% 25%

David Walker 100% 25%

Employment ended August 15 2008

This column reports $1038 cell phone allowance paid to Ms Leite $4135 reimbursement paid to her for moving

and relocation expenses from her residence in Columbus Ohio to Fort Worth Texas and travel expenses of $8955

paid by Pier Imports for her travel between Columbus Ohio and Fort Worth Texas during her period of

relocation This column reports $372796 paid to Mr Walker under an agreement for severance benefits with

respect to the end of Mr Walkers employment with Pier Imports
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Fiscal 2007 and Fiscal 2008 All Other Compensation

Financial Paments

Planning Relating

and Tax to Dividends Moing
Cell Officer Preparation Tax Employee Paid on Relocation Total

Fiscal Car Club Dues Phone Medical Services Gross- Saingc Restricted and Other ll Other

Name Year llossance Allowance Allosance Reimbursement Mlossance Upbt Plansc Slock Lxpensese Compensation

Alexander Smith 2008 $19200 $3900 $900 3J11 S00ll0 465 N/A S585.418 $637144

i07 526 W7 N/A N/A 45 96 46598

harks Turner 2008 514.400 $2400 8900 5.467 8.600 534.153 65.020

2007 13.200 82.228 514.533 7.uJO 53.820 831.336 57.106 70.832

Gregory

Humenesky 2008 $14400 $400 $90 $3.31 6000 81240 28252

jay Jacobs 2008 S14.400 82.400 $000 1.615 7.800 S37266 6436

2007 613.200 S2.226 iS 4.145 7.600 S2.050 637.105 57.106 74.334

David Walker .. 2008 $14400 %2.400 5900 3.954 6.800 $22383 50.837

Lmployment ended 2007 $11200 $22S N/A 1.610 5700 .511 819699 $7106 .s 51.954

August 15 0b

This column reports amounts reimbursed to the named executive olticers for medical expenses under the Pier

Imports Executive Health Expense Reimbursement Plan

This column reports the amount of gross-ups for taxes paid to the named executive olTkers

This column reports Pier Imports matching contributions to the named executise officers 401k savings

account equal to the sum of 100% of the first one percent of the participants elected compensation deferral

and ii 50% of the next four percent of the participants elected compensation deferral up to the limitations

imposed under IRS rules the same rate of Pier Imports matching contributions to the named executive

officers account in the Pier Imports non-qualified deferred compensation plan known as the Benefit Restoration

Plan II which is subject to the same vesting requirements as Pier imports 401k Retirement Plan and

Pier Imports matching contributions to the named executive officers Stock Purchase Plan account equal to

50% of the named executive officers compensation deduction other than Mr Walker whose matching

contributions were 100% of his compensation deduction and Mr Hurnenesky whose matching contributions were

20% for portion of the year and 30% for the remainder of the year

Those contributions were as follows

Name Fiscal Year 401kl BRP II SPI Total

Alexander Smith 2008 $4615 N/A N/A 4615

2007 N/A N/A N/A NA
Charles Turner 200% $7039 5.853 S2l.261 $34153

2007 $6687 5.763 $l8.8%4 53L336

Gregory Flumeneskv 008 1240 1240

Jay Jacobs 2008 56.80% Sl0.852 19.606 537.266

207 $6.687 SI 1.534 518.884 S37 105

David Walkex 2008 $5100 $10783 6500 $22383

Employment ended August IS 2018 2007 $4488 8.711 6500 $19699

Pier Iniports 401k and Stock Purchase Plan are broad based plans available to all
eligible employees on

non-discriminatory basis

This column reports diidends paid on unested restricted stock held by the named executive otlicers

This column reports the ollosing amounts paid to Mr Smith pursuant to his employment agreement and as

described in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis above

$125000 allowance for moving relocation and other expenses $45965 paid during fiscal 2007 and 679.035

paid during fiscal 2008

Travel expenses of $6383 paid by Pier Imports during fiscal 2008 for Mr Smith and his spouse br travel

between Boston and Fort Worth and

$500000 reimbursement during fiscal 2008 for lost benefits under the long-range performance incenti%e plan

of his former employer
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Grants of Plan-Based Awards for the Fiscal Year Ended February 28 2009

During fiscal 2009 Pier Imports maintained short-term incentive plan pursuant to the Pier

Imports Inc 2006 Stock Incentive Plan for its executives and key members of management in which

the named executive officers participated Under the plan incentive awards in the form of cash are

paid if Pier Imports attains certain targeted levels of adjusted consolidated operating cash earnings

before interest taxes depreciation and amortization from all domestic and international operations

but not including discontinued operations unusual or non-recurring charges nor recurring non-cash

items each as determined by the compensation committee or subcommittee We refer to this

measure as the Profit Goal The participant must be employed at the end of the fiscal year to receive

any cash incentive award An executives cash incentive award potential is expressed as percentage of

his annual base salary for the fiscal year The cash incentive award target for Mr Smith was 100% of

his annual base salary and for Messrs Turner Humenesky and Jacobs and Ms Leite was 75% of their

annual base salary Mr Walkçr was not employed with Pier Imports at the end of fiscal 2009 The

short-term incentive plan is further described in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis above

Neither the threshold nor the minimum level of the Profit Goal was achieved for fiscal 2009 and no

short-term incentive compensation was earned pursuant to the plan

During fiscal 2009 Pier Imports granted under the Pier Imports Inc 2006 Stock Incentive

Plan time-based restricted stock awards These time-based awards vest 33% 33% and 34% each
year

over three-year period beginning on the first anniversary of the grant date provided that the

participant is employed at the vesting date Time based restricted stock grants for fiscal 2009 to

Messrs Turner Humenesky and Jacobs and Ms Leite were 15000 shares each and to Mr Walker were

10000 shares Mr Walker forfeited all of his unvested restricted stock awards upon his termination

Mr Smith was not granted any of these awards in fiscal 2009 Long-term incentives to Mr Smith are

pursuant to his employment agreement as described in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis

above

During fiscal 2009 Pier Imports granted under the Pier Imports Inc 2006 Stock Incentive

Plan non-qualified stock options of 35000 to Mr Walker and 45000 each to Messrs Turner

Humenesky and Jacobs and Ms Leite that vest equally over four-year period beginning on the first

anniversary of the grant date The options terminate 10 years from the date of grant Mr Walkers

stock option vesting accelerated pursuant to the stock option grant agreement upon the end of his

employment given his age and years of service with Pier Imports Those fully vested options may be

exercised during the three years following his termination Mr Smith was not granted any of these

awards in fiscal 2009 Long-term incentives to Mr Smith are pursuant to his employment agreement as

described in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis above

The following table sets forth information relating to grants of plan-based awards during the fiscal

year ended February 28 2009 to the executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table

Pier Imports distributes long-term incentive awards as soon as possible following receipt of all

required approvals Stock options are granted at the closing price of Pier Imports common stock on

the date of the grant Pier Imports practice is for the grants of stock options and restricted stock to

be made on the day following board of directors approval allowing Pier Imports to provide

information to the market if any that may require disclosure as result of Pier Imports board of

directors meeting at which the grants were approved Delays in the grant date may occur pending

quarterly earnings releases and conference calls or as otherwise directed by the board of directors For

fiscal 2009 the grant date was delayed pending Pier Imports fourth quarter and year-end earnings

release and conference call

50



MI other

Stock All Other

Assards Option Grant

Estimated ruture Payouts Estimated Future I.noiits
Number Awards Exercise Dale Fair

Under Non-Equity Under
Equils

Incemitise
ot Shares Number ut orBase alue of

Incentise Plan Awards Plan twards
ol Stock Securities Price of Stock and

_____________________________ ________________________ or Underlying Oplioii Option

grant Meeting Threshold target \Iaximum Threshold Target Maximum Unitsl2 Options3 Awards4 Awards5
Name Date 1ate 15 Share 1$

Alexander Smith NA N/A 5105.000 $lIrSO.tiOtl 11575.000 NA Nt.\ NA

harles lwnei 04 11 258 01 25 2008 34.500 3453mb 517.500 5000 45.000 57.45 5255.125

Orecsri 1lumeflcsk 04 11/2008 03 2500S 24.7511 147 500 171.250 NA 15.000 45.1110 87.45 S68.l25

Jay
Jacobs 04 11 2005 25 2018 31 50 315.000 472.51111 15.000 45.000 $7.4 5255.126

Sharon Lute 04/U/2008 0325200 475t1 47510 171250 15310 45.000 s7.45 5_sS.lS

Dasid Walker 14 II 2008 13 26 2008 .\ 0.000 tS.000 57.45 5155.125

Employment ended

August 15 2005

As noted abose no short-term incentive compensation was earned for fiscal 2009 These columns show the potential value

of the pasout for each named executive officer under the shortterm incentive plan described abo if the threshold target

or maximum amount of the Profit Goal for fiscal 2009 had been met and the named executive officer was employed at the

end of the fiscal year Mr Walker was not employed at the end of the tIscal year The target calculation is based on the

named executive officers Ilscal 2100 annual base salary as of the last day of the fiscal yearFebruary 28 2009 The fiscal

2009 annual base salary in effect for cash incenlise award calculations for Mr Smith ssas $1050000 for Mr Turner ssas

$460000 for Mr Humenesky was 5330.000 for Mr Jacobs was $420000 and for Ms Leite was 1330.000

This column shows the number of time-based restricted stock awards granted to the named executive officer in fiscal 2009

pursuant to the Pier Imports Inc 2006 Stock Incentive Plan These awards vest 33 33 and 34 respectively on each

anniversary of the grant date provided that the named executive officer is employed on the vesting date The restricted

stock award agreement permits an employee to satisty his income tax withholding obligations up to the minimum statutory

rate by electing to require Pier Imports to purchase unrestricted shares otherwise deliverable Mr Walker forfeited this

restricted stock award upon his termination of employment with Pier Imports on August 15 2008

This column shows the number of non-qualified stock options granted to the named executive ol ficer in fiscal 2009

ptlrsuant to the Iier Imports Inc 2006 Stock Incentive Plan All of these options become exercisable in annual

installments of 25% on each of the four annisersaries of the date of Crant except that they beLome
fully

exercisable upon

retirement death or disability The stock option award agreement permits an employee to tender previousl owned shares

to pay the exercise price of an option and permits an employee to satisfy his income tax withholding obligations up to tile

minimum statutory rate by the delivery of previously owned shares or the withholding of shares otherwise issuable upon

exercise of the option Options terminate at the time of termination of employment if the employment ends without

Pier Imports consent ii the earlier of expiration of the option term or the 9P day after the date of termination in the

case of termination with the consent of Pier Imports iii tile earlier of expiration of the option term or one year after

death or disability or is the earlier of expiration of the option term or three years after retirement defined to be age 65

or over or age 55 or oser with at least 15 years of emplosment with Pier Imports Upon retirement the option award

becomes fully vested Mr Walkers employment with Pier Imports ended on August 15 2008 and this option became

100% vested upon his date of termination and exercisable for three years following tile date of termination given his age

and years of service as of that date

This column shows the exercise price for the stock options granted which was the closing market price of Pier Imports

common stock on April 11 2008

This column shows the full grant date fair value of the time-based restricted stock awards and tile stock options to the

named executive officers under SFAS 23R in fiscal 2119 Generally the full grant date fair value is the amount that Pier

Imports would expense in its financial statements over the awards vesting schedule As Mr Walker was retirement eligible

under the provisions of his stock option grant agreement under the Pier Imports Inc 2006 Stock incentive Plan given

his age and years of employment with Pier Imports the fair value of his stock option award was expensed in its entirety

in fiscal 2009 The grant date fair value of the restricted stock awards was based on the closing price of Pier imports

common stock on the date of grant of $7.45 For stock options grant date fair value was calculated using the Black Scholes

model value on the date of grant as $3.48 For additional information on the valuation assumptions refer to note to the

Pier Imports Inc consolidated financial statements in Pier Imports Annual Report on Form 11-K for the fiscal year

ended February 28 2009 the 2009 Form 10-K These amounts reflect Pier Imports accounting expense and do not

necessarily correspond to the actual value that will be recognized by the named executive officers
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Outstanding Equity Awards Table for the Fiscal Year Ended February 28 2009

The following table provides information on the current outstanding stock option and restricted

stock awards held by each named executive officer as of the end of flscal 2009 Market value was

determined using the closing price of Pier Tmports common stock of $0.21 the NYSE closing price

on February 27 2009 which was the last business day of fiscal 2009

Option Awards Stock Awards

Equity

Incentis

Equits Plan

Incentive Awards

Equity Plan Market or

Incentive Awards Payout

Plan Market Number of Value of

Awards Value of Unearned Unearned

7sumber of vsuniher of Number of Number of Shares or Shares Shares

Securities Securities Securities Shares or Units of flits or Units or

Underlying Underlying Underlying nits of Stock Other Rights Other

Unexercised Unexercised Unexercised Option Stock That That That Have Rights That

Options Options Unearned Exercise Option Hase 4ot Itave Not Not Have not

Grant Options Price Expiration Vested4 Vested Vested5 \ested5

Name Date Exercisable Unexercisahle2 Date
--

1$ 1$

Alexander Smith 0l9/2O07 10O000 6.69110 02119/2017

02/19/2007 2000O0Q3 6.6900 02/19/2017

N/A N/A N/A N/A

charles Iiirner 10/12/2000 60.000 $104375 O/22010

09/27/2001 75.000 8.2600 09/27.2011

09/26/2002 100.000 $203800 0926/2012

09/25/2003 100.000 $194000 09252013

06/28/2004 100.000 $172500 16/28/2114

07/01/2005 15000 5.000 $142500 0701/2019

06/23/2006 15.000 15 000 7.5500 062312016

04/1 3/2007 15.000 45.000 7.7700 04/132017

04/11/2008 45000 7.4500 04/11/2018

16/23/2006 3740 785

04/13/2007 8.040 81.688

04/11/2008 15.000 83.150

06/23/2006 12.000 $2520

Gregory Humenes 03/03/2005 3.750 1.0 $i4900 03/03/2015

07/01/2005 15000 5000 S14.2500 07/01/2015

06/23/2006 15010 15.000 75500 Oo/23/2016

04/13/2007 15.000 45000 7.7100 04/13/2017

0411/0 45000 7.4500 04/11/2018

06//2006 374 785

04/13/2007 8.04Q $1688

04/11J2008 15000 83.150

06/23/2006 12.000 82.520

Jay Jacobs 10/12/2000 45.001 810.4375 10/122010

09/27/2001 75.000 8.2600 0027/20

09/26/2002 100.000 821.38 020/2012

09/25/2003 100.000 819.4000 00252013

06/28/2004 100000 817.2500 061282014

07/01/2005 15 5000 814.25 07/012015

06/23/2006 15.000 15.000 7.5500 06/232016

04/13/2007 15.000 45.000 7.770 04132017

04/11/2008 45000 7.4500 04/1/2 18

06/23/2006 3.740 755

04/13/2007 8.040 1688

04/11/2008 15.000 S3.150

06/23/2006 12.000 52.521

Sharo0 Lite 08/06/2007 7500 22.500 6.2500 18/06/2017

04/11/2108 45000 7.4500 04/11/2018

4020 844

04/11/2008 151100 $3150

N/A N/A
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Option Awards Stock Awards

Equity

Incentive

Equity Plan

Incentive Awards

Equity Plan Market or

Incentive Awards Payout
Plan Market Number of Value of

Awards Value of Unearned Unearned

Number of Number of Number of Number of Shares or Shares Shares
Securities Securities Securities Shares or Units of Units or Units or

Underlying Underlying Underlying Units of Stock Other Rights Other

Unexercised Unexercised Unexercised Option Stock That That That Have Rights That

Options Options Unearned Exercise Option Have Not Have Not Not Have not

Grant Options Price Expiration Vested4 Vested VestedS VestedS

Name Date1 Exercisable Unexercisable2 Date

David Walker6 03/25/1999 3500 8.1875 03/25/2009

Employment ended 09/14/1999 25000 5.8125 09/14/2009

August 15 2008 10/12/2000 60000 $104375 10/12/2010

09/27/2001 100000 8.2600 08/15/2011

09/26/2002 100000 $203800 08/15/2011

09/25/2003 100000 $194000 08/15/2011

06/28/2004 100000 $172500 08/15/2011

07/01/2005 20000 $142500 08/15/2011

06/23/2006 30000 7.5500 08/15/2011

04/13/2007 60000 7.7700 08/15/2011

04/11/2008 35000 7.4500 08/15/2011

N/A N/A N/A N/A

For better understanding of this table we have included an additional column showing the grant date of the stock options

and restricted stock awards

Stock options become exercisable in accordance with the vesting schedule below

Grant Date Vesting

03/03/2005 07/01/2005 06/23/2006 25% per year beginning on the anniversary of grant date

04/13/2007 08/06/2007 and 04/11/2008

02/19/2007 As described and discussed in the Compensation Discussion

and Analysis above Option for Mr Smith vested in full on

February 19 2008

Refer to the Compensation Discussion and Analysis above on Option granted to Mr Smith for discussion of its vesting

Time-based restricted stock awards vest according to the following schedule

Grant Date Vesting

06/23/2006 04/13/2007 33% 33% and 34% respectively on each anniversary of the

08/06/2007 and 04/11/2008 grant date provided that the participant is employed at the

vesting date

Performance-based restricted stock awards vest according to the following schedule

Grant Date Vesting

06/23/2006 Cliff vest on date of filing 2009 Form 10-K if three-year

cumulative adjusted consolidated EBITDA is at least

$331000000 provided that the participant is employed at the

end of the three fiscal years These awards did not vest and

were forfeited as of that date given Pier Imports three-year

cumulative adjusted consolidated EBITDA being below the

stated amount

Upon the termination of Mr Walkers employment on August 15 2008 all unvested restricted stock awards time and

performance-based were forfeited Given Mr Walkers age and years of service as of the date his employment ended Mr
Walkers unvested options became 100% vested Mr Walkers stock options are exercisable until the earlier of expiration of

the option term of 10 years from the grant date or August 15 2011
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Option Exercises and Stock Vested Table for the Fiscal Year Ended February 28 2009

The following table provides information for each named executive officer on stock option

exercises during fiscal 2009 including the number of shares acquired upon exercise and the value

realized and the number of shares for which forfeiture restrictions lapse upon the vesting of

time-based restricted stock awards and the value realized In each event the value realized is before

payment of any applicable withholding tax and broker commissions

Option Awards Stock Awards1

Number of Shares Value Number of Shares Value

Acquired on Realized on Acquired on Realized on

Exercise Exercise Vesting Vesting

Name Grant Date

Alexander Smith $0 N/A N/A N/A

Charles Turner $0 04/13/2007 3960 $29502

06/23/2006 3630 $14520

07/01/2005 6120 $19890

Gregory Humenesky .0 $0 04/13/2007 3960 $29502

06/23/2006 3630 $14520

07/01/2005 6120 $19890

Jay Jacobs $0 04/13/2007 3960 $29502

06/23/2006 3630 $14520

07/01/2005 6120 $19890

Sharon Leite 08/06/2007 1980 7682

David Walker $0 04/13/2007 3960 $29502

Employment ended 06/23/2006 3630 $14520

August 15 2008 07/01/2005 6120 $19890

On April 13 2007 June 23 2006 and July 2005 Messrs Turner Humenesky Jacobs and Walker

were each granted 12000 shares 11000 shares and 18000 shares respectively of restricted stock

that vest 33% 33% and 34% on each anniversary of the grant date provided that the participant is

employed at the vesting date On April 13 2008 the forfeiture restrictions lapsed on 3960 shares

with market price of $7.45 as of that date On June 23 2008 the forfeiture restrictions lapsed on

3630 shares with market price of $4.00 as of that date On July 2008 the forfeiture

restrictions lapsed on 6120 shares with market price of $3.25 as of that date On August 2007

Ms Leite was granted 6000 sh4res of restricted stock that vest 33% 33% and 34% on each

anniversary of the grant date provided that the participant is employed at the vesting date On

August 2008 the forfeiture restrictions lapsed on 1980 shares with market price of $3.88 as of

that date

Pension Benefits Table for the Fiscal Year Ended February 28 2009

Pier Imports chief executive officer and the named executive officers other than Ms Leite

participate in plan which was adopted by Pier Imports in 1995 and is known as the Supplemental

Retirement Plan The plan provides upon death disability or retirement or termination of employment

including termination of employment in certain circumstances as result of change in control for

reasons other than cause as defined in the plan each participant will receive life annuity based on

an annual benefit which generally equals 60% of the participants highest three-year average of annual

salary and bonus offset by Social Security retirement benefits As shown in Pier Imports Form 8-K

filed on November 15 2007 Mr Smith was offered and he elected lump-sum payment option of the

actuarial equivalent of his benefit As shown in Pier Imports Form 8-K filed on April 24 2008
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Messrs Turner Jacobs and Walker were offered and each elected lump-sum payment option of the

actuarial equivalent of his benefit Effective April 20 2008 Mr Humenesky was offered and he

elected lump-sum payment option of the actuarial equivalent of his benefit For the named executive

officers that participate in the plan other than Mr Smith the annual life annuity amount cannot

exceed $500000 Mr Smiths benefit calculation is not subject to this limitation For certain participants

the plan also provides that in the event of disability or retirement those participants and their

dependents have the lifetime right to participate in comparable major medical and hospitalization

insurance coverage as made available generally to Pier Imports employees and their dependents If

the executive elects such coverage he or she must pay portion of the total premium In the event of

termination of employment for reasons other than cause prior to retirement eligibility the participant

and his or her dependents have the right to participate in such comparable major medical and

hospitalization insurance coverage during the 15 years immediately after the date the participant attains

age 65 If the participant elects such coverage he or she must pay the total premium Termination of

employment in certain circumstances as result of change in control may constitute retirement under

the plan

The following table shows the present value of each named executive officers total accumulated

benefit under Pier Imports Supplemental Retirement Plan as of the fiscal year ended February 28

2009

Number of Years Present Value of Payments

Credited Accumulated During Last

Service1 Benefit Fiscal Year

Name

Alexander Smith 9.67 $40882762 $0

Charles Turner 17 $2510223 $0

Gregory Humenesky 79891 $0

Jay Jacobs 31 $2997808 $0

Sharon Leite N/A N/A N/A

David Walker 39 $1666407 $03
Employment ended August 15 2008

With the exception of Mr Smith the number of years of credited service for plan

purposes equals the years of credited vesting service as determined by Pier Imports

401k plan for the participant regardless of whether the participant is actually

participating in the 401k plan In all cases except Mr Smith the years of credited

service shown equals the named executive officers years of employment with Pier

Imports Pursuant to his employment agreement Mr Smith was entitled to participate in

the Supplemental Retirement Plan so as to achieve the same level of benefit as his

accrued benefit under the supplemental executive retirement plan of his former employer

Therefore in fiscal 2008 as shown in Pier Imports Form 8K filed on November 15

2007 Mr Smith was credited with 10
years

of plan participation upon enrollment in the

plan and 6.67
years

of credited service as of his employment date with Pier Imports

The additional 6.67
years

of credited service accounts for $3104410 of his total present

value of accrued benefits of $4088276 In accordance with Pier Imports 401k plan

and as of the end of fiscal 2009 Mr Smith has achieved three additional
years

of

credited service based upon his employment date

Includes the present value of medical insurance premiums payable to Mr Smith in the

event of early retirement
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As described in Pier Imports Form 8-K filed on October 2008 Mr Walker was paid

$1666407 on March 2009 for settlement of the amount owed to him under the

Supplemental Retirement Plan

Benefits under the plan for each participant are prorated for years of credited service with Pier
--

Imports of less than 20 years In addition each participant becomes vested in that benefit based on

years of plan participation under the following schedule

Vesting

Years of Plan Participation Percentage

Less than 0%

but less than 10%

but less than 20%

but less than 30%

but less than 40%

but less than 50%

but less than 60%

but less than 70%

but less than 80%

but less than 10 90%

10 or more 100%

Vesting is accelerated to 100% upon an early retirement normal retirement termination of

employment in certain circumstances as result of change in control of Pier Imports or death or

disability of the participant Messrs Smith Jacobs and Turner each have more than 10 years
of plan

participation Mr Humenesky has years of plan participation

None of the named executive officers qualifies for normal retirement under the plan which

requires participants attainment of age 65 participant qualifies for early retirement jf the

participant has at least 10 years of plan participation and retires at or after age 55 and before age 65

If participant retires from Pier Imports after age 55 but before age 65 the calculated benefit prior

to adjustment for Social Security benefits is reduced by 5% for each year that retirement precedes age

65 Mr Smith is eligible for early retirement

Refer to note to the Pier Imports Inc consolidated financial statements in the 2009

Form 10-K for discussion of the valuation method and material assumptions applied in quantifying

the present value of the current accrued benefit for the plan shown in the Pension Benefits Table

above

Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Table for the Fiscal Year Ended February 28 2009

The following table shows the value as of the fiscal year ended February 28 2009 of each named

executive officers total benefit under each non-qualified deferred compensation plan of Pier Imports

in which the executive participates Mr Smith and Ms Leite did not participate in either plan

described below during fiscal 2009 Pier Imports non-qualified deferred compensation plans are

Pier Imports Benefit Restoration PlanThe Pier Imports Benefit Restoration Plan BRP
was established by Pier Imports in April 1990 The BRP permits select members of

management and highly compensated employees of Pier Imports to defer current

compensation generally W-2 earnings Additionally Pier Imports recognizes the value of the

past
and

present
services of employees participating in the BRP by making matching

contributions to employee deferrals plus paying interest earnings on the deferral and match

amounts Pier Imports matching contribution is 100% of the first one percent of the
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participants compensation deferral and ii 50% of the next four percent of the participants

compensation deferral

Each participants deferral and matched amounts are credited at least quarterly with an amount

of interest at an annual rate equal to Moodys Corporate Bond Index plus 1% Over the last

three fiscal years the annual interest rates have ranged from 6.63% to 7.39% During fiscal

2009 the interest rates were 7.03% through December 31 2008 and 7.39% January 2009

through February 28 2009 Participants accounts are paid to them upon separation from Pier

Imports in lump-sum amount unless the participant has previously elected and qualified for

five-year installment form of payment Participants may also elect an in-service lump-sum
distribution with 10% penalty for early withdrawal Participants deferral amounts and the

interest earned on those amounts are fully vested No loans are permitted Matching

contributions and the interest earned on those contributions are subject to the same vesting

requirements as Pier Imports 40 1k retirement plan regardless of whether the participant is

actually participating in the 401k plan The 401k vesting schedule is 20% per year of service

as defined in the plan beginning with two years of service Participants are fully vested in

Pier Imports matching contributions plus earnings after six years of service with Pier

Imports

Effective December 31 2004 the BRP was closed to further contributions by participants The

plan was renamed the BRP and Pier Imports offered after that date the BRP II plan

described below Only vested account balances remain in the BRP along with the interest

continuing to be earned on those amounts

Pier Imports Benefit Restoration Plan ILAll unvested BRP amounts were transferred to

the Pier Imports BRP II The BRP II has the same purpose as the BRP but was adopted to

separate the portion of the BRP that became subject to new deferred compensation taxation

laws effective January 2Q05 generally referred to as 409A

BRP II participants may defer pre-tax amounts of up to 20% of their compensation generally

W2 earnings Participants contributions and the interest earned on those contributions are

fully vested No loans are permitted Pier Imports matching contribution is 100% of the

first one percent
of the participants compensation deferral and ii 50% of the next four

percent of the participants compensation deferral Matching contributions and the interest

earned on those contributions are subject to the same vesting requirements as Pier Imports

401k retirement plan regardless of whether the participant is actually participating in the

401k plan The 401k vesting schedule is 20% per year of service as defined in the plan

beginning with two years of service Participants are fully vested in Pier Imports matching

contributions plus earnings after six years of service with Pier Imports

Each participants deferral amount plus the Pier Imports match is credited at least quarterly

with an amount of interest at an annual rate equal to Moodys Corporate Bond Index plus 1%
Over the last three fiscal years the annual interest rates have ranged from 6.63% to 7.39%

During fiscal 2009 the interest rates were 7.03% through December 31 2008 and 7.39%

January 2009 through February 28 2009 The BRP II allows for an in-service lump-sum
distribution for an unforeseen emergency Unless participants elect to have their account balance

paid out to them in five annual installments then upon separation from Pier Imports their

current balance is paid out to them in lump-sum distribution subject to delay as required by

409A

Trusts have been established for the purpose of setting aside funds to be used to settle obligations

under the benefit restoration plans The trusts assets are consolidated in Pier Imports financial

statements and consist of interest yielding investments aggregating $247000 at February 28 2009 The

trusts also own and are the beneficiaries of number of insurance policies on the lives of current and
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past key executives At February 28 2009 the cash surrender value of these policies was 5409.000

These investments are restricted and may only be used to satis BRP ob1igation Any future

contributions will he made at the discretion of the board of directors and may he made in the form of

cash or other assets such as life insurance policies

Executive Registrant Aggregate Aggregate

Contributions in Contributions in Earnings in Aggregate Balance at

Last Fiscal Last Fiscal Last Fiscal WithdrawaJs Last Fiscal

Year1 Year2 Year3 Distributions4 Year-EndS

Name $1

Charles Ilirner

BRPT
BRP 11 7740 5805 4734 71694

Gregory Htiinenesky

BRP II 3557 52124

Jay Jacobs

BRPI
BRP 11 $35100 $10530 $15320 $232309

David Walker

Employment ended August 15

2008

BRP $33783 S102l93 $415340

BRP 11 $30792 $15396 9291 $151733

Reflects participation by Messrs Turner Humenesky Jacobs and Walker during fiscal 2009 in the

Pier Imports Benefit Restoration Plan II Executive contribution amounts are included in each

named executive officers salary amount in the Summary Compensation Table above

Reflects Pier Imports matching contribution credited to the account of each named executive

officer described in footnote above pursuant to the BRP II These amounts are also included as

All Other Compensation in the Summaiy Compensation Table above

Reflects interest earnings on compensation deferrals plus applicable matching contributions The

interest earnings shown are the total amount of interest payments accrued See footnote to the

Summary Compensation Table above for the above market earnings portion of these interest

earnings in fiscal 2009

In fiscal 2009 BRP and BRP II plan account distributions for Mr Walker were made pursuant

to the end of his employment Mr Walker has elected and qualified for 5-year installment

payment of his BRP amount No other withdrawals or distributions were made to the named

executive officers in fiscal 2009

All named executive officers listed in the table above are fully vested in the BRP and BRP II

with the exception of Mr Humenesky who is 8OYc vested
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Potential Payments upon Termination or Change in Control

The following table shows potential payments to our named executive officers under existing

contracts agreements plans or arrangements to which they are party
for various scenarios including

change in control or termination of employment assuming the event occurred on February 28 2009

and where applicable using the closing price of Pier Imports common stock of $0.21 the NYSE

closing price on February 27 2009 The table below does not include normal versus early retirement

payout information because as of February 28 2009 none of the named executive officers who

participate in Pier Imports Supplemental Retirement Plan were eligible for normal retirement

Mr Walker is excluded from the tabular discussion below as his employment with Pier Imports ended

on August 15 2008 On March 2009 Mr Walker was paid $1666407 for settlement of the amount

owed to him under the Supplemental Retirement Plan Retirement benefits and payments to

Mr Walker are set forth in the Summary Compensation the Pension Benefits and the Non-Qualified

Deferred Compensation Tables above For additional information regarding the Supplemental

Retirement Plan please reference the Pension Benefits discussion above Potential payments to our

named executive officers upon termination of employment under Pier Imports non-qualified deferred

compensation arrangements are discussed in the Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Table above

This disclosure is based on the terms and provisions of the plans as they existed at the end of

Pier Imports fiscal 2009 and Pier Imports interpretation of these terms and
provisions at that

time One or more of the plans identified may allow the administration committee of such plan to

amend the plan or award grant agreements pursuant to the plan subject to certain restrictions or both

In such an event the disclosures shown below would
vary depending on the amendment or restriction

Mr Smiths employment agreement contains non-solicitation and non-competition agreements

binding Mr Smith for one year following termination of employment Additionally stock option grants

under the 1999 Plan and 2006 Plan as described in the footnotes below are subject to certain

non-competition non-solicitation and confidentiality agreements which if violated by an optionee

during employment or within three years after termination of employment in the event of early

retirement will result in termination of the option grant
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Involuntary

Voluntary Without Change

Voluntary Early tood Reason Cause For Cause in

Termination Retirement Termination Termination Termination Control Death Disability

SI $1 SI $1 $1

Alexander Smith

Employment Agreement --

compcnsationBcnefits N/A $l0S0.0001 51.050.00013 50 262.50013

Supplemental Retirement

Piano
Benefit Payment 53.898.573 53.898.573 83 698.573 53898.573 50 57008.595 S1871117 S13104.479

lnsunmce Premiums 189703 189.703 189.703 189.703 50 189703 189703

Stock Options NA 113 113 $11

harIes Ilirner

Supplemental Retirement

Plan1

Benefit Payment $2.5 10.223 NA S2510223 $2510223 $0 56.194.987 $2.285.479 3275670

Insurance Premiums N/A $0 254.611 254.610

Restricted Stock \sval ds

Time-based 12 N/A3 02 56244 SU2 5.6245 5.6246 5.246

Performance-hased 14 02 A3 112 25204 502 2.52116 2.5206 25206

Stock Opton 117 As 07 8t1 5010 011 012 012

Gregory Humenesky

Supplemental Retirement

Planft

Benefit payment 79.891 N/A 79891 79891 $0 4625I 183494 1615579

insurance Premiums N/A 50 180955 t80955

Restricted Stock Awards

rime-based 07 N/AC 02 56244 $02 56245 5.6246 5.624ô

Perforniance-based 141 02 N/Al3 02 1.5204 S0O2 2.52185 2520O6 25206
Stock Options 07 N/\ 07 09 5010 011 012 012

Jay It Jacobs

Supplemental Retirement

Plan1
Benefit pmiierir s.997hUS N/A 52.997805 $2.tN7.80S sO S6.4o5.104 $2501790 3042.992

Insurance Premiums N/A 50 236.813 235.813

Restricted Stock wards

Time-based 112 N/A3 112 56244 $02 5.6245 6.6246 5.6246

Performance-bascd 14 N/A3 02 25204 $012 2.5205 25201 25206
Stock Optio is 07 AS 07 011 $0 10 1111 112 12

Sharon Leite

Restricted Stock Avaids

rime-based 112 N/A3 02 39944 51121 39946 39946k 3.994c6

Stock Options N/AS 09 $0lO II 1112 012

The tirtounts shosvn for soluntary termination voluntary good reason termination and involuntary without cause

termination represent the present value of the lump-sum amount of the actuarial equivalent of the termination benefit for

each participating named executive officer other than Mr Smith under the indicated plan which is payable at age 65 For

Mr Smith the amounts shown represent lump-sum amount of the actuarial equivalent of his benefit under the plan given

his
eligibility

for early retirement under the plan The amount shown for change in control represents the present value of

the lump-sum amount of the actuarial equivalent of the benefits for each participating named executive officer assuming the

executive officer is involuntarily terminated other than for cause or leaves the employment of Pier Imports for good

reason as defined in the plan within 24 months of change in control as defined in the plan of Pier Imports

Under grant agreements pursuant to the Pier Imports Inc 2006 Stock Incentive Plan 2006 Plan termination of

employment for any reason results in forfeiture to Pier Imports of all unvested restricted stock awards The amounts

shown in the table assume that the vesting acceleration discussed in footnote or below does not occur upon voluntary

termination of employment

Under the 2006 Plan the plans administrative committee Committee may in its discretion notwithstanding the grant

agreement upon participants retirement fully vest any and all Pier Imports common stock awarded pursuant to

restricted stock award It is not the normal policy of the Committee to fully vest or accelerate restricted stock awards upon

participants retirement Although the plan does not define retirement for the purposes of this table eligibility for early

retirement assumes attainment of age 55 plus 15 years of service with Pier Imports and eligibility for normal retirement

assumes age 65 regardless of years of service These are the same parameters for early retirement and normal retirement

used in Pier Imports stock option grants Messrs Turner Humenesky and Jacobs and Ms Leite given their ages of 52
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57 54 and 46 respectively were not
eligible

for early retirement under the above parameters Although Mr Humenesky

has attained the age of 55 he does not have 15 years of service with Pier Imports to be
eligible

for early retirement

Under the 2006 Plan the Committee in its discretion may notwithstanding the grant agreement upon termination without

cause fully vest any and all Pier Imports common stock awarded pursuant to restricted stock award The amount

shown assumes the Committee fully vested any and all restricted stock grants under the 2006 Plan It is not the normal

policy of the Committee to fully vest or accelerate restricted stock awards upon participants termination without cause

Value shown is market price on February 28 2009 of $0.21 per share times the number of shares

Under the 2006 Plan the Committee may in its discretion upon corporate change as defined in the plan fully vest any

or all common stock awarded pursuant to restricted stock award This amount assumes the Committee fully vested the

restricted stock grants under the 2006 Plan It is not the normal policy of the Committee to fully vest or accelerate

restricted stock awards upon corporate change Value shown is market price on February 28 2009 of $0.21 per share

times the number of shares

Under the 2006 Plan the Committee in its discretion may upon death or disability fully vest restricted stock award The

amount shown assumes the Committee fully vested the restricted stock grants under the 2006 Plan It is not the normal

policy of the Committee to
fully vest or accelerate restricted stock awards upon participants death or disability Value

shown is market price on February 28 2009 of $0.21 per share times the number of shares

Grants of stock options under the Pier Imports Inc 1999 Stock Plan 1999 Plan and the 2006 Plan each allows upon

termination with the consent of Pier Imports for the optionee to have until the earlier of the expiration of the option

term or the 91st day after the date of termination to exercise any shares vested as of the date of termination No

named executive officer has stock options with an intrinsic value

Under the 1999 Plan and the award agreements pursuant to the 2006 Plan eligibility
for early retirement requires

attainment of the age of 55 years plus 15 years of service with Pier Imports Eligibility
for normal retirement is attained

at age 65 regardless of years of service Under the 1999 Plan and the award agreements pursuant to the 2006 Plan the

vesting of all options is accelerated upon retirement Messrs Turner Humenesky and Jacobs and Ms Leite given their

ages of 52 57 54 and 46 respectively were not eligible for early retirement under the above parameters Although

Mr Humenesky has attained the age of 55 he does not have 15 years of service with Pier Imports to be eligible for early

retirement

Upon termination of employment with the consent of Pier Imports optionees have until the earlier of the expiration

of the option term or the 91st day after the date of termination to exercise the shares vested as of termination No

named executive officer has stock options with an intrinsic value

10 Upon termination for cause all options terminate at the termination of employment

11 Upon change in control event as defined in the 1999 Plan options granted under the 1999 Plan would automatically

vest unless Pier Imports board of directors determines otherwise prior to the change in control event Under the 2006

Plan upon corporate change as defined in the plan the vesting of options may be accelerated the options may be

surrendered for cash payment or adjusted at the discretion of the Committee or the Committee may determine to make

no changes to the options Assuming that upon change in control or corporate change an acceleration of the vesting of

the options granted under the 1999 Plan and 2006 Plan occurs no named executive officer has stock options with an

intrinsic value The exercise term would be determined by the Committee

12 Upon the death or disability of an optionee the options granted under the 1999 Plan and the 2006 Plan become
fully

exercisable to the extent of all unexercised shares and may be exercised by the optionee or in the case of death by the

optionees estate until the earlier of the expiration of the option term or the first anniversary date of such death or

disability No named executive officer has stock options with an intrinsic value

13 If Mr Smiths employment ended as of the end of fiscal 2009 due to voluntary good reason termination or an involuntary

without cause termination then pursuant to his employment agreement Mr Smith would be entitled to receive through the

term of the agreement his compensation and benefits and all shares of Option would vest At the end of fiscal 2009

Option had no intrinsic value In the event of Mr Smiths disability which results in termination of employment then

pursuant to his employment agreement Mr Smith would be entitled to receive 13 weeks of compensation and benefits and

any vesting of Option which occurs in the 13-week period After the 13-week period Mr Smith would participate in any

Pier Imports short-term or long-term disability plans to which he is eligible Change in control does not constitute

termination event under the agreement and the death of Mr Smith ends the employment agreement

14 As mentioned under the Outstanding Equity Awards Table above these performance-based restricted stock awards did not

vest and were forfeited as of the filing of the 2009 Form 10-K given Pier Imports three-year cumulative adjusted

consolidated EBITDA being below the threshold amount required for vesting
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EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

The following table sets forth certain information regarding Pier Imports equity compensation

plans as of February 28 2009

Number of Number of

Securities to Securities Remaining

be Issued Upon Weighted-Average Available for Future

Exercise of Exercise Price of Issuance Under

Outstanding Outstanding Equity Compensation

Options Options Plans Excluding
Warrants and Warrants and Securities Reflected

Plan Category Rights Rights in the First Columnl

Equity compensation plans approved by

Shareholders

Pier Imports Inc 1989 Employee Stock

Option Plan 368975 $18.85

Pier Imports Inc 1999 Stock Plan 7892400 $15.36

Pier Imports Inc 2006 Stock Incentive Plan 2448550 7.52 1505812

Equity compensation plans not approved by

Shareholders2 3000000 6.69

Total- 13709925 $12.16 1505812

The number of shares remaining available for future issuance represents shares available for grant

under the Pier Imports Inc 2006 Stock Incentive Plan On March 2009 723750 DSUs were

granted under the plan As of May 2009 the plan had 1005714 shares available for issuance

after forfeitures and shares withheld for withholding tax obligations

Equity compensation plans hot approved by security holders represent the employment inducement

stock option awards granted under Mr Smiths employment agreement Refer to note to the

Pier Imports Inc consolidated financial statements in the 2009 Form 10-K and the

Compensation Discussion and Analysis and the Summary Compensation Table above for additional

information regarding the material features of these stock option grants

OTHER BUSINESS

Pier Imports does not plan to act on any matters at the meeting other than those described in

this proxy statement If any other business should properly come before the meeting the persons

named in the proxy will vote in accordance with their best judgment

SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS FOR 2010 ANNUAL MEETING

To be included in the proxy statement relating to the 2010 annual meeting of shareholders

shareholder proposals made pursuant to SEC Rule 14a-8 must be received .by Pier Imports corporate

secretary no later than 500 p.m local time January 27 2010

In order to bring matter before the 2010 annual meeting of shareholders that is not contained in

the proxy statement shareholder must comply with the advance notice provisions of Pier Imports

by-laws Pier Imports by-laws require that it receive notice of the matter no earlier than April

2010 and no later than May 2010 You may contact Pier Imports corporate secretary to find out

what specific information regarding the matter must be included with the advance notice
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YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT

You are encouraged to let us know your preference by completing and returning the enclosed

proxy card or by voting by telephone or the Internet

Michael Carter

Senior Vice President and General Counsel

Secretary

May 27 2009
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Appendix

PIER IMPORTS INC

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT

OF

CERTIFICATE OF INco1uoITIoN

Pier Imports Inc corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the provisions of the

General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware the Corporation does hereby certify as follows

FIRST Article FOURTH of the Corporations Certificate of Incorporation shall be amended to add

the following paragraph at the end of Article FOURTH

Upon the effectiveness of the Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation

adding this paragraph the Effective Time each two to twenty shares of the Corporations

Common Stock par value or $0.001 per share issued and outstanding immediately prior

to the Effective Time shall automatically be combined into one validly issued fully paid and

non-assessable share of Common Stock par
value or $0.OOfl per share without any further

action by the Corporation or the holder thereof the exact ratio within the two to twenty range to

be determined by the Board of Directors of the Corporation prior to the Effective Time and

publicly announced by the Corporation subject to the treatment of fractional share interests as

described below the Reverse Stock Split No certificates representing fractional shares of

Common Stock shall be issued in connection with the Reverse Stock Split Stockholders who

otherwise would be entitled to receive fractional shares of Common Stock shall be entitled to

receive cash without interest or deduction from the Corporations exchange agent in lieu of

such fractional share interests upon receipt by the Corporations exchange agent of any required

transmittal letter properly completed and duly executed by the stockholder and where shares are

held in certificated form the surrender of the stockholders Old Certificates as defined below
in an amount equal to the proceeds attributable to the sale of such fractional shares following the

aggregation and sale by the Corporations exchange agent of all fractional shares otherwise

issuable Each certificate that immediately prior to the Effective Time represented shares of

Common Stock Old Certificates shall thereafter represent that number of shares of Common

Stock into which the shares of Common Stock represented by the Old Certificate shall have been

combined subject to the elimination of fractional share interests as described above

SECOND On or 2010 the Board of Directors of the Corporation determined that each

shares of the Corporations Common Stock par value or $0.001 per share issued and

outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time shall automatically be combined into one validly

issued fully paid and non-assessable share of Common Stock par value or $0.001 per share The

Corporation publicly announced this ratio on or 2010

THIRD This Certificate of Amendment shall become effective on or 20101 at

p.m.

FOURTH This Certificate of Amendment was duly adopted in accordance with 242 of the DGCL
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Corporation has caused this Certificate of Amendment to be duly

executed in its corporate name as of the day of or 2010

Pier Imports Inc

By Is MICHAEL CARTER

Name Michael Carter

Title Senior Vice President and General Counsel

Secretaiy
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Appendix

PIER IMPORTS INC

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT

OF

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

Pier Imports mc corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the provisions of the

General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware the Corporation does hereby certify as follows

FIRST Upon the filing and effectiveness pursuant to the General Corporation Law of the State of

Delaware the DGCE of this Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Ii corporation of the

Corporation the Effective Time Article FOURTH of the Corporations Certificate of Incorporation

relating to the capital structure of the Corporation is hereby amended to read in its entirety as set forth

below

FOURTH The total number of shares of all classes of stock which the Corporation shall have

authority to issue is five hundred twenty million 520000000 The total number of shares of

stock which the Corporation shall have authority to issue are divided into two classes five

hundred million 500000000 shares of which are designated as Common Stock having par

value of one-tenth of one cent $0.O01 per share the common Stock and twenty million

20000000 shares of which are designated as Preferred Stock having par value of one dollar

$1 00 per share the Preferred Stock

Subject to 213 of General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware each holder of Common

Stock shall be entitled to one vote for each share of Common Stock held by such holder

The Preferred Stock may be issued in one or more series With respect to each series of Preferred

Stock the Board of Directors of the Corporation is expressly authorized to fix by resolution or

resolutions the number of shares of Preferred Stock of such series as to which the resolution

or resolutions apply and ii the designations and the powers preferences and rights and the

qualifications limitations or restrictions thereof to the full extent permitted by the General

Corporation Law of the State of Delaware in respect of such series of Preferred Stock

SECOND No shares of the Corporations Formula Rate Preferred Stock are outstanding all

outstanding shares having been redeemed in accordance with their terms on or about September 18 1991

Accordingly upon the Effective Time all provisions relating to the Formula Rate Preferred Stock which

were added by Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation filed on October 29 1987 are

hereby deleted from the Certificate of Incorporation Such deleted provisions read in their entirety as

follows

FIRST On August 1987 the Board of Directors of the Corporation acting by unanimous

consent in accordance with the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware and the

By laws of the Corporation adopted the following resolution setting forth and recommending

proposed amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation as amended by the

Certificate of Designation filed by the Corporation on February 17 1987 with respect to the

Corporations $.25 Preferred Stock

RESOLVED that the Board of Directors hereby adopts and declares advisable the following

amendments to the Companys Certificate of Incorporation as amended by the Certificate of

B-i



Designation filed by the Company on February 17 1987 with respect to the Companys $.25

Preferred Stock the Certificate of Designation

The designation of the Companys $.25 Preferred Stock is amended so that it shall

be Formula Rate Preferred Stock and the text of the Certificate of Designation is

amended to read in its entirety as follows

RESOLVED That pursuant to authority conferred upon the Board of Directors by the

Certificate of Incorporation of the Company the Board of Directors hereby authorizes

the issuance of up to 5000000 shares of the Preferred Stock of the Company and

hereby fixes the designation powers preferences and relative participating optional or

other special rights and the qualifications limitations or restrictions thereof of such

shares in addition to those set forth in the Certificate of Incorporation as follows

The initial series of Preferred Stock shall be designated Formula Rate

Preferred Stock

The number of shares constituting the Formula Rate Preferred Stock shall be

5000000 shares

The Formula Rate Preferred Stock shall have Par value of $1.00 Per share

In the event of voluntary or involuntary liquidation dissolution or winding

up of the Company the holders of Formula Rate Preferred Stock shall be entitled to

receive out of the assets of the Company whether such assets are capital or surplus an

amount equal to $.662/3 per share of Formula Rate Preferred Stock the Liquidation

Preference before any payment shall be made or any assets distributed to the holders

of Common Stock provided however that in the event the Company effects stock

split either by way of lawful stock dividend to the holders of or reclassification of

the shares of the Formula Rate Preferred Stock then the amount of the Liquidation

Preference per share which the holders of the Formula Rate Preferred Stock shall be

entitled to receive shall be adjusted to be equal to the Liquidation Preference then in

effect for shares of Formula Rate Preferred Stock multiplied by fraction the

numerator of which is the number of shares of Formula Rate Preferred Stock

outstanding immediately prior to the distribution of shares in the case of stock split

by way of stock dividend or the effectiveness of the stock split in the case of stock

split by way of reclassification of shares and the denominator of which is the number

of shares of Formula Rate Preferred Stock outstanding immediately after such stock

split If upon such liquidation dissolution or winding up of the Company the assets thus

distributed among the holders of Formula Rate Preferred Stock shall be insufficient to

permit the payment to such stockholders of the full preferential amounts aforesaid then

the entire assets of the Company are to be distributed ratably among the holders of

Formula Rate Preferred Stock After payment or distribution to the holders of Formula

Rate Preferred Stock of the full preferential amounts aforesaid the holders of Common

Stock shall be entitled to receive ratably all remaining assets of the Company
consolidation or merger of the Company with or into any other corporation or

corporations or sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company shall not

be deemed to be liquidation dissolution or winding up within the meaning of this

paragraph

The holders of the Formula Rate Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive

subject only to the availability of funds legally available therefor cumulative annual

cash dividend in the sum of Sixteen and Two-Thirds Cents $.162/3 per share and no

more which shall be payable in one or more installments when and as may be declared
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by the Board of Directors from time to time provided however that in the event the

Company effects stock split either by way of lawful stock dividend to the holders of

or reclassification of the shares of the Formula Rate Preferred Stock then the

amount of dividend per share which the holders of the Formula Rate Preferred Stock

shall be entitled to receive shall be adjusted to be equal to the per share dividend then

in effect for shares of Formula Rate Preferred Stock multiplied by fraction the

numerator of which is the number of shares of Formula Rate Preferred Stock

outstanding immediately prior to the distribution of shares in the case of stock split

by way of stock dividend or the effectiveness of the stock split in the case of stock

split by way of reclassification of shares and the denominator of which is the number

of shares of Formula Rate Preferred Stock outstanding immediately after such stock

split The resulting dividend rate shall hereinafter be referred to as the Formula Rate
Dividends on the Formula Rate Preferred Stock shall begin to accrue at the Formula

Rate from and after the date upon which the shares of stock are distributed in the case

of stock split by way of stock dividend or the reclassification becomes effective in
the case of stock split by way of reclassification of shares In the event of any such

adjustment the Company shall prepare certificate setting forth the calculation of

the Formula Rate which certificate shall be kept by the Secretary of the Company and

made available to any holder of Formula Rate Preferred Stock who requests such

certificate and ii notify holders of such stock of the adjustment The Formula Rate

shall continue in effect unless and until the Company effects another stock split in

which case the Formula Rate shall be further adjusted pursuant to the procedure set

forth above Except as provided in this subparagraph the holders of Formula Rate

Preferred Stock shall not be entitled to receive or participate in any cash dividends

which may be declared by the Board of Directors or paid by the Company

The holders of the Formula Rate Preferred Stock are entitled to vote with the

holders of the Common Stock as single class as follows

On matters subject to vote by holders of Common Stock the holders of

Formula Rate Preferred Stock shall be entitled to ten 10 votes per share voting as

single class together with the Common Stock which is entitled to one vote per share

The affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the shares of the Formula Rate

Preferred Stock voting as single class shall be required to authorize effect or

validate any amendment alteration or repeal of any of the provisions of the Companys
Certificate of Incorporation which would adversely affect the preferences special rights

or powers of the Formula Rate Preferred Stock provided however that an amendment

that would authorize or create or increase the authorized number of shares of any stock

ranking junior to the Formula Rate Preferred Stock shall not be deemed to adversely

affect the preferences rights or powers of the Formula Rate Preferred Stock or ii to

authorize designate or create or increase the authorized number of shares of any

capital stock of the Company of any class or series or any security convertible into such

capital stock ranking prior to the Formula Rate Preferred Stock as to dividends or

rights upon liquidation dissolution or winding up In addition the affirmative vote of

the holders of at least majority of the Formula Rate Preferred Stock voting as single

class shall be required to authorize designate or create or increase the authorized

number of shares of any class or series of capital stock of the Company or any security

convertible into capital stock of the Company of any class ranking on parity with the

Formula Rate Preferred Stock as to dividends and liquidation rights No affirmative

vote or consent of the holders of the Formula Rate Preferred Stock is required for the

creation designation or classification of or an increase or decrease in the number of
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shares of Formula Rate Preferred Stock out of presently authorized shares of Preferred

Stock

Whenever the cumulative annual dividend on the Formula Rate Preferred

Stock shall be in arrears for as much as one calendar year the number of directors of

the Company shall be increased by two and the holders of the Formula Rate Preferred

Stock shall have in addition to any other voting rights the exclusive and special right

voting separately as class to elect by the affirmative vote of the holders of at least

majority of the Formula Rate Preferred Stock two persons to fill such newly created

directorships Whenever such right of the holders of the Formula Rate Preferred Stock

shall have vested it may be exercised initially either at special meeting of such holders

called as provided below or at any annual meeting of stockholders and thereafter at

annual meetings of stockholders This special voting right shall continue until such time

as all dividends accumulated on the Formula Rate Preferred Stock shall have been paid

in full at which time the special right shall terminate subject to revesting in the event of

each and
every subsequent default in an annual dividend which continues for as much as

one calendar year For purposes only of this subparagraph of this paragraph each

holder of Formula Rate Preferred Stock shall be entitled to cast one vote for each share

of Formula Rate Preferred Stock held by such holder At any time when such special

voting power shall have vested in the holders of the shares of Formula Rate Preferred

Stock as provided in this subparagraph proper officer of the Company shall upon

the written request
of the holders of record of at least 10% of the number of shares of

Formula Rate Preferred Stock at the time outstanding addressed to the Secretary of the

Company call special meeting of the holders of shares of Formula Rate Preferred

Stock and of any other class of stock having voting power for the purpose of electing

directors Such meeting shall be held at the earliest practicable date at the principal

office of the Company If such meeting shall not be called by proper officer of the

Company within 20 days after personal service of said written request upon the

Secretary of the Company or within 20 days after mailing the same within the United

States of America by registered mail addressed to the Secretary of the Company at its

principal office then the holders of record of at least 10% of the number of shares of

Formula Rate Preferred Stock at the time outstanding may designate in writing one of

their numbers to call such meeting at the expense of the Company and such meeting

may be called by such person so designated upon the notice required for annual

meetings of stockholders and shall be held at said principal office Any holder of shares

of Formula Rate Preferred Stock so designated shall have access to the stock books of

the Company for the purpose of causing meetings of stockholders to be called pursuant

to these provisions Notwithstanding the provisions of this subparagraph no such

special meeting shall be called during the 90 days immediately preceding the date fixed

for the next annual meeting of stockholders At any meeting held for the purpose of

electing directors at which the holders of shares of Formula Rate Preferred Stock shall

have the special right voting separately as class to elect directors as provided in this

subparagraph the presence in person or by proxy of the holders of majority of the

number of shares of Formula Rate Preferred Stock at the time outstanding shall be

required to constitute quorum of such class for the election of any director by the

holders of the Formula Rate Preferred Stock as class each share of Formula Rate

Preferred Stock counting for purposes only of determining the presence of such

quorum as one share of Formula Rate Preferred Stock At any such meeting or

adjournment thereof the absence of quorum of Formula Rate Preferred Stock

shall not prevent the election of the directors other than the two directors to be elected

by the holders of shares of Formula Rate Preferred Stock voting as class and the
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absence of quorum for the election of such other directors shall not prevent the

election of the directors to be elected by holders of shares of Formula Rate Preferred

Stock voting as class and ii in the absence of either or both such quorums majority

of the holders present in person or by proxy of the stock or stocks which lack quorum
shall have power to adjourn the meeting for the election of directors which they are

entitled to elect from time to time without notice other than announcement at the

meeting until quorum shall be present During any period the holders of shares of

Formula Rate Preferred Stock have the right to vote as class for the directors as

provided in this subparagraph the directors so elected by the holders of the Formula

Rate Preferred Stock shall continue in office until termination of the right of the

holders of the Formula Rate Preferred Stock to vote as class for two directors and any

vacancies in the Board of Directors shall be filled only by vote of majority which

majority may consist of only single director of the remaining directors theretofore

elected by the class or classes of stock which elected the director whose office shall have

become vacant

The Company shall have the right but not the obligation to redeem on or at

any time after February 1990 the date on which the Company gives notice for such

redemption is called the Redemption Date all but not less than all of the shares of

the Formula Rate Preferred Stock which are issued and outstanding as of the

Redemption Date upon the payment of the sum of $1 662/3 in cash for each outstanding

share of the Formula Rate Preferred Stock the Redemption Price provided

however that in the event the Company effects stock split either by way of lawful

stock dividend to the holders of or reclassification of the shares of the Formula Rate

Preferred Stock then the Redemption Price shall be adjusted to an amount per share

equal to ten 10 times the Formula Rate as determined pursuant to the procedure set

forth in paragraph of this Certificate of Designation such adjusted Redemption
Price to take effect from and after the date upon which such Formula Rate shall take

effect In the event of any such adjustment the Company shall prepare certificate

setting forth the calculation of the adjusted Redemption Price which certificate shall be

kept by the Secretary of the Company and made available to any holder of Formula

Rate Preferred Stock who requests such certificate and which may be set forth in the

same certificate as required by paragraph of this Certificate of Designation and

ii notify holders of such stock of the adjustment Payment of the Redemption Price

shall be made within 30 days following the Redemption Date to the holders of record as

of the Redemption Date

On the Redemption Date the Company shall and before such Redemption
Date the Company may deposit for the pro rata benefit of the holders of the shares of

the Formula Rate Preferred Stock so called for redemption the funds necessary for such

redemption with bank or trust company in the Borough of Manhattan The City of

New York having capital and surplus of at least $50000000 Any monies so deposited

by the Company and unclaimed at the end of five years from the Redemption Date shall

revert to the general funds of the Company After such reversion any such bank or trust

company shall upon demand pay over to the Company such unclaimed amounts and

thereupon such bank or trust company shall be relieved of all responsibility in respect

thereof to such holder and such holder shall look only to the Company for the payment

of the Redemption Price Any interest accrued on funds so deposited pursuant to this

paragraph shall be paid from time to time to the Company for its own account

Upon the deposit of funds pursuant to paragraph in respect of shares of

the Formula Rate Preferred Stock called for redemption notwithstanding that any
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certificates for such shares shall not have been surrendered for cancellation the shares

represented thereby shall no longer be deemed outstanding the rights to receive any

dividends thereon shall cease to accrue from and after the Redemption Date and all

rights of the holders of the shares of the Formula Rate Preferred Stock called for

redemption shall cease and terminate excepting only the right to receive the

Redemption Price therefor

In order to conform the dividend rights of the holders of the shares of $.25

Preferred Stock as amended by the foregoing paragraphs of this Certificate to the

intention of the Board of Directors in declaring stock split by way of stock dividend

to holders of the Common and Preferred Stock of the Company payable on July 1987

to holders of record as of June 24 1987 dividends if any which may have accrued but

which have not been declared on shares of $.25 Preferred Stock at any rate in excess of

$.162/3 per share per annum between July 1987 and the date the amendments the

Certificate effected by these resolutions become effective shall be and they hereby are

cancelled

FURTHER RESOLVED that pursuant to Section 242 of the Delaware General

Corporation Law the proper officers of the Corporation are hereby authorized and

directed to cause the amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation

as amended by the Certificate of Designation proposed to be adopted by the preceding

resolution the Proposed Amendment to be submitted to the stockholders of the

Corporation at the next Annual Meeting of the stockholders of the Corporation for the

purpose of voting to approve or disapprove the Proposed Amendment provided

however that the Proposed Amendment need not be submitted to such vote if prior

to said Annual Meeting the Proposed Amendment shall have been adopted by the

written consent of the stockholders of the Corporation pursuant to Section 228 of the

Delaware General Corporation Law

FURTHER RESOLVED that if the Proposed Amendment shall be approved and

adopted by the stockholders of the Corporation in accordance with the immediately

preceding resolution the proper officers of the Corporation be and they hereby are

authorized and directed to make and execute Certificate of Amendment to the

Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation setting forth the resolution to so amend

the Certificate of Incorporation and certifying that said resolution has been duly

adopted in accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the Delaware General

Corporation Law and to cause the same to be filed with the Secretary of State of the

State of Delaware and certified copy recorded in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds

of New Castle County and to do all acts and things whatsoever whether within or

without the State of Delaware which may be necessary or proper to effect said

amendment

THIRD This Certificate of Amendment shall become effective on 2009 at

FOURTH This Certificate of Amendment was duly adopted in accordance with 242 of the DGCL
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Corporation has caused this Certificate of Amendment to be duly

executed in its corporate name as of the day of 2009

Pier Imports Inc

By Is MICHAEL CARTER

Name Michael Carter

Title Senior Vice President and General Counsel

Secretary
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Driving Directions

for the

Pier Imports Inc

Annual Meeting of Shareholders

at

Pier Imports Inc.s Corporate Headquarters

at

1000 a.m local time

on

July 2009

Reminder You must present your admission ticket at the admissions table in order to attend the

Pier Imports Inc Annual Meeting of Shareholders Doors will open at 900 a.m local time

Below are directions to Pier Imports corporate headquarters located at 100 Pier Place 100 Energy

Way from various locations in the surrounding area

From DFW Airport

Take the south exit from the airport

After passing through the tollgate take Hwy 183 west to Fort Worth Follow signs to Fort

Worth
Hwy 183 will merge with Hwy 121

Stay on Hwy 121 to downtown Fort Worth

Take the Belknap exit

Belknap will split into Summit Ave left and Forest Park Blvd right Merge LEFT onto

Summit Ave
Go through the light and take an immediate RIGHT into Pier Imports Follow directions for

parking

From Downtown Dallas

Take 1-30 west from I-35E intersection

After approximately 30 miles take the Summit Ave exit

Turn RIGHT on Summit Ave Continue for approximately mile

Turn LEFT on 5th Street

Turn RIGHT into Pier Imports Follow directions for parking

From North Dallas

Take 1-635 LBJ Freeway west to Hwy 121

Go south on Hwy 121

Follow signs to downtown Fort Worth

Take the Belknap exit

Belknap will split into Summit Ave left and Forest Park Blvd right Merge LEFT onto

Summit Ave

Go through the light and take an immediate RIGHT into Pier Imports Follow directions for

parking

From West Fort Worth

Take 1-30 East

Take the Forest Park Blvd exit and turn LEFT at the light

Forest Park Blvd turns into Forest Park Blvd

Turn RIGHT on 5th Street

Continue on 5th Street for approx mile Turn LEFT into Pier Imports Follow directions

for parking

Parking will be available on first-come first-served basis

If you have any further questions about attending the meeting please call our Investor Relations

Department at 817 252-7835 or toll-free at 888 807-4371



Pier Imports Inc Pier Imports Inc

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

EXECUTIVE OFFICES BOARD OF DIRECTORS

100 Pier Place Chairman of the Board

Fort Worth Texas 76102 Tom Thomas

817-252-8000 Partner Thomas Blackwood LLP

www.pierl.com
President and Chief Executive Officer

COMMON STOCK Alexander Smith

Approximately 10000 shareholders of record John Burgoyne

Traded on the New York Stock Exchange the NYSE Founder

Symbol PIR Burgoyne and Associates

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
Dr Michael Ferrari

President

Ferrari and Associates LLC
Ernst Young LLP

Fort Worth Texas
Robert Holland III

Former United States Executive Director
TRANSFER AGENT

World Bank

Mellon Investor Services LLC
Karen Katz

480 Washington Blvd
Executive Vice President

Jersey City New Jersey 07310-1900
Office of the Chairman

Shareholder Line Toll-Free 1-888-884-8086
The Neiman Marcus Group

http//www.bnymellon.com/shareowner/isd President and Chief Executive Officer

Neiman Marcus Stores
ANNUAL MEETING

Terry London
The annual meeting of shareholders will be held at President
10 a.m Central Daylight Time Wednesday July 2009 London Broadcasting Company Inc

on the Mezzanine Level Conference Center Room of

Pier Imports Inc Headquarters Fort Worth Texas Cece Smith

Former Managing General Partner

FORM 10-K REPORT AND INVESTOR RELATIONS Co-Founder Pillips-Smith-Machens

Venture Partners

The Company has included as an Exhibit to its Form 10-K report

filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission certificates of

the Companys Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

certifying the quality of the Companys public disclosure The

Companys Chief Executive Officer also has submitted to the NYSE Alexander Smith

certificate certifying that he is not aware of any violations by the President and

Company of the NYSE corporate governance listing standards Chief Executive Officer

Additional copies of the Pier Imports Inc Form 10-K report filed Charles Turner

with the Securities and Exchange Commission are available free Executive Vice President

of charge on the Investor Relations section of the Companys Chief Financial Officer

web site at www.pierl.com or by writing the Investor Relations

Department at Gregory Humenesky
Executive Vice President

Pier Imports Inc
Human Resources

Attn Investor Relations

100 Pier Place
Sharon Leite

Fort Worth Texas 76102
Executive Vice President

Stores

or by calling 1-817-252-7835
Michael Carter

Toll-Free 1-888-80-PIER 1-888-807-4371
Senior Vice President and

General Counsel Secretary
Investor inquiries also may be directed to that department
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